

GOVERNMENT OF SINDH SINDH TECHNICAL EDUCATION & VOCATIONAL TRAINING AUTHORITY

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS



FEASIBILITY STUDY AND TRANSACTION ADVISORY SERVICES FOR OUTSOURCING OPERATION AND MANAGEMENT

OF SINDH TECHNICAL AND VOCATIONAL EDUCATION AND TRAINING INSTITUTES UNDER PUBLIC-PRIVATE PARTNERSHIP MODE

Procuring Agency: Sindh Technical Education & Vocational Training Authority

RFP Ref. No.: STEVTA-PPPN/PROC-STEV/2025-26

ASSIGNMENT BRIEF

The Sindh Technical Education and Vocational Training Authority, Government of Sindh ('Procuring Agency'), has conceived a project to outsource the operations and management of institutes under viable public-private partnership model with an aim to improve service delivery, upgrade facilities, strengthen governance, and enhance learning outcomes through structured engagement with qualified private partners ('Project').

To advance this Project, the Procuring Agency hereby invites sealed bids from eligible bidders/ consultants (individual firms or consortia) possessing the requisite technical, financial, and legal expertise prescribed in the RFP Document. The selected consultant will conduct a detailed feasibility study and provide transaction advisory services, considering the Project intended objectives, sustainability, viability, and value for money following the Sindh Public Procurement Act, 2009, and the Sindh Public-Private Partnership Act, 2010, including the relevant rules, regulations, instructions, guidelines framed thereunder ('Assignment').

ASSIGNMENT SCOPE

The consulting scope of services for the Project under this Assignment includes, but is not limited to, the following:

- Conduct through technical, financial, and legal due diligence;
- · Review institutional and legal framework, and identify potential bottlenecks with proposed solutions;
- Assess the Project existing infrastructure, facilities, inventories, equipment, resources, technical availabilities/ requirements;
- Develop, evaluate, prioritize various options using analytical tools such as SWOT, CBA, VFM, NPV, risk analysis for each option;
- Analyze potential PPP options, detailing various structuring approaches and risk allocation matrices;
- Organize market engagement activities, including a road show and early market activities, to interact with and gather feedback from investors, financiers, lenders, interested parties, potential stakeholders, aiming to firm-up transaction structure for Project;
- Recommend a clear strategic direction regarding planning, institutional arrangements, optimal transaction structure, and financial viability to ensure the sustainable achievement of proposed objectives;
- Prepare and deliver presentations and reports on each Project-related documents to the PPP Policy Board and other relevant forums to secure necessary approvals mandated by relevant laws;
- Prepare the bidding documents for the solicitation of bids from private parties under the preferred PPP modality;
- Perform all tasks detailed in Request for Proposal ('RFP') Document and those outlined in the selected consultant's technical proposal, while maintaining close collaboration with Project key stakeholders throughout all stages of Project development.

ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA

Prospective bidders (individual consulting firms or consortia) shall require to qualify the eligibility and technical evaluation criteria, along with other terms and conditions, supported by relevant documents specified in the RFP Document.

BIDDING PROCESS

The procurement for this Assignment is being conducted in accordance with national competitive bidding procedure, using the quality-cost based selection method, as prescribed under the SPP Rules, 2010, and is open to all eligible bidders. The contract will be awarded to the bidder whose bid shall be determined to be the most advantageous bid, i.e., a bid attaining the highest combined weighted technical and financial score following the criteria set out in the RFP Document.

Bidders are required to submit only one (1) bid, comprising one (1) Technical Proposal and one (1) Financial Proposal, along with other applicable supporting documents, as identified in the RFP Document, electronically via the Sindh PPRA E-Pak Acquisition & Disposal System ('SPPRA EPADS'), no later than 15:00 hours PST on November 14, 2025 ('Bid Submission Deadline'). Physical Bids will not be accepted.

Technical Proposals will be opened on the Bid Submission Deadline at 15:30 hours PST in the presence of the bidders' representatives, who may wish to attend, at the office address provided below. However, in the event of a public holiday or any unforeseen circumstance on the Bids Submission Deadline, bids, including the bid securities, shall be received/ opened on the next business day at the same time and venue. Following the evaluation of Technical Proposals, bidders who have submitted responsive Technical Proposals in terms of the RFP shall be invited to attend the opening of Financial Proposals.

Bidders are required to furnish, as part of Technical Proposals, scanned copy of bid security, no less than PKR 7,500,000/- (Pak Rupees Seven Million Five Hundred Thousand only), in the form of pay order/demand draft/bank guarantee, valid for twenty-eight (28) days beyond bid validity period, issued by a scheduled bank of Pakistan in favor of 'Managing Director STEVTA'. Original copy of bid security, in a sealed envelope, shall be submitted via mail or by hand on or before Bid Submission Deadline at address given below.

Prospective bidders may acquire the RFP Document free of cost with effect from October 22, 2025, to November 13, 2025, either: (a) physically, by submitting a written application at the address provided below, specifying their full name, address and contact details; or (b) electronically, by downloading from the websites of the SPPRA EPADS or PPP Unit and notifying the Procuring Agency in writing through a letter or via email, its full name, address and contact details.

The address for the issuance of the RFP Document and the submission of the bid security is as under:

Managing Director

Sindh Technical Education & Vocational Training Authority

Address: Sindh TEVTA Headquarter, Street 19, Block 6, Gulshan-e-Iqbal, Karachi.

Phone: +92 21 99244112 – 7 **Fax:** +92 21 99244118 **Email:** ppp.fsta@gmail.com and info@stevta.gos.pk

Website: Procuring Agency - https://stevta.gos.pk/ PPP Unit - https://www.pppunitsindh.gov.pk/ SPPRA EPADS - https://portalsindh.eprocure.gov.pk/



GOVERNMENT OF SINDH SINDH TECHNICAL EDUCATION & VOCATIONAL TRAINING AUTHORITY DEQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

FEASIBILITY STUDY AND TRANSACTION ADVISORY SERVICES FOR OUTSOURCING OPERATION AND MANAGEMENT

OF SINDH TECHNICAL AND VOCATIONAL EDUCATION AND TRAINING INSTITUTES UNDER PUBLIC-PRIVATE PARTNERSHIP MODE

Procuring Agency: Sindh Technical Education & Vocational Training Authority REP Ref. No.: STEVTA-PPPN/PROC-STEV/2025-26

ASSIGNMENT BRIEF

The Sindh Technical Education and Vocational Training Authority, Government of Sindh ('Procuring Agency'), has conceived a project to outsource the operations and management of institutes under viable public-private partnership model with an aim to improve service delivery, upgrade facilities, strengthen governance, and enhance learning outcomes through structured ongogement with qualified private partners ('Project').

structures engagement with quasined private partners (Project').

To advance this Project, the Propuring Agency hereby (mittes sealed bids from eligible bidders/ consultants (individual firms or consortial) possessing the requisite technical, financial, and logal expertise prescribed in the RFP Document. The selected consultant will conduct a detailed foundability study and provide transported advisory services, considering the Project intended objectives, sustainability, viability, and value for money following the Sindh Public Procurement Act, 2009, and the Sindh Public Private Partnership. Act, 2016, including the relevent rules, regulations, instructions, guidelines framed thereunder (Assignment).

ASSIGNMENT SCOPE

The consulting scope of services for the Project under this Assignment includes, but is not limited to, the following:

- The consulting acope of services for the Project under this Assignment includes, but is not limited to, the interest.

 Conduct through technical, financial, and legal due diligisnoce, Review institutional and legal framework, and identify potential bottlenecks with proposed solutions;

 Assess the Project existing infrastructure, facilities, inventories, equipment, resources, technical availabilities/ requirements;

 Assess the Project existing infrastructure, facilities, inventories, equipment, resources, technical availabilities/ requirements;

 Osewlop, evaluate, prioritize vertious options using analytical tools such as SWOT, CBA, VPM, NPV, risk analysis for each option;

 Analyze potential PPP options, detailing various structuring approaches and risk allocation matrices.

 Organize market ergagement activities, including a road show and early market activities, to interact with and gather feedback from investors, financiers, lenders, interested parties, potential stakeholders, aiming to firm-up transaction structure for Project.

 Recommend a closer streade cinection regarding planning, institutional arrangements, optimal transaction structure, and financial viability to ensure the sustainable achievement of proposed objectives;

 Propore and celluler presentations and reports on each Projects-related documents to the PPP Policy Board and other relevant forums to secure necessary approveds mandated by relevant laws;

 Prepare the bidding documents for the solicitation of bids from private parties under the preferred PPP modality.

 Perform all tasks detailed in Request for Proposal (RFP) Document and those outlined in the selected consultant's technical proposal, whila maintaining close collaboration with Project key stakeholders throughout all stages of Project development.

BIDDING PROCESS

The procurement for this Assignment is being conducted in accordance with national competitive bidding procedure, using the quality-cost based selection method, as prescribed under the SPP Rules, 2010, and is open to all eligible bidders. The contract will be awarded to the bidder whose bid shall be determined to be the most advantages bid, i.e., a bid attaining the highest combined weighted technical and financial score fellowing the criteria set out in the RFP Document.

Bidders are required to submit only one (1) bid, comprising one (1) Technical Proposal and one (1) Financial Prop with other applicable supporting documents, as identified in the RFP Document, electronically via the Sindh Pl Acquisition & Disposal System ("SPPRA EPADS"), no later than 15:00 hours PST on November 14, 2025 ("Bid Si Deadline"). Physical Bids will not be accepted.

Deadline? J. Physical Bids will not be accepted.

Technical Proposals will be opened on the Bid Submission Deadline at 18:30 hours PST in the presence of the bidders' representatives, who may wish to attend, at the office address provided below. However, in the event of a public holiday or any unforcescen circumstance on the Bids Submission Deadline, bids, including the bid securities, shall be received? opened on the next business day at the same time and venue. Following the evaluation of Technical Proposals, bidders who have submitted responsive Technical Proposals in terms of the RFP shall be invited to attend the opening of Financial Proposals.

Bidders are required to furnish, as part of Technical Proposals, scanned copy of bid security, no less than PKR 7,500,000/(Pak Rupees Seven Million Five Hundred Thousand only), in the form of pay order/demand draft/bank guarantee, valid for
twenty-eight (28) days beyond bid validity period, issued by a scheduled bank of Pakistan in favor of "Managing Director
STEVTA". Original copy of bid security, in a sealed envelope, shall be submitted via mail or by hand on or before Bid
Submission Deadline at address given below.

Prospective bidders may acquire the RFP Document free of cost with effect from October 22, 2026, to November 13, 2025, either; (a) physically, by submitting a written application at the address provided below, specifying their full name, address and contact details; or (b) olectronically, by downloading from the websites of the SPPRA EPADS or PPP Unit and notifying the Procuring Agency in writing through a letter or via email, its full name, address and contact details.

WORK FOR SINDH A NOS WAY TO STAND THE STAND TH

Men address for the issuance of the RFP Document and the submission of the bid see

Managing Director

Sindh Technical Education & Vocational Training Authority

Address: Sindh TEVTA Headquarter, Street 19, Block 6, Guishan-e-Iqbal, Karachl.

Phone: +92.21 99244112 - 7 Fax: +92.21 99244118 Email: ppp.frate@pmail.com and info@stevta.gos.pk

Website: Procuring Agency - https://stevta.gos.pk/ PPP Unit - https://www.pppunitsindh.gov.pk/ SPPRA EPADS - https://portalsindh.eprocure.gov.pk/

INF/KRY/3336/25



کل ایجوکیشن ایند ووکیشنل تریننگ اٹارتی

يرويوزلس لاءِ گذارش

منڌ ڏيڪنيڪل اينڊ ووڪيشنل ايجوڪيشن اينڊ ٽريننگ انسٽيٽيوٽس پبلڪ۔ پرائيويٽ پارٽنرش فزيبلٽي اسٽڊي ۽ ٽراريڪشن ايڊوائيزري سروسز آئوٽ سورسنگ آپريشن ۽ مٺنيجمينٽ

مسى: سنة ثير شيك الجركيش ابند وركيشنل تريننگ اثارتي بر : STEVTA-PPPN/PROG-STEV/2025-26

ليكنيكل ايجوكيشن ايند ووكيشنل تريننگ اثارتي. حكومت سنة ("پروكيورنگ ايجنسي") كي هڪ پراجيڪٽ اٽوٽ سورس اپريشن ۽ مشني ولاه واه ايمل پيلڪ- پرائيريٽ پارٽنرشپ ماول تحت مليو آهي. انهيءَ مقصد جنهن پر سروس وليوري، سهرلتون وڏالڻ، گورننس جي مفسوطي ۽ سکيا جي

مستعدی کی دارد اس پر پرسیده پارسدان به مستوری و ساید بینی بخی معلم کی ترقی قبار اگر استریخرد مفتصد کل خوالها اما بر اندریت پارشدر (آیراجیکت ۱ و سایی خاتر آهی. بن پر جیکت چی بدوانس، پر وکیور دک ایجنسی پاران مهربند و اک اهل واک ڈینداز) کنسورشیم (آزاداد فرس یا کنسورشیا) میز دی گهربل لیکنیکل، فنانشل پ یکل مهارت مقرر RFP دستارین پر جاتایل آهی گهرائی تی، چرندیل کنسالنت کی تقسیلی فزیبلتی استین کرفی آهی پا تر انزیکشن ایدوانیزری سروس مهیا کری، پر اجڪٽ جي مقصدن تي غور ڪڙو. مضموطي اهليت ۽ رقم جو مله هيٽ ڄاڻايل سنڌ بملڪ پر وڪور ميٽٽ ايڪٽ 2009 ۽ سنڌ پملڪ ۽ پرائيو يٽ پار تبر شب ايڪٽ 2010 جنهن ۾ لاڳاپيل رواز ، ريکيوليشنر ، هذابيترن، کائيد لائنس ان ۾ فريم ڪيل آهن. ("سائنمينٽ")

حث ٢٤ هن اسالنمينت ير شامل آهي. بر احو لميشيا له آهي ۽ هيشين ريت آهي:

لندگ جو مروس استان په راجيت ؟ دهل استانيدي ير تامل آهي. پر افر لميتو د آهي و خيش ريت آهي: "تستينظل مناشل به لکل طور و اف کي را ديو طورن اطبيت مي مجالب يه آن چي حل خون انجزيزون. مرجوده اثير استر شجير، سهواشون تجريزون، ايزار وبسورسر، لينشينظل مرحودگي، اگيرجون پراجيست جي پيچي لاه. ويلم چينچان مختلف ايشتر جون ترجيخان جيدي به بالاينطان لوار و سيل جهوزها، ۱۹۷۸ را اي SWO, CBA, VFB, BPC. ويلم چينچان مختلف ايشتر جون ترجيخان که مختلف استر شجير جه انقصال ايروجو به مشيرانو جو ليلوڪيٽن رسيد مار طبيف انگرميست هندگ ايل کي ار آخالتو طون کا روز شرو به توسائل مار طبقت هار گذاريون کابان به به سيد خوادور، دير جو مقت پر اجبيت ؟ 4 استر شجير چي ايد تر ايروسائل مار طبقت هار گذاريون کابان دادها ر محکت میلی می افزیکشن پلاندگی استشهر می او توزیکشن طرق واضع حکت میلی می افزیکشن پلاندگی استشهر اسل ارتباطی ارتباطی استر کیر و مانشل قبر گید کی بنینی مفسوط میزیان می ما آمبرکشن کی تحریر کرن

بجیستون می مجوید حقق در طاور بازنده این و پیش هن و پر برنشینشن و ریور آمن لاکیپیل دستوین سال ۱۹۹۷ بالسی بروه و پین آه رفاطه دستایین می مالزی واطن می کران بر الدینت با اینی کان ۱۹۶۵ مربطش کی ترجیحن لاگر طرف سورن تفصیل کی تفصیلی بدو ورول (۱۹۶۳) جی گذارش پر بردار و طرف مشاوری و چزیهل کشششش جی براجنت پر طی مولدوز سان براجنت می برلیبینت پر سعورن استیمن تی تغاوی پر رجهواتی طرف

ا ۱۹۱۹ می موساو تعریز حقق ارافه گید از اوالا حفسستنگ فرمون یا حفسور شیا) کی گهرمی تراهی اهلیت و تبخشیطان چندچان چی معیار کی طوالبداد طرز ۱۲ درط و نسابطا ۲۰گاییل دستاریون ور جالایل مقرر ۱۶۶۶ مستارین موجه عشرالیلها عش

هن اسائميمنت جي پروڪيورمينت قومي جناپيش واڪ دستاريز طريقيڪار موجب ڪئي وبندي، جنهن ۾ ڪوائشي - ڪاسٽ بينھ سليڪشن طريقيڪار مقرر SPP, وارنز 2010 موجب ڪيو ويند و ۽ صورت اطر واڪ ڏينيٽرن لاءُ کايل آهي، ليڪر امن واڪ ڏينيٽرن کي ڏيو ويندو جيڪي واڪ ۾ مقرر ايڊو انتجز واڪ لاءِ پهتر طريقي سان پيش ڪندا، جهڙوڪ؛ واڪ جي مقانهين گڏيل وزبائشي ٽيڪيڪل ۽ نشانشل اسڪور هيٺ ڄاڻايل معيار موجب سيت الوت ڪندا جيڪر RFP دستاويزن ۾ ڄاڻايل آهي. واڪ ڏيندڙن کي گهرجي تداهي قفظ هڪ (1) واڪ پيش ڪن جيڪر (1) هڪ ٽيڪيڪل پرريوزل ۽ هڪ (1) فئانشل پرريوزل کڏ بيا لاڳو دستاريزن ۾ جوريز ڪيل آهي لقط هڪ (1) واپ سان اڪ آهي ڪيورويشن ايند جيپوزل سندم (SPPRA E-PADS) وسيلي دير ۾ 14 نومبر 2026 تي

دسارين پر جريز کيل آهن البڪتر انطقي وابا سنڌ PRRA إي - باڪ ايڪوريشن اينڊ بسپورل سنڌ ("SPPRA E-PADS") و سايي دير پر دير 14 رمبر 2025 تي 1500 PST پر پرورز را دار پيش ڪرڻ جي آخري تاريخ جي 1500 وقت واڪ بران ڪو ويو ديندڙن با سنڌ نمائندن جيڪي مرجود رهڻ چاهين تن اڳهاڻ هيٽ ڄاڻايا آهي اندريس تي گرايا ويندا جڏهن تائهيءَ هر قبلي تي عالم مرڪل هٿڻ با ڪهن انوشندڙ صرر تحال سب راڪ پيش ڪرڻ جي آخري تاريخ تي واڪ گڏ واڪ حڪير تيز وصول ڪرڻ که گران جو ورندڙ ڪر حال وازي ڏينهن تي باڳهي وقت ۽ هنڌ تي هرندو " پڪيڪر پر ويرزل جي چنڊ چاڻ بيڪي واڪ ڏيندڙ تيڪيڪر پر ويرزل جي پيش ڪرڻ لاءِ PRP جي شرطن مرجب پر تيواري ڪندا تن جا نمائنگ پر ويرزلس کوليا ويندا. واڪ ڏيندڙن کي گهرجي تا آهن ٿيڪيڪل پر ويرزل هڪ حصي طور اسڪن ڪيل واڪ سيڪور تي جي سورت پر مقرر هدي کان اڳتي 28 ڏينهن تائين اهل مطن (پاڪستاني ريها بحيمو لکو دين کان گهڻ دهندگي جي اجو جي اجيڪري ان ايڪ انهائي ۾ ميل وسالي يا هڏوهٽ کيورين چيا خسان جي ڪهن ۽ شهر بيندو تائين بحق شنيمنگ وائيڪ TEVP جي جاري ٿيل شامل هڻڻ گهرجي، جيڪي مهريند انائي ۾ ميل وسالي يا هڏوهٽ

واڪييٽ ڪرڻ جي آخري تاريخ تي هيٽ ڄاڻايل ايدريس تي پهچڻ گهرجي. تجويز ڪيل واڪ ڏيندڙ کي گهرجي تہ RFP دستاويز مفت پر 22 آڪٽرير 2025 کان 13 ترمير 2025 نائين (a) مٿرهٽ لکت پر درخواست پيش ڪرڻ سان هيٽ ڄاڻايان ايدريس تي پنهنجو مڪمل نالر، ايدريس ۽ رابطي جر تقصيل يا (c) اليڪٽر انڪلي ويب سائيٽ تان ڊائون لرد ڪري SPPA-EPADS يا پرٽ ۽ نتر تيفاء ڪيل پروڪيورنگ ايجنسي لکت ۾ ليٽر وسيلي يا وايا اي ميل وسيلي پنهنجو پورو نالو، ايدريس ۽ رابطي جو تفصيل پيش ڪرڻ سان خاصل ڪري سگهن ٿا. RFP دستاويز هيث ڄاڻايل ايڊريس تان واڪ سيڪيورڻي پيش ڪرڻ تي حاصل ڪري سگهجن ٿا.

INF/KRY/3336/25

مثنيونگ واثر يكتر سنڌ تيڪنيڪل ايجو كيشن ابنڊ وو كيشنل تريننگ اثارتي , سنڌ TEVTA هيدڪوارٽر اسٽريٽ- 19 . بلاڪ-6. گنشن اقبال ڪراچي

WORK FOR SINDH



ناني الليش ودعان (افراد) كنستنك فرم يا تنورها ياك شار كرفرانا وخوابا و ۱۲ الدارة بريم بعرات كرده هذارته يان ساك البريانية هدك المرفوانا والميان المياني معيان المرفوانا والمراورة المرفوانا والمراورة المراورة الم

نده PPRA ای باک مکن این و این استر (SPPRA EPADS) دیر SOOS (الحائل کی کرنے کی فیان کی کرد کی باز تحل فی تحق کی با کسی کی ر

الإنسان من المراجعة ا

النت بذاك في ديرون و 1910 روي على مقرر كرده ك معالى كوالى كاست ويراحيكن محقد احتمال كرك بذريع في ساحق بالكرون في الماكان ويراح المراج المراج كوران كيك كل بدر كورك ال

دیکش دو کان کے لینظر ہوری ہے کہا یک (01) کھنگل پروچ ال اورایک (01) کا کلوں دویال مقتل موٹ ایک (01) پاکھش مع دیکر چال اعلاق جانے واقع ہے۔ بذر بعد

قالى دائدال ك ك ادم ب كريكول دويال ك مع كاهر بر بركور في يور بركور و بالدور و بالدور

نائشتین اشول بذ تحید غزای دقت ادریته م برا کنده کارو بازی مع که صول ادر کار با می که کانگهای دونهای مسابقاتی داندگان شنوی نے 1889 میں کا 1886 میں کا انتقاب کا 1886 میں انتقال کا انتقاب کا انتقاب کا 1886 میں کا انتقاب کا 1886 میں کا انتقاب کا 1886 میں کا انتقاب کا 1886 میں کا انتقاب کا انتقاب کا 1886 میں کا انتقاب کا انتقاب کا 1886 میں کا 1886 میں

الأخرية والمراق الرائد المراق وكرت بوساز في شوري كردوي كردوي والموسوق كرد يرك رايدوي (PPP و SPPRA EPADS) من ميدان والحد كرد يوافق والياس على ويدوي

● يەدىكىت ئولۇنىڭ ئىگئام دىلان يەغ تال ئىل بىيا كركيا كۈپ دايام دىلار

: سند و سيكتيل ايم يشن ايت و ونيم شش لرا يقك احت الى ا تر اب را 26 STEVTA-PPPN/PROC-STEV

بالداريديك

مر بمبر پیکلیس و توکن ہے۔ بختی کردوکننٹ کو سندھ پیک پروکیو مشدا کیک 12009در شدھ پیک پرانو ہے اپنیٹ 2010 جمل ال اساکنٹ کے کا کالیل ویا کیکے متعلقہ داور ریکا پھٹور دریاہے کا بھٹا ایکوکی جدوی کرتے ہوئے پر چھٹس میں افوائل کردو مقاصد، تھلگا چاہدار درجادہ میں بھٹر کو کرتے ہوئے ایک مقدل کو اجازی کا در اواز پیشن الدُوارُون مروم مع كرفي بوكي . ("اما تنت")

رقى وسكوب عن ورية وال شال جداماتهم بدان كله عدواتين -• مَيْنَكِي مالياتي اور مطلوبة لأنوني احتياط كذر يعمل.

• أنتى ليان اورة الوفى قريم ورك كالهائز واور لمايان وكاولون كي شاخت يكرما توان كالجوز وتدارك

• يره ديكت ك موجروه الخواا فر المريكر الهوالان المويتريد ألات وماكل جيكتم اليولول وشيافي المرود يات كى جائى

• بازو ليد كان الدراك المراج المراج المراج ، NPV, VFM,CBA, SWOT ، استعال كرت المراج الشرك تاري المراج المر

• منتعد البيزيكرنك إيده بزاه رومك الأكيش فيمثر بموتضيل كر_ ومكافي PPP آيشتركا تجويد

🗨 اركيت المجلس مركوميون كا النكام كرد بالمول اليك روا المواويط واركيت مركوميان الاكرم يا يكارون الأراد والتي الرابي الدراماني استيك مواقد وتن أياب محل كياجا عكوادان ك ماقد ق الرار المراح والمعديد الميل الميل الميل المراج عنوارة بالمواجدة الميل المراجدة الميل المراجدة في ما الموت من على المراجة في المراجدة المراجدة الميل المراجة في المراجة في

 متعقدة أني كذريدان في أردى كل شوري متحدي لي كالتعلق أو المركز في كيك PPP يليون إداده مكر متعلقة في مؤلوج إليك و دوليات مع متعلقة ومناوي المدي ويليم المركز من الموادي والمركز المركز الم • تراقي PPP موا على كرفت في إرايون عديق شيل طب كرن كيلو يد كدون وال تاركرون

منيجنگ ڈائریکٹر .. سندھٹیکنیکل ایجوکیشن اینڈووکیشنل ٹریننگ اتھارٹی

A 208 WWW. INFORMATION DEPARTMENT



درخواستبرائ پىلىك، پائويىنە ئىشىراڭى ھىسەيقىكار كىقىت سىندە ئىيكىنكل ايىنىدۇ دېيىشىنل ايۇكىش اورۇخىگ



GOVERNMENT OF SINDH UNIVERSITIES & BOARDS DEPARTMENT

Karachi, dated the 21st August 2025

NOTIFICATION

In supersession of this department's Notification bearing NO. No.SO/STEVTA/U&B/GEN-76/2025: dated 23.07.2025, NO.SO/STEVTA/U&B/GEN-76/2025/738 dated SO/STEVTA/U&B/GEN-76/2025/665 12.08.2025, and in pursuance of the 47th Public Private Partnership (PPP) Policy Board meeting dated 04.07.2025, whereby, the Board approved department's request to engage consultants/transaction advisors for conducting a detailed technical, financial and legal feasibility studies and provide transaction advisory services relation to the Project "enhancing/Providing Quality Technical and Vocational Training in Sindh" under the suitable PPP modality in Sindh Technical Education and Vocational Training Authority (STEVTA) institutes (assignment).

A consultant Selectin Committee (CSC) comprising of following officers is hereby constituted under below terms and reference for selection of consultants/transaction advisors to undertake the Assignment's procurement process using the quality and cost-based selection method, in terms of Rules 67 & 71 of SPP Rules, 2010.

Chairperson Director (PPP/IL), i) STEVTA HQ Karachi Member Representative of Planning & Development Department ii) (Not below the rank of BS-18) Member Representative of Finance Department iii) (Not below the rank of BS-18) Member Representative of Administrative Department iv) (Not below the rank of BS-18) Member/Secretary Deputy Director (Finance) V)

The Terms of Reference is as under: -

Approval of Request for Proposal before issuance.

STEVTA HQ Karachi

- Shortlisting of consultants, responding to the Request for Expression of Interest (REO), where applicable, in accordance with the criteria mentioned in the REOI.
- Evaluation of Technical and Financial proposals, according to the selection method and evaluation criteria, mentioned in the Request for Proposal.
- Finalization of recommendation based on evaluation criteria and other terms and conditions set forth in the Request for Proposal.
- Co-opt up to two members having adequate technical knowledge and experience in the relevant filed
- Perform any other ancillary and incidental to above, as required under the SPPR-2010.

-MUHAMMAD ABBAS BALOCH-SECRETARY

Karachi, dated the 21st August 2025

No.SO/STEVTA/U&B/GEN-76/2025/ 752

A copy is forwarded for information to:

- The Chairman, Planning & Development Department, Govt. of Sindh, Karachi.
- The Secretary (Finance) Department, Govt. of Sindh, Karachi
- The Director General, PPP Unit, Finance Department, Govt. of Sindh, Karachi. 4
- The Managing Director, STEVTA Karachi.
- The PS to Special Assistant to Chief Minister, Sindh for STEVTA/Chairman ST 5.
- The PS to Secretary (U&B) Department, Government of Sindh, Karachi.
- Officer concerned.
- Master File

(NAWAZ ALI TUNIO) For Secretary to Gert to Shah Universities & Boards Department Government of Sindh



GOVERNMENT OF SINDH UNIVERSITIES & BOARDS DEPARTMENT

Karachi, dated the 23rd July, 2025

NOTIFICATION

No.SO/STEVTA/U&B/GEN-76/2025: Under the provision of Section-31 & 71(2) of the Sindh Public Procurement Rules, 2010(amended 2013, the Government of Sindh is pleased to constitute a Complaint Redressal Committee (CRC) for addressing the complaints of the bidders that may occur during the procurement proceedings of the Public Private Partnership Node, Sindh Technical Education & Vocational Training Authority (STEVTA), with following composition and Terms of Reference.

S.No.	Designation	Status
1.	Special Secretary, Universities & Boards Department	Chairperson
2.	Managing Director, Sindh TEVTA	Member/Secretary
3.	Two private members represented on the SPPRA Board	Member
4.	Representative of Accountant General Sindh	Member
5.	Independent Professional (to be nominated by the Chairperson	Member

The Terms of Reference is as under: -

- Prohibit the procurement committee / technical and financial evaluation committee (TFEC) from acting or deciding in a manner, inconsistent with the Sindh Pubic Procurement Rules and regulations.
- Annual in whole or in part, any unauthorized act or decision of the procurement committee/technical and financial evaluation committee (TFEC).
- Recommend to the Head of Department, that the case be declared a mis-procurement, if material violation of act, rules, regulation, orders, instructions or any other law relating to public procurement have been established.
- Reverse any decision of the procurement committee or substitute its own decision for such a decision (provided that the complaint redressal committee shall not make any decision to award the contract)
- The complaint redressal committee shall announce its decision within seven days and intimate the same to the bidder and the authority (SPPRA) within three working days.

-MUHAMMAD ABBAS BALOCH-SECRETARY

No.SO/STEVTA/U&B/GEN-76/2025/ 666

Karachi, dated the 23rd July 2025

A copy is forwarded for information to:

- The Accountant General Sindh, Karachi.
- 2. The Director General, PPP Unit, Finance Department, Govt. of Sindh, Karachi.
- The Managing Director, STEVTA Karachi.
- 4. The PS to Chairman, Planning & Development Department, Govt. of Sindh, Karachi.
- The PS to Secretary (Finance) Department, Govt. of Sindh, Karachi.
- 6. The PS to Special Assistant to Chief Minister, Sindh for STEVTA/Chairman STEVTA.
- The PS to Secretary (U&B) Department, Government of Sindh, Karachi.
- Officer/representative concerned.
- Master File

(NAWAZ ALI TUNIO)
Section Officer (STEVTA) EVTA)
For Secretary of Good Street Sindh
Section & Boates Department
Universities & Boates Department
Government of Sindh



GOVERNMENT OF SINDH SINDH TECHNICAL EDUCATION AND VOCATIONAL TRAINING AUTHORTY

STANDARD PROCUREMENT DOCUMENT



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS SELECTION OF CONSULTANTS

FEASIBILITY STUDY AND TRANSACTION
ADVISORY SERVICES FOR OUTSOURCING
OPERATION AND MANAGEMENT OF SINDH
TECHNICAL AND VOCATIONAL EDUCATION AND
TRAINING INSTITUES UNDER PUBLIC-PRIVATE
PARTNERSHIP MODE

Address: Sindh TEVTA HQ, ST-19, Block-6, Gulshan-e-Igbal, Karachi.

Telephone: + 92 21 99244112-7 Fax: + 92 21 99244118

Request for Proposal Document Selection of Consultants National Competitive Bidding

FEASIBILITY STUDY AND TRANSACTION ADVISORY SERVICES FOR OUTSOURCING OPERATION AND MANAGEMENT OF SINDH TECHNICAL AND VOCATIONAL EDUCATION AND TRAINING INSTITUES UNDER PUBLIC PRIVATE PARTNERSHIP MODE

RFP Reference No.: STEVTA-PPPN/PROC-STEV/2025-26

Procuring Agency: Sindh Technical Education and Vocational Training Authority,

Government of Sindh

Address: Sindh TEVTA HQ, ST-19, Block-6, Gulshan-e-Iqbal, Karachi.

Issued on: October 19, 2025

Important Notice

This Request for Proposal document ('RFP Document') is issued to prospective Bidders, whether individual firms or consortia, exclusively for the purpose of preparing and submitting Bids in connection with the Bidding Process concerning the Feasibility Study and Transaction Advisory Services for outsourcing Operation and Management of Sindh Technical and Vocational Education and Training institutes under Public-Private Partnership Mode ('Assignment'). This RFP Document is disseminated by the Sindh Technical Education and Vocational Training Authority, Government of Sindh ('Procuring Agency'), solely for use by Bidders in their consideration of the Assignment, in accordance with the Sindh Public Procurement Rules, 2010 ('SPP Rules').

Unless expressly defined otherwise herein, all capitalized terms shall carry the meanings ascribed to them within this RFP Document.

The Procuring Agency prepared this RFP Document for the Assignment, which was subsequently reviewed and approved by the consultant selection committee of the Procuring Agency constituted pursuant to the SPP Rules. Neither the Procuring Agency, its constituent entities, nor any of their respective employees, personnel, or agents, provide any representation or warranty, whether expressed or implied, as to the accuracy or completeness of the information contained within this RFP Document or any other document furnished to a Person in relation to the Bidding Process for the Assignment. Accordingly, these parties shall bear no liability whatsoever for this RFP Document or for any other written or oral communication transmitted to a recipient during such recipient's evaluation of Bids. Furthermore, none of these parties, their employees, personnel, agents, consultants, advisors, or contractors shall be liable to reimburse or compensate any recipient for any costs, fees, damages, or expenses incurred by said recipient in the evaluation of or action upon this RFP Document, or otherwise in connection with the Assignment as contemplated herein.

The submission of Bids in response to this RFP Document by any Bidder shall signify the Bidder's full understanding and unconditional acceptance of all terms and conditions stipulated within this RFP Document. Such submission shall be irrevocably deemed as an acknowledgment and acceptance of all terms and conditions set forth herein. Any Bid submitted by a Bidder pursuant to this RFP Document shall be interpreted on the basis that the Bidder has conducted a thorough and meticulous examination of this RFP Document, inclusive of any clarifications, addenda, or corrigenda issued by the Procuring Agency, and has independently verified all information, whether written or verbal, received from the Procuring Agency (including its employees, personnel, agents, consultants, advisors, and contractors).

This RFP Document does not, and shall not be construed to, constitute a solicitation for transaction advisory services or an invitation to participate in the Assignment in any manner, nor shall it imply or constitute any guarantee or commitment, of any nature, on the part of the Procuring Agency that the Contract for the Assignment will be awarded. The Procuring Agency expressly reserves the right, in its sole and absolute discretion, and to the fullest extent permissible under the SPP Rules, to modify this RFP Document, alter the scope of the Assignment, or cancel the Bidding Process at any stage, without incurring any liability to reimburse or compensate any recipient for costs, taxes, expenses, or damages that may be incurred by such recipient as a consequence of such actions.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Request for Proposal Document

Section I	Letter of Invitation	5
Section II	Instructions to Consultants	8
	Bid Data Sheet	33
	Eligibility Criteria	38
	Technical Evaluation Criteria	44
Section III	Technical Proposal – Standard Forms	50
Section IV	Financial Proposal – Standard Forms	61
Section V	Terms of Reference	73
Section VI	Conditions of Contract	88
	General Contract of Contract	90
	Special Conditions of Contract	102
	Draft Contract	105
Appendices	Standard Forms: Bid Security; Performance Security	109
	Appendix A – Integrity Pact	113
	Appendix B – Affidavit (non-blacklisting)	114
	Appendix C – Power of Attorney	115
	Appendix D – Documents Checklist	116
	Appendix E – List of Institutes	119

Section I - Letter of Invitation

RFP Ref No.: STEVTA-PPPN/PROC-STEV/2025-26

Karachi, dated October 19, 2025

Technical and Vocational Education and Training ('TVET') are critical enablers of economic growth, social development, and workforce competitiveness. In Sindh, the Sindh Technical Education and Vocational Training Authority (STEVTA), under the administrative oversight of the Government of Sindh ('Procuring Agency'), plays a pivotal role in equipping individuals with market-relevant skills through its network of technical institutes. These institutes serve as essential platforms for hands-on training, bridging the gap between formal education and industry demands, and ensuring that graduates are equipped to meet the evolving requirements of the labor market.

Despite its strategic importance, the TVET sector in Sindh faces systemic challenges, including outdated infrastructure, limited access to modern equipment, weak industry linkages, and high operational costs. These issues contribute to a persistent mismatch between the skills imparted and those required by employers, thereby affecting employability outcomes—particularly in rural and underserved areas.

To address these gaps, STEVTA is aligning its reform agenda with key national and international development frameworks, including the **Sustainable Development Goals** (SDGs)—notably SDG 4 (Quality Education) and SDG 8 (Decent Work and Economic Growth)—as well as **Pakistan's National Skills Strategy**, the **Sindh Education Sector Plan**, and Vision 2025. Central to these efforts is the modernization of technical institutes and the enhancement of training delivery through innovative Public-Private Partnership (PPP) models that promote sustainability, industry alignment, and institutional efficiency.

Accordingly, STEVTA intends to explore the outsourcing of operations and management of approximately one-third of its institutes through suitable PPP mode ('Project'). This strategic initiative aims to improve service delivery, upgrade academic facilities, strengthen institutional governance, and enhance learning outcomes through structured engagement with qualified private partners.

In pursuit of this objective, STEVTA invites electronic bids from eligible individual firms or consortia—comprising technical, financial, and legal experts—to conduct a comprehensive feasibility study and provide end-to-end transaction advisory services. The scope of work includes assessing technical, financial, legal, institutional, and governance aspects, ensuring the proposed structure is sustainable, viable, and delivers value for money, in accordance with the Sindh Public Procurement Act, 2009, and the Sindh Public-Private Partnership Act, 2010, along with all relevant rules, regulations, and guidelines ('Assignment').

The consulting scope of services for the Project under this Assignment includes, but is not limited to, the following:

- Conduct through technical (including environmental and social), financial, and legal due diligence;
- Review legal, institutional, and regulatory framework, and identify potential bottlenecks with proposed solutions;

- Assess the Project existing infrastructure, facilities, inventories, equipment, and technical availabilities/ requirements;
- Develop, evaluate, and prioritize various options, incorporating SWOT, CBA, VFM, NPV, risk analysis for each option;
- Recommend a strategic way forward to the Government concerning planning, institutional arrangements, and financial viability;
- Analyze various PPP options with distinct structuring and risk allocation matrices;
- Developing and recommending strategies to link STEVTA institutes with industries and enterprises in specific location, based on their identified human resource needs, to ensure demand-driven skills development and employment placement;
- Identifying and upgrading facilities that cater to providing off the shelf of handing over of STEVTA institutes to industries and enterprises in or out of PPP mode.
- Organize market engagement activities, including a road show and early market interactions, to connect with and gather feedback from investors, financiers, lenders, interested parties, and potential stakeholders, aiming to firm-up transaction structure for the Project;
- Prepare bidding documents for bids solicitation from private parties under the preferred PPP modality; and
- Perform all tasks described in the RFP while collaborating closely with the Project's key stakeholders, primarily the Procuring Agency.

The procurement for this Assignment is being conducted in accordance with national competitive bidding procedure, using the quality-cost based selection method, as prescribed under the SPP Rules, 2010, and is open to all eligible bidders. The contract will be awarded to the bidder whose bid shall be determined to be the most advantageous, i.e., attaining the highest combined weighted technical and financial score following the criteria set out in the RFP Document.

Prospective bidders are required to submit only one (1) bid, comprising one (1) Technical Proposal and one (1) Financial Proposal, along with other applicable supporting documents, as identified in the RFP Document, electronically via the Sindh PPRA E-Pak Acquisition & Disposal System ('SPPRA EPADS'), no later than 15:00 hours PST on November 14, 2025 ('Bid Submission Deadline'). Physical Bids will not be accepted.

The Technical Proposals will be opened on the Bid Submission Deadline at 15:30 hours PST in the presence of the bidders' representatives, who may wish to attend, at the office address provided below. However, in the event of a public holiday or any unforeseen circumstance on the Bids Submission Deadline, bids, including the bid securities, shall be received and opened on the next business day at the same time and venue. Following the evaluation of Technical Proposals, bidders who have submitted responsive Technical Proposals in terms of the RFP Document shall be invited to attend the opening of the Financial Proposals.

Bidders are required to furnish, as part of the Technical Proposals, a scanned copy of Bid Security equivalent to PKR 7,500,000 (Pakistani Rupees Seven Million Five Hundred Thousand Only) in the form of a pay order/ demand draft/bank guarantee,

valid for twenty-eight (28) days beyond the bid validity period, issued by a scheduled bank of Pakistan in favor of **Managing Director**, Sindh Technical Education and Vocational Training Authority STEVTA. The original hard copy of Bid Security, sealed in an envelope, shall be submitted via mail/hand to the address below on or before Bid Submission Deadline.

Prospective bidders may acquire the RFP Document free of cost with effect from October 22, 2025, either: (a) physically, by submitting a written application at the address provided below, specifying their full name, address and contact details; or (b) electronically, by downloading from the websites of the **SPPRA EPADS** or **STEVTA Sindh** or from **PPP Unit** and notifying the Procuring Agency in writing through a letter or via email, its full name, address and contact details.

The Procuring Agency reserves all rights to: (a) cancel, modify, extend or reinitiate the bidding procedure; (b) accept or reject any bid or disqualify any or all bidders; (c) modify all or any dates stated in RFP Document; or (d) amend the RFP Document, Assignment's scope or make clarifications thereof, at any time in accordance with the SPP Rules.

The address for the issuance of RFP Document and the submission of the bid security is:

Attention: Director (PPP/IL), Sindh Technical & Vocational Training Authority

(STEVTA), Government of Sindh

Address: Sindh TEVTA HQ, ST-19, Block-6, Gulshan-e-Iqbal, Karachi.

Phone: +92 21 99244112-7 **Fax:** + 92 21 99244118 **Email:** ppp.fsta@gmail.com info@stevta.gos.pk

dr.lubnashah@gmail.com

Website: Procuring Agency - https://stevta.gos.pk/;

PPP Unit - https://www.pppunitsindh.gov.pk/;

SPPRA EPADS - https://portalsindh.eprocure.gov.pk/

Section II – Instructions to Consultants

Table of Contents

1.	Definitions	9
2.	Introduction	. 15
3.	Conflict of Interest	. 16
4.	Fraud and Corruption	. 18
5.	Integrity Pact	. 19
6.	Eligible Consultants	. 19
7.	Eligibility of SubConsultants	20
8.	Only One Proposal	20
9.	Proposal Validity	20
10.	Clarification and Amendment in RFP Documents	. 21
11.	Preparation of Proposals	. 22
12.	Language	. 22
13.	Technical Proposal Format and Content	. 22
14.	Financial Proposal	. 24
15.	Taxes	. 25
16.	Submission, Receipt, and Opening of Proposals	. 25
17.	Proposals Evaluation	26
18.	Evaluation of Technical Proposals	26
19.	Evaluation of Financial Proposals	. 27
20.	Negotiations	. 30
21.	Technical Negotiations	. 30
22.	Financial Negotiations	30
23.	Availability of Professional Staff/ Experts	. 31
24.	Award of Contract	31
25.	Confidentiality	. 31

Section II – Instructions to Consultants

- 1. Definitions
- 1.1 The following words and expressions shall have the meanings hereby assigned to them:
 - (a) 'Assignment' means the procurement of services ascribed thereto in the RFP (Section I Letter of Invitation) and Section II (Bid Data Sheet) of the RFP Document.
 - (b) 'Best Evaluated Bid' means, in the case of Public Private Partnership Projects, a bid that attains the highest score under criteria laid down in Rule 84 of the SPP Rules, read with the evaluation criteria specified in the respective bidding documents.
 - (c) 'Bid' means a tender or an offer, comprising a Technical Proposal and a Financial Proposal, submitted by a Bidder in response to and in accordance with the RFP Document.
 - (d) **'Bidder'** means a Person or Consortium that submits, or intends to submit, a Bid in response to this RFP Document.
 - (e) 'Bidding Procedure' or 'Bidding Process' means the procurement procedure under which the Bids are invited, received, opened, examined, and evaluated by the Procuring Agency for the purpose of Contract award, in accordance with this RFP Document, including the SPP Rules.
 - (f) **'Bid Price'** means the consultancy fee for providing services under this Assignment as quoted by the Bidder in its Financial Bid.
 - (g) 'Bid Security' means a financial guarantee provided by Bidder in the form of a pay order, demand draft, call deposit, bank guarantee, to demonstrate its commitment to the Assignment's Bidding Process.
 - (h) **'Board'** means the Public-Private Partnership Board established under Section 4 of the Sindh Public-Private Partnership Act, 2010.

- (i) **'Business Days'** means normal working days in the province, excluding Saturday, Sunday, and official Government holidays.
- (j) **'Calendar Days'** means any day of the week, including weekends and public holidays.
- (k) 'Conditional Bid' means a Bid that imposes conditions or deviates substantially from, modifies, or contravenes any of the terms, conditions, specifications, or requirements of this RFP Document.
- 'Conflict of Interest' means any situation (l) where: (i) a Bidder (or any party affiliated with the Bidder) provides, could provide, or could be perceived as providing, biased professional advice to the Procuring Agency to obtain an undue advantage for itself or those affiliated with it; (ii) a Bidder (or any party affiliated with the Bidder) receives or gives any remuneration, directly or indirectly, in connection with the Assignment, except as expressly provided for in the Contract; (iii) any engagement in consulting or other procurement activities of a Bidder (or any party affiliated with the Bidder) conflicts with its role or relationship with the Procuring Agency under the Contract; or (iv) an official of the Procuring Agency directly involved in the Bidding Process has a financial or economic interest, whether direct or indirect, in the outcome of the procurement.
- (m) 'Consortium' means a group of two or more Persons (which may include technical, financial, social & environmental, and legal members) lawfully associated to submit a single Bid.
- 'Consultancy Agreement' (n) Service or legally 'Contract' means binding the agreement, incorporating all terms and conditions (including general and special conditions, specifications, drawings, and the Terms of Reference/scope of the Assignment), to be executed between the Procuring Agency and the Bidder whose Bid is determined to be the Most Advantageous Bid, pursuant to the selection method and criteria specified in this

- RFP Document and in accordance with the SPP Rules.
- 'Consultant' means a professional entity (o) capable to study, design, organize, evaluate, and manage projects, or assess, evaluate, and provide specialist advice or technical assistance for policy-making, institutional includes reforms, and private entities, consulting firms, legal advisors, engineering firms, construction managers, management procurement agents, auditors. firms, international and multinational organizations, investment and merchant banks, universities, research institutions, government agencies, and nongovernmental organizations.
- (p) 'Detailed Design' means the final engineering and technical design of a Project, based on which the Project construction or development shall be undertaken by the concessionaire or Private Party following the execution of the concession agreement.
- (q) 'Data Sheet' means Section II of this RFP Document, which specifies conditions and information particular to this Assignment and supplements these Instructions to Consultants.
- (r) **'Eligible Bidder'** means a Bidder whose Technical Proposal is found to meet the eligibility and technical evaluation criteria specified in this RFP Document, thereby qualifying for the opening and evaluation of its Financial Proposal.
- (s) **'Financial Bid'** or **'Financial Proposal'** means the financial component of the Bid submitted by the Bidder in accordance with this RFP Document, detailing the costs for the Assignment.
- (t) 'Financial Close' means the stage at which all loan agreements are executed with lenders and the requisite equity is arranged by the Special Purpose Vehicle/Company (SPV) of the private party (the preferred bidder for Project implementation), ensuring that the complete funding required to implement the Project is secured to the full satisfaction of

- financing agreement conditions for loan disbursement.
- (u) 'Foreign Company' means any company or corporate body incorporated outside Pakistan that has an established place of business or liaison office in Pakistan, whether directly or through an agent, physically or via electronic mode, or otherwise conducts any business activity in Pakistan.
- (v) **'Government'** means the Government of Sindh.
- (w) 'International Financial Institution' means a financial institution established by more than one country and includes multilateral and regional development banks.
- (x) 'Instructions to Consultants' means this document (Section II of the RFP Document), which provides Bidders with all the information necessary for the preparation of their Bids.
- (y) 'Key Professional Staff' or 'Key Experts' means the core team of professionals proposed by the Bidder, possessing the requisite qualifications and experience, to undertake the key activities of the Assignment.
- (z) **'Letter of Award'** means the formal letter of acceptance of a Bid issued by the Procuring Agency to the Bidder whose Bid has been determined to be the Most Advantageous Bid, in accordance with the criteria and other terms and conditions set forth in this RFP Document.
- (aa) **'Lead Member'** means the financial member of a Consortium (being an enterprise, firm, or company registered as a National Company with the relevant authorities, as applicable, in Pakistan) designated with the primary responsibility to the Procuring Agency for leading and coordinating the execution of the entire Assignment.
- (bb) **'Letter of Invitation'** means the document included as Section I of this RFP Document, issued by the Procuring Agency to solicit Bids

- from Eligible Bidders in accordance with the SPP Rules.
- (cc) 'Most Advantageous Bid' means a Bid that:
 (i) meets all eligibility and qualification criteria;
 (ii) is found to be substantially responsive to all terms, conditions, and specifications set out in this RFP Document; and (iii) is evaluated as the highest-ranked Bid based on the quality and cost evaluation methodology, as further specified in this RFP Document.
- (dd) 'National Company' means any any enterprise, firm, or company established or incorporated in Pakistan in accordance with applicable Pakistani laws.
- (ee) 'PDF' means the portable document format used for the electronic submission of the Technical Proposal, Financial Proposal, and any other documents required under this Bidding Document via the SPPRA EPADS, in accordance with the Submission Guidelines.
- (ff) 'Person' means a consulting firm or legal entity (including a sole proprietorship, partnership, public or private company, or corporation incorporated in accordance with applicable laws) or a Consortium/Joint-Venture of such firms or entities formed in accordance with this RFP Document.
- (gg) **'PPP Policy Board'** means the Board constituted under Section 4, to perform the functions outlined under Section 5, of the Sindh Public-Private Partnership Act, 2010.
- (hh) 'Public Private Partnership' or 'PPP' means a contractual arrangement between a public sector agency and a private sector party, leveraging the expertise and resources of each partner to deliver public services or infrastructure, through an appropriate allocation of resources, risks, and rewards, to meet clearly defined public needs.
- (ii) 'Private Party' means a person or entity that enters into a PPP agreement with a Government Agency, and includes a foreign government, an entity owned or controlled by a

- foreign government, or a company incorporated under the laws of Pakistan.
- (jj) 'Procuring Agency' or 'Agency' means the department, as identified in the Data Sheet, which issues this RFP Document, manages the Bidding Process, and will enter into the Contract with the selected Bidder.
- (kk) 'Project' means a project implemented as a PPP in one of the infrastructure sectors listed in Schedule I of the Sindh Public-Private Partnership Act, 2010.
- (II) **'Proposals'** means the Technical Proposal and the Financial Proposal, submitted by a Bidder as a separate PDF files in accordance with the RFP Document.
- (mm) 'Request for Proposal' or 'RFP Document' means this Standard Bidding Document in its entirety, including all sections, forms, annexures, and any addenda or corrigenda subsequently issued by the Procuring Agency for the selection of a Bidder in accordance with the SPP Rules.
- (nn) 'Response Document' means a document issued by the Procuring Agency providing clarifications or responses to queries raised by prospective Bidders in connection with this RFP Document, in accordance with the SPP Rules.
- (oo) **'SPPRA'** means the Sindh Public Procurement Regulatory Authority, established under the Sindh Public Procurement Act, 2009.
- (pp) 'SPPRA EPADS' means the SPPRA Sindh e-Pak Acquisition & Disposal System (accessible via Public Procurement Regulatory Authority Sindh EPADS website), the link for which is provided in the Data Sheet.
- (qq) **'SPP Rules'** means the Sindh Public Procurement Rules, 2010, as amended from time to time, and includes any instructions, guidelines, regulations, or orders issued thereunder.

- (rr) **'Standard Bidding Documents'** means the documents notified by the Authority for the preparation of Bids in a uniform manner.
- (ss) 'Submission Guidelines' means step-by-step instructions, as may be amended from time to time by the SPPRA, for electronically submitting the Bid via the SPPRA EPADS utilizing the file uploading e-submission method, the link for which is provided in the Data Sheet.
- (tt) 'Technical Bid' or 'Technical Proposal' means the technical component of the Bid to be submitted by the Bidder in accordance with this RFP Document, detailing the approach, methodology, qualifications, and experience with supporting documents, as applicable, for undertaking the Assignment.
- (uu) 'Terms of Reference' or 'TOR' means the document included as Section V of this RFP Document, which explains the objectives, scope of work, activities, tasks to be performed, respective responsibilities of the Procuring Agency and the Bidder, expected results and deliverables of the Assignment, and payment mechanism to undertake the Assignment.
- 1.2 The words and expressions used but not specifically defined in the RFP Document shall have the same meaning as are assigned to them in the Sindh Public Procurement Act, 2009, and the Sindh Public-Private Partnership Act, 2010 (as amended). In the absence of a definition in said Acts, or rules framed thereunder, terms shall be interpreted according to their ordinary and common usage in the English language.

2. Introduction

- 2.1 The Procuring Agency, as named in the Data Sheet, will select a Bidder in accordance with the selection method and criteria specified in the Data Sheet and this RFP Document.
- 2.2 Eligible Bidders (shortlisted if so as applicable and mentioned in the Data Sheet) are invited to submit a Technical Proposal and a Financial Proposals, or a Technical Proposal only, as specified in the Data Sheet. The submitted Proposal(s) will form the basis for Contract negotiations and, ultimately, for a signed Contract with the selected Bidder.

- 2.3 Prospective Bidders are required to thoroughly familiarize themselves with all applicable laws, rules, and the terms and conditions contained within this RFP Document and to take them into account when preparing their Proposals. Bidders are encouraged to attend a pre-proposal conference if one is specified in the Data Sheet. Attendance at any such pre-proposal conference is optional, unless otherwise stated in the Data Sheet. Bidders may liaise with the Procuring Agency's designated representative, named in the Data Sheet, for clarifications in accordance with the procedures outlined herein.
- 2.4 Bidders shall bear all costs, expenses, and liabilities associated with the preparation and submission of their Proposals and any subsequent Contract negotiations. The Procuring Agency reserves the right, in accordance with the SPP Rules, to annul the Bidding Process or reject all Bids at any time prior to Contract award, without thereby incurring any liability to the affected Bidder(s) and without any obligation to inform the affected Bidder(s) of the grounds for the Procuring Agency's action.
- 2.5 Procuring Agency may provide certain facilities and inputs if, and as, specified in the Data Sheet.

3. Conflict of Interest

- 3.1.1 Bidders/ Consultants are required to provide professional, objective, and impartial advice and to hold the Procuring Agency interests paramount. They shall strictly avoid any conflict with other assignments or their own corporate or personal interests. Bidders have an unequivocal obligation to disclose to the Procuring Agency any situation of actual, potential, or perceived Conflict of Interest that impacts, or could impact, their capacity to serve the best interest of the Procuring Agency. Failure to disclose such situations may lead to the disqualification of the Bidder or the termination of its Contract, in addition to any other remedies available to the Procuring Agency under the SPP Rules.
- 3.1.2 Without limitation on the generality of the foregoing, Bidders/ Consultants (and any of their affiliates) shall be considered to have a Conflict of Interest and shall not be eligible for award of a Contract under, inter alia, any of the following circumstances:
 - (a) A Bidder/ Consultant that has been engaged by the Procuring Agency to provide goods, works, or services (other than consulting services) for

- a project, or any of its affiliates, shall be disqualified from providing consulting services related to those specific goods, works, or services. Conversely, a firm hired to provide consulting services for the preparation or implementation of a project, or any of its affiliates, shall be disqualified from subsequently providing goods, works, or services (other than consulting services that are a natural continuation of the initial assignment, if explicitly permitted) resulting from or directly related to the firm's consulting services for such preparation implementation.
- (b) A Bidder/ Consultants (including its personnel and sub-consultants) or any of its affiliates shall not be hired for any assignment that, by its nature, may place it in a position of conflict with another assignment of the Consultant/ Bidder being executed for the same Procuring Agency or for another Procuring Agency, if such conflict could impair its capacity to act in the best interest of the Procuring Agency.
- (c) A Consultant/ Bidder (including its personnel and sub-consultants) that has a business or family relationship with a member of the Procuring Agency's staff, or any member of a relevant committee or board of the Procuring Agency, who is directly or indirectly involved in any part of:
 - (i) the preparation of the Terms of Reference for this Assignment;
 - (ii) the selection process for such Assignment; or
 - (iii) the supervision or administration of the Contract resulting from such Assignment, may not be awarded a Contract unless the conflict has been demonstrably resolved in a manner acceptable to Procuring Agency and in accordance with applicable laws.

Conflicting Relationship

3.2 Government officials and civil servants may only be hired as Consultants (either individually or as part of a Bidder's team) if:

- (a) They are certified to be on leave of absence without pay from their official position;
- (b) They are not being hired by the agency for which they were working immediately prior to their leave, and a minimum specified period of six months;
- (c) They submit the requisite documents as identified in the Data Sheet; and
- (d) Their employment as a Consultant would not give rise to any Conflict of Interest, actual or perceived, as defined herein or under applicable law.

4. Fraud and Corruption

- 4.1 It is the Government's and the Procuring Agency's policy to require that Bidders, Consultants, suppliers, and contractors under contracts financed by public funds observe the highest standard of ethics during the procurement and execution of such contracts. In pursuit of this policy, the Procuring Agency adheres to the SPP Rules, which define, for the purposes of this provision, the terms set forth below as 'Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices':
 - (a) 'Coercive Practice' means impairing or harming, or threatening to impair or harm, directly or indirectly, any party or the property of any party to improperly influence the actions of a party, to achieve a wrongful gain, or to cause a wrongful loss to another party.
 - (b) 'Collusive Practice' means any arrangement between two or more parties to the procurement process or contract execution, designed to achieve an improper purpose, including influencing improperly the actions of another party or the Procuring Agency, or to establish prices at artificial, non-competitive levels, with or without the knowledge of the Procuring Agency, for any wrongful gain.
 - (c) **'Corrupt Practice'** means the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting, directly or indirectly, of anything of value to influence improperly the actions of another party or an official of the Procuring Agency in the procurement process or in contract execution.

- (d) 'Fraudulent Practice' means any act or omission, including a misrepresentation, that knowingly or recklessly misleads, or attempts to mislead, a party or the Procuring Agency to obtain a financial or other benefit or to avoid an obligation.
- 'Obstructive Practice' means deliberately (e) destroying, falsifying, altering, or concealing evidence material to an investigation or making false statements to investigators in order to materially impede an investigation by the competent Procuring Agency or other authorities into allegations of a corrupt, fraudulent, coercive, or collusive practice; and/or threatening, harassing, or intimidating any party to prevent it from disclosing its knowledge of matters relevant to investigation or from pursuing the investigation; or (ii) acts intended to materially impede the exercise of the Procuring Agency's inspection and audit rights provided for under the SPP Rules and the Contract.

Pursuant to SPP Rule 35, a Procuring Agency can, inter alia, disqualify or blacklist a Bidder or Consultant found to be indulging in any Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices. Such debarment or blacklisting shall be duly publicized and communicated to the SPPRA. Any Bidder or Consultant subject to such action shall be accorded an adequate opportunity of being heard prior to a final decision.

5. Integrity Pact

5.1 Pursuant to Rule 89 of the SPP Rules, each Bidder (in the case of a Consortium, each member), as part of its Technical Proposal, shall be required to submit a signed copy of an Integrity Pact in the format prescribed by the Authority and attached hereto as Appendix-A, for all procurements. Failure to submit the Integrity Pact may result in disqualification.

6. Eligible Consultants

6.1 If a shortlisting or pre-qualification process has been undertaken through a Request for Expression of Interest (REOI) in accordance with Rules 73 & 74 of the SPP Rules for the Contract(s) for which this RFP Document is being issued, only those firms (and, in the case of Consortium, with the same partner(s) and substantially the same Consortium structure as pre-qualified/shortlisted) that were formally pre-qualified or shortlisted are eligible to submit a Bid.

- 6.2 Bidders/ Consultants shortlisted as a result of a prior REOI process, if any, are eligible to participate, subject to the conditions stated in IT Clause 6.1.
- 7. Eligibility of Sub-Consultants
- 7.1 A shortlisted or pre-qualified Bidder/ Consultant (if applicable, as per ITC Clause 6) shall not be permitted to associate, for the purpose of this Bid, with other consultants or entities that participated in the shortlisting/pre-qualification process and failed to qualify, unless otherwise expressly permitted by the Procuring Agency in writing due to exceptional circumstances and in accordance with SPP Rules.
- 8. Only One Proposal
- 8.1 Each Bidder (including each member of a Consortium) may submit only one Bid in response to this RFP, either individually or as a partner in a Consortium. If a Bidder submits or participates in more than one Bid (either individually or as a partner in different Consortia), all such Bids involving that Bidder shall be disqualified. Furthermore, participation of the same sub-consultant, including individual experts or Key Professional Staff, in more than one Bid submitted by different Bidders is not allowed, and may result in the disqualification of such Proposals.

9. Proposal Validity

- 9.1 The Data Sheet shall indicate the required Proposal validity period, which shall not be more than ninety (90) Days for National Competitive Bidding (NCB) and one hundred and twenty (120) Days for International Competitive Bidding (ICB), from the Bid Submission Deadline. During this period, Bidders shall maintain the availability of the Key Professional Staff nominated in their Technical Proposal. The Procuring Agency will make its best effort to complete negotiations and award the Contract within this period. Should the need arise, however, the Procuring Agency may request Bidders, in writing, to extend the validity period of their Proposals in accordance with the SPP Rules.
- 9.2 Bidders who agree to such an extension shall confirm in writing:
 - (a) Their agreement to the extension of the Bid validity; and
 - (b) That they maintain the availability of all Key Professional Staff nominated in the Technical Proposal. Alternatively, if Key Professional Staff are no longer available, the Bidder may, with their confirmation of the extension,

propose replacement staff of equal or superior qualifications and experience for the Procuring Agency's review and approval. Such approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. The Procuring Agency will assess such replacements to ensure the Bidder's proposal remains responsive and capable. Bidders who do not agree to an extension request have the right to refuse, and their refusal shall not result in the forfeiture of their Bid Security, though their Bid will no longer be considered for award.

9.3 Bidders shall submit the required Bid Security, in the amount and form specified in the Data Sheet, along with their Technical Proposal. The Bid Security shall not exceed five percent (5%) of the estimated value of the Assignment stipulated in the Data Sheet. Failure to submit an acceptable Bid Security in a manner provided in the Data Sheet shall result in the rejection of the Bid.

10. Clarification and Amendment in RFP Documents

- 10.1 Bidders may request clarification of any part of this RFP Document in writing (or by email, as specified in the Data Sheet). Such requests must be received by the Procuring Agency at the address indicated in the Data Sheet no later than the date specified therein, which shall typically be at least five (5) Calendar Days prior to the deadline for submission of Bids. The Procuring Agency shall respond in writing (which may include email and posting on its website and/ or the SPPRA website) to such queries within three (3) Calendar Days of receipt, or as otherwise specified in the Data Sheet. The compiled queries and responses (without identifying the source of the inquiry) shall be communicated to all parties who have obtained the RFP Document directly from the Procuring Agency. Should the Procuring Agency deem it necessary to amend the RFP Document as a result of a clarification, it shall do so following the procedure under Clause 10.2.
- 10.2 At any time before the deadline for submission of Bids, the Procuring Agency may amend this RFP Document by issuing an addendum or corrigendum in writing. Any such addendum or corrigendum shall be considered an integral part of the RFP Document and will be communicated in writing (email or registered post or courier and posting on its website and the SPPRA EPADS website) to all Bidders who have obtained the RFP Document. Bidders shall acknowledge receipt of

all amendments in writing to the Procuring Agency. To give Bidders reasonable time to take an amendment into account in preparing their Bids, the Procuring Agency may, at its discretion, particularly if the amendment is substantial, extend the deadline for the submission of Bids in accordance with the SPP Rules.

11. Preparation of Proposals

- 11.1 In preparing their Proposal, Bidders are expected to examine in detail all sections and requirements of this RFP Document. Material deficiencies in providing the information requested (including, but not limited to, deviations from scope, insufficient demonstration of experience, lack of qualification of personnel, or non-compliance with eligibility criteria or minimum qualification score) may result in the rejection of a Bid.
- 11.2 The Data Sheet will indicate either the estimated number of Professional Staff-months or the total available budget for the Assignment, but not both. Bidders shall base their Proposals on the specific parameter (staff-months or budget) provided by the Procuring Agency in the Data Sheet.

12. Language

12.1 The Proposal, as well as all correspondence and documents relating to the Bid exchanged by the Bidder and the Procuring Agency, shall be written in the language specified in the Data Sheet. Supporting documents and printed literature furnished by the Bidder may be in another language provided they are accompanied by an accurate translation of the relevant passages into the language specified in the Data Sheet, in which case, for purposes of interpretation of the Bid, the language specified in the Data Sheet for translation shall govern. While not mandatory, it is desirable that the Bidder's Key Professional Staff possess a working knowledge of regional languages of Pakistan relevant to the Assignment's location.

13. Technical Proposal Format and Content

- 13.1 While preparing the Technical Proposal, Bidders shall give due attention to the following:
 - (a) If a considers that it does not possess all the requisite expertise for the Assignment, it may associate with other firms or entities in a Consortium or through a sub-consultancy arrangement, as appropriate and permissible under the Data Sheet, to achieve a full range of expertise. International Consultants are encouraged to seek the participation of local Pakistani Consultants by entering a partnership

- as a Consortium or subcontracting part of the Assignment, subject to SPP Rules and any specific requirements in the Data Sheet.
- (b) For Assignments on a staff-time basis, the estimated number of professional staff-months, if provided, will be given in the Data Sheet. The Bidder's proposal shall, however, be based on the number of professional staff-months estimated by the Bidder itself as necessary to complete the Assignment. For fixed-budget based assignments, the available budget will be stated in the Data Sheet, and the Bidder's Financial Proposal shall not exceed the budget.
- (c) It is desirable that majority of the Key Professional Staff proposed are permanent employees of the Bidder or have an established and stable working relationship with the Bidder or its constituent members (in case of a Consortium/JV).
- (d) Proposed Key Professional Staff must, at a minimum, possess the experience and qualifications indicated in the Data Sheet and/or Terms of Reference, preferably including experience working under similar geographical and contextual conditions.
- (e) Alternative professional staff for any single position shall not be proposed, and only one Curriculum Vitae (CV) shall be submitted for each Key Professional Staff position identified.
- 13.2 Depending upon the nature of the Assignment, the Bidder shall provide the following information, using the standard forms provided in Section III of this RFP Document, and indicating whether a Full Technical Proposal (FTP) or a Simplified Technical Proposal (STP) is required as specified in the Data Sheet:
 - (a) A brief description of the Bidder's organization (and of each Consortium member, if applicable) and an outline of recent experience on assignments of a similar nature. For each such assignment, the outline should indicate, inter alia, the profiles of the staff involved, the duration of the assignment, the contract amount, and the firm's specific involvement and responsibilities (Form TECH-2).

- (b) Any comments or suggestions on the Terms of Reference, and on the data, list of services, and facilities to be provided by the Procuring Agency, if any (Form TECH-3).
- (c) The proposed staff team composition by specialty, tasks that would be assigned to each staff team member, and their proposed time allocation and involvement (Form TECH-5).
- CVs, recently signed by both the proposed Key (d) Professional Staff and an authorized representative of the Bidder submitting the Proposal. Key information in the CVs should include the number of years working for the members), Bidder its academic qualifications, professional certifications, and the degree of responsibility held in various relevant assignments, as further detailed in the Data Sheet (Form TECH-6).
- (e) Estimates of the total staff input (professional and support staff; staff time) needed to carry out the Assignment, supported by bar chart diagrams showing the time proposed for each Key Professional Staff team member (Form TECH-7).
- (f) A detailed description of the proposed methodology, work plan for performing the Assignment, staffing plan, and approach to monitoring and quality assurance, including monitoring of training if the Data Sheet specifies training as a major component of the Assignment (Form TECH-4).
- (g) Any additional information and documents requested in the Data Sheet.
- 13.3 The Technical Proposal shall not include any financial information. Any Technical Proposal containing financial information may be declared non-responsive.
- 14. Financial Proposal
- 14.1 The Financial Proposal shall be prepared using the attached Standard Forms (Section IV of this RFP Document). It shall list all costs associated with the Assignment, including, but not limited to:
 - (a) Remuneration for staff (distinguishing between international, national, field, and home office

rates, as applicable and specified in the Data Sheet or forms); and

(b) Reimbursable expenses as indicated and defined in the Data Sheet (if and as applicable, travel, accommodation, report printing, etc.).

Alternatively, if so permitted or required by the Data Sheet, the Bidder may provide its own detailed list of costs aligned with the prescribed structure. If appropriate, these costs should be broken down by activity and deliverable. All activities and items described in the Technical Proposal must be priced separately in the Financial Proposal. Activities and items described in the Technical Proposal but not priced in the Financial Proposal shall be deemed to be included in the prices of other activities or items.

15. Taxes

- 15.1 The selected Bidder and its personnel will be responsible for payment of all applicable taxes (including but not limited to income tax, sales tax, stamp duty, and service charges) levied by the federal, provincial, or local governments in Pakistan, at the rates prevailing on the date of invoicing or payment as per applicable tax laws, or as stipulated in the Contract, unless the Bidder or the Assignment is expressly exempted by a competent tax authority under relevant law. The Procuring Agency may deduct applicable withholding taxes at source as per prevailing tax laws.
- 16. Submission, Receipt, and Opening of Proposals
- 16.1 Each Bidder (in the case of a Consortium, any member) shall register itself as a 'Supplier' on SPPRA EPADS by creating a dedicated account. The Bidder is responsible for ensuring its compliance with this requirement prior to the Bid Submission Deadline. The submission of the Bid shall be in accordance with any instructions set out for the 'single-stage two-envelope' procedure in the Submission Guidelines.
- 16.2 The Proposal shall contain no interlineations or overwriting, except as necessary to correct errors made by the Bidder, in which case such corrections shall be initialled by the person or persons duly authorized to sign the Proposal. Submission letters for both the Technical and Financial Proposals should be in the format of Form TECH-1 of Section III and Form FIN-1 of Section IV, respectively. All pages of the original Technical and Financial Proposals shall be

- initialled by an authorized representative of the Bidder. The authorization for the representative shall be in the form of a written power of attorney, which must accompany the Technical Proposal.
- 16.3 Bidder shall prepare scanned copies of original Technical Proposal and Financial Proposal, each as a separate PDF file entitled 'Technical Proposal' and 'Financial Proposal'. These PDF files, as part of the Bid, shall be submitted in accordance with instructions set out for the 'single-stage two-envelope' procedure of the Submission Guidelines.
- 16.4 Bids shall be submitted electronically via the SPPRA EPADS address indicated in the Data Sheet no later than the date and time specified in the Data Sheet ('Bid Submission Deadline'), or any extension thereof granted by the Procuring Agency. Any Bid, including an original copy of Bid Security, received by the Procuring Agency after the Bid Submission Deadline shall be declared late, rejected, and returned unopened to the Bidder. Bidders are solely responsible for ensuring Bids, including original copies of their Bid Securities, are delivered on time. To avoid delays, Bidders sending their Bid Security via courier are advised to dispatch them well in advance of the Bid Submission Deadline.
- 16.5 The Procuring Agency shall, at this Technical Proposals opening, publicly open and read out all Bids (Technical Proposals only) received by the Bid Submission Deadline at the date, time and place specified in the Data Sheet in the presence of Bidders' designated representatives, who choose to attend.
- 16.6 If the Technical Proposal and Financial Proposal (or any part thereof) are submitted together in one PDF file, other than as specified in the Instructions to Consultants, the entire Bid may be rejected. If any document required to be submitted with the Technical Proposal, is submitted with the Financial Proposal, or if any document required to be submitted with Financial Proposal is submitted with the Technical Proposal, such document shall not be considered for evaluation and may also form the basis of rejection of a Bid.
- 16.7 The Financial Proposals shall remain secured and unopened on the SPPRA EPADS until the specified date and time of their opening, as communicated in advance by the Procuring Agency to the Bidders.

- 16.8 Only Technical Proposals which are read out and recorded during the Bid opening shall be considered for evaluation as per the requirements of the RFP Document. No Bid shall be rejected at the time of opening of Technical Proposals except for late Bids, in accordance with ITC Clause 16.4.
- 16.9 At the Bid opening the Procuring Agency shall neither discuss the merits of any Bid nor reject any Bid (except for late Bids, in accordance with ITC Clause 16.4). Following the opening of the Technical Proposals, the Procuring Agency shall prepare a record that shall include, as a minimum the name of the Bidder, and any other details such as the Procuring Agency/ Consultant Selection Committee may consider appropriate. Bidders' representatives who are present shall be requested to sign the record. The omission of a Bidder's signature on the record shall not invalidate the contents and effect of the record.

17. Proposals Evaluation

- 17.1 From the time the Proposals are opened to the time the Contract is awarded, Bidders should not contact the Procuring Agency or any of its officials or evaluators on any matter related to their Technical and/or Financial Proposal, except for formally seeking or providing clarifications as permitted under this RFP. Any effort by a Bidder to influence the Procuring Agency in the examination, evaluation, ranking of Proposals, or recommendation for award of Contract may result in the immediate rejection of that Bidder's Proposal and may also lead to other penalties as per SPP Rules.
- 17.2 Evaluators of Technical Proposals shall not have access to the Financial Proposals until the technical evaluation process, including any required approvals, is formally concluded and the results announced.

18. Evaluation of Technical Proposals

18.1 The evaluation committee, appointed by the Procuring Agency, shall evaluate the Technical Proposals based on their responsiveness to the Terms of Reference and by applying the evaluation criteria, sub-criteria, and point system specified in the Data Sheet. Each responsive Proposal will be given a technical score (St). A Proposal shall be rejected at this stage if it fails to achieve the minimum technical qualifying score indicated in the Data Sheet or is found to be non-responsive to material requirements of the RFP Document.

In the case of Quality-Based Selection (QBS), Selection Based on Consultant's Qualifications (CQS), and Single-Source Selection (SSS), the highest-ranked Consultant or the firm selected on a single-source basis (as applicable per the selection method) is invited to negotiate its Proposal and the Contract, based on both the Technical Proposal and the (subsequently opened) Financial Proposal submitted.

Public Opening and Evaluation of Financial Proposals: (Applicable for Least Cost Selection (LCS), Quality and Cost-Based Selection (QCBS), and Fixed Budget Selection (FBS) Methods Only)

- 18.2 After the technical evaluation is completed and approved, the Procuring Agency shall notify in writing those Bidders whose Proposals have secured the minimum qualifying technical score, informing them of the date, time, and location for the public opening of Financial Proposals. A reasonable time shall be allowed for Bidders' representatives to attend the meeting for the opening of Financial Proposals. Bidders' attendance at the opening of Financial Proposals is optional.
- 18.3 Financial Proposals of those Bidders whose Technical Proposals failed to meet the eligibility criteria or did not secure the minimum qualifying technical score shall be returned unopened to them after the bid validity period expired or Contract awarded to the successful Bidder.
- 19. Evaluation of Financial Proposals
- 19.1 Financial Proposals shall be opened publicly in the presence of the Bidders designated representatives who choose to attend. At the opening, the names of the Bidders whose Technical Proposals met the minimum qualifying score, their technical scores, and the presence of their Financial Proposal will be announced. The Financial Proposal of each technically qualified Bidder will then be inspected to confirm that it has remained sealed and unopened. These Financial Proposals will then be opened one by one. The Bidder's name and total proposed Bid Price from each Financial Proposal shall be read aloud and recorded.
- 19.2 The Bid Evaluation Committee will examine the submitted Financial Proposals to confirm they are complete and to correct any computational errors. When correcting computational errors:

- (a) In case of a discrepancy between a partial amount (sub-total or unit price multiplied by quantity) and the total amount, the partial amount or the result of the unit price multiplication shall prevail, and the total amount shall be corrected accordingly, unless, in the opinion of the Bid Evaluation Committee, there is an obvious misplacement of the decimal point in a unit price, in which case the line item total as quoted shall govern and the unit price shall be corrected.
- (b) In case of a discrepancy between amounts in words and amounts in figures, the amount in words will prevail, unless the amount expressed in words is related to an arithmetic error, in which case the amount in figures shall prevail subject to (a) above.
- (c) Activities, services, and items described in the Technical Proposal but not priced in the Financial Proposal shall be assumed to be included in the prices of other activities, services, or items. No separate payment will be made for items not priced.
- 19.3 Least Cost Selection (LCS) Method: If the LCS method is specified in the Data Sheet, the Bid from the technically qualified Bidder found to have the lowest evaluated Financial Proposal (after correction of any arithmetical errors) shall be deemed the Most Advantageous Bid and accepted for award, subject to any required verifications.
- 19.4 Quality and Cost-Based Selection (QCBS) Method: If the QCBS method is specified in the Data Sheet, the lowest evaluated Financial Proposal (Fm) from a technically qualified Bidder shall be awarded the maximum financial score (Sf) of 100 points. The financial scores (Sf) of the other technically qualified Financial Proposals shall be computed as indicated in the Data Sheet, typically utilizing the formula: Sf=100×Fm/F, where F is the evaluated price of the Financial Proposal under consideration. Proposals shall subsequently be ranked according to their combined technical (St) and financial (Sf) scores, using the weights (T = the weight assigned to the Technical Proposal; P = the weight assigned to the Financial Proposal; wherein T + P = 100%) indicated in the Data Sheet. The combined score (S) shall be calculated as

follows: $S = (St \times T/100) + (Sf \times P/100)$. The Bidder achieving the highest combined technical and financial score (S) shall be deemed to have submitted the Most Advantageous Bid and shall be invited for negotiations or Contract signing, as applicable.

19.5 **Fixed-Budget and Quality-Based Selection Method:** In the instance of Fixed-Budget and Quality-Based Selection, the Procuring Agency shall select the Bidder that submitted the highest-ranked Technical Proposal.

20. Negotiations

20.1 Negotiations shall be conducted on the date and at the address stipulated in the Data Sheet. The invited Bidder shall, as a prerequisite for attendance at said negotiations, confirm the availability of all Key Professional Staff enumerated in its Proposal. Failure to satisfy such a requirement may result in the Procuring Agency proceeding to negotiate with the next-ranked Bidder. Representatives conducting negotiations on behalf of the Bidder must possess written authorization to negotiate and conclude a Contract.

21. Technical Negotiations

21.1 Technical Negotiations shall encompass a discussion of the Technical Proposal, the proposed technical approach and methodology, work plan, organization and staffing, and any suggestions proffered by the Bidder to improve the Terms of Reference. The Procuring Agency and the Bidder shall finalize the Terms of Reference, staffing schedule, work schedule, logistics, and reporting mechanisms. documents shall subsequently be incorporated into the Contract as the 'Description of Services'. Minutes of negotiations, duly signed by the Procuring Agency and the Bidder, shall become an integral part of the Contract.

22. Financial Negotiations

22.1 If applicable, it shall be the responsibility of the Bidder, prior to the commencement of financial negotiations, to contact the relevant local tax authorities to ascertain the tax liability to be borne by the Bidder under the Contract. Financial negotiations shall include, if necessary, clarification of the Bidder's tax liability and the manner in which such liability shall be reflected in the Contract, and shall also reflect any agreed-upon technical modifications in the cost of the services. The Bidder shall provide the Procuring Agency with the information on remuneration rates as described in the

Appendix attached to Section IV (Financial Proposal - Standard Forms of this Request for Proposal (RFP)).

23. Availability of Professional Staff/ Experts

23.1 Having selected the Bidder based, inter alia, upon an evaluation of the proposed Key Professional Staff, the Procuring Agency expects to negotiate a Contract on the basis of the Key Professional Staff named in the Technical Proposal. Prior to Contract negotiations, the Procuring Agency shall require assurance that the Key Professional Staff will be available. The Procuring Agency shall not consider substitutions during Contract negotiations unless it is mutually agreed by both parties that undue delay in the selection process renders such substitution unavoidable, or for reasons such as death or medical incapacity of the proposed personnel. If this is not the case, and if it is established that Key Professional Staff were included in the Proposal without confirmed availability, the Bidder may be disqualified. Any proposed substitute, if accepted by the Procuring Agency, shall possess qualifications and experience equivalent to or exceeding those of the original candidate and must be submitted by the Bidder within the period specified in the letter of invitation to negotiate.

24. Award of Contract

- 24.1 Subsequent to the completion of negotiations, if any, the Procuring Agency shall award the Contract to the selected Bidder. Within fifteen (15) days of the execution of the Contract, the Procuring Agency shall publish on the website of the Authority and on its own website, if such a website exists, the results of the Bidding Process. Such publication shall identify the Bid by its procurement identifying number, if any, and shall include information such as the evaluation report, the form of contract, the letter of award, and the bill of quantities or schedule of requirements, as may be applicable.
- 24.2 Prior to the execution of the Contract, the Bidder shall be required to submit a performance security at the rate stipulated in the Data Sheet.
- 24.3 The Bidder shall commence the Assignment on the date and at the location specified in the Data Sheet.

25. Confidentiality

25.1 Information pertaining to the evaluation of Proposals and recommendations concerning awards shall not be disclosed to Bidders who submitted Bids, or to other persons not officially concerned with the procurement process, until the publication of the bid evaluation

results or the award of the Contract. Any unauthorized use of confidential information related to the procurement process by any Bidder may result in the rejection of its Proposal.

Section II – Instructions to Consultants

Bid Data Sheet

The following specific data for the services to be procured under this Assignment shall complement, supplement, or amend the provisions of the Instructions to Consultants (ITC). Whenever there is a conflict, the provisions herein shall prevail over those in the Instruction to Consultants (ITC).

	•	,
ITC Ref.		Description
ITC 1.1 ITC 2.1	The Procuring Agency:	Sindh Technical Education & Vocational Training Authority Address: Sindh TEVTA HQ, ST-19, Block-6, Gulshan-e-Iqbal, Karachi. Website: https://stevta.gos.pk/ E-mail: ppp.fsta@gmail.com
		Phone: + 92 21 99244112-7 Fax: + 92 21 99244118
	The Assignment title is:	Feasibility Study and Transaction Advisory Services for outsourcing operation and management Sindh Technical and Vocational Education and Training Institutes under Public-Private Partnership Mode
	The RFP reference no. is:	STEVTA-PPPN/PROC-STEV/2025-26
	The market approach is:	National competitive bidding – open to all the Eligible Bidders (individual firms or their Consortia)
	The Bidding Procedure:	Single stage two envelope in accordance with terms Rule 46(2) read with Rule 75(2), using the Quality and Cost Based Selection (QCBS) Method as prescribed under Rule 72(3) of the SPP Rules
ITC 2.2	Proposal: Technical and	Financial Proposals shall be submitted barate PDF file via SPPRA EPADS in hission Guidelines.

A pre-proposal conference (pre-bid meeting) will be held: 3rd

November, 2025 at STEVTA Conference room @ 1500 Hours

ITC 2.3

ITC 2.5 The Procuring Agency may provide facilities and inputs that may include:

- Access to relevant reference documents or information;
- Access to Project required sites as part of Assignment;
- Feedback and approvals on relevant reports from time to time;
- Any other support necessary for Assignment's smooth execution.
- Bidder (in the case of a Consortium, each member thereof) shall undertake to sign an **Integrity Pact** as per the prescribed format and in accordance with the instructions outlined in this RFP Document.
- ITC 6 Shortlisted Consultants may associate with other shortlisted ITC 7 Consultants: Not applicable the Bidding Process is open to all the Eligible Bidders.
- **ITC 8.1** Alternative bids **shall not** be considered in any case.
- The Proposals shall remain valid for **ninety (90) days** effective from the Technical Proposals' opening date or up to November 14, 2025, whichever is later.
- A scanned copy of the original Bid Security shall be required as part of the Technical Proposal. The Bid Security shall be not less than 7,500,000 (Pakistani Rupees Seven Million and Five Hundred Thousand Only) issued from of a pay order or demand draft or bank guarantee, valid for twenty-eight (28) days beyond the Bid Validity Period and issued by a scheduled bank in Pakistan in favor of the Managing Director, Sindh Technical Education and Vocational Training Authority (STEVTA). The Bid Security, in original, shall be submitted in a sealed envelope on or before the Bid Submission Deadline at Procuring Agency's address provided below:

Attention: Director (PPP/IL), Sindh Technical Education and

Vocational Training Authority

Address: Sindh TEVTA HQ, ST-19, Block-6, Gulshan-e-Igbal

City: Karachi

ITC 10.1 Clarifications may be requested no later than five Calendar Days prior to the Bid Submission Deadline. The address for requesting clarifications is:

Attention: Director (PPP/IL), Sindh Technical Education and

Vocational Training Authority

Address: Sindh TEVTA HQ, ST-19, Block-6, Gulshan-e-Iqbal

City: Karachi

Phone: +92 21 99244112 – 7

Email: ppp.fsta@gmail.com; dr.lubnashah@gmail.com;

and info@stevta.gos.pk.

Note: The Procuring Agency shall issue clarifications in response to prospective Bidders' written queries, provided such queries are received within the stipulated time ('Response Document'). The Response Document(s) shall be posted on the Procuring Agency's website and communicated to prospective Bidders who obtained the RFP Document directly from the Procuring Agency. Prospective Bidders are required to regularly access the websites to obtain such updates concerning the Assignment. Alternatively, prospective Bidders may confirm their intention to submit a Bid by sending an email with the subject line "Feasibility study and transaction advisory services for outsourcing the operation and management of Sindh Technical and Vocational Education and Training institutes Project under PPP" to the email addresses provided above, to receive updates issued by the Procuring Agency prior to the Bid Submission Deadline.

- Any information deemed necessary to extend the Bid Submission Deadline or amend the RFP Document subsequent to its issuance and prior to the Bid Submission Deadline shall be circulated through an advertising notice in newspapers and posted on the SPPRA and Procuring Agency websites, in accordance with the SPP Rules. The Procuring Agency shall similarly communicate this information to all prospective Bidders who have obtained the RFP Document, in line with ITC Clause 10.1 of this Bid Data Sheet.
- The language of the submitted Bid shall be in **English**.
 All correspondence shall be exchanged in **English**.
 Supporting documents and literature requiring translation shall be translated into **English**.

ITC 13.1(a) Maximum number of Consortium total members shall be: Four (4), ITC 1.1(I) This shall include the Lead Member (compulsory being a financial member), technical members, and legal member of Consortium

In the case of a Consortium, the Technical Proposal shall be accompanied by a certified true copy (scanned) of the **Consortium Agreement**, which must contain the following:

- i. The date and place of execution of the Consortium Agreement;
- ii. The purpose of the Consortium (which must include details of the contract's scope for which the Consortium is submitting a Bid);
- iii. A clear and definite description of the proposed administrative arrangements for the management and execution of the Assignment (it is expected that the Consortium's Lead Member would be authorized to incur liabilities, receive instructions, and manage all reporting requirements on time, for and on behalf of all members of the Consortium);
- Delineation of duties, responsibilities, and scope of work to be undertaken by each member of the Consortium for the proposed services;
- v. An undertaking that the constituent firms are jointly and severally liable to the Procuring Agency for the performance of services;
- vi. The duties, responsibilities, and powers of the Lead Member; and
- vii. The authorized representative of the Consortium.
- The format of the Technical Proposal to be submitted is: A Full Technical Proposal (FTP) containing all requisite information, including, but not limited to, a description of the approach, methodology, work plan for performing the Assignment, team composition, task assignments, work schedule, Curricula Vitae (CVs) of the proposed Key Professional Staff, details of the Bidder's organization(s) and experience(s), comments on the Terms of Reference, and comments on the counterpart staff and/ or facilities. Submission of Technical Proposal in any other format shall lead to Bid being deemed non-responsive to RFP Document's requirements.

ITC 13.2(f) Training is a specific component of this Assignment: No

Bidders shall quote their Bid Prices in **Pak Rupees (PKR)**, using the standard forms as applicable, while submitting Bids to the Procuring Agency. The Contract shall be on a **fixed price or lump sum basis** (as further set out in this RFP's Section V – Terms of Reference), payable to the Bidder (in case of a Consortium, respective members of the Consortium as stipulated in the invoice submitted by the Consortium's Lead Member to the Procuring Agency) in PKR, subject to the satisfactory completion of respective milestones as specified in the Terms of Reference within this RFP Document.

Amounts payable by the Procuring Agency to the Bidder under the Contract are subject to local taxation, stamp duty, and service charges, as applicable at the Bid Submission Deadline. The Bidder shall incorporate all the applicable taxes into the Bid Price, subject to any exemption explicitly stated therein; otherwise, Procuring Agency shall presume that such applicable taxes are included in the Bid Price.

ITC 16 ITC 1.1(00) ITC 1.1(rr) Bidder shall submit Bid using its dedicated account via the SPPRA EPADS https://portalsindh.eprocure.gov.pk/. The Bid Security, in the original form, shall be submitted on or before the Bid Submission Deadline at the address provided in the Data Sheet ITC Clause 9.3.

The deadline for Bid submission and opening is:

Date: November 14, 2025

Time: 15:00 & 15:30 Hrs. for submission and opening of Bid **Venue:** The venue for opening of Bids and submission of original

Bid Security in a sealed envelope is the Committee Room of the Sindh Technical Education and Vocational Training Authority, Sindh TEVTA HQ, ST-19, Block-6,

Gulshan-e-Iqbal, Karachi.

Physical Bids, except for the original copy of Bid Security placed in a sealed envelope, submission is not permitted in any case whatsoever.

ITC 18.1 Eligibility Criteria: The Bidder (whether an individual firm or ITC 13.1 Consortium) shall qualify the following eligibility requirements as of the Bid Submission Deadline for further assessment (technical evaluation and marking):

- Nationality: Bidder (in case of Consortium, the Lead Member)
 must be incorporated or established in Pakistan, as evidenced by
 its registration documents (Memorandum & Articles of
 Association or equivalent documents constitutional documents as
 applicable under the law);
- Registration: Bidder (in case of a consortium, each member as applicable) must possess valid registration with: (i) Federal Board of Revenue (FBR); (ii) Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) or relevant provincial tax authority; and (iii) Pakistan Engineering Council as Consulting Engineers, if applicable to the services;
- Active Taxpayer: Bidder (in case of Consortium, each member) be on the Active Taxpayer List of the FBR and have filed income tax returns for the last three (3) years;
- Power of Attorney and Consortium Agreement: Bidder (in case of Consortium, each member) shall submit a power of attorney, as required by this RFP Document, for the authorized signatory. Additionally, a Bidder applying as a Consortium shall submit the Consortium Agreement with its Technical Proposal;
- Financial Turnover: Bidder must have an average annual financial turnover of at least PKR 100 million during the last three years, verifiable from financial statements audited by a certified chartered accounting firm in Pakistan or as applicable. In the case of a Consortium, the Lead Member must individually demonstrate an average annual financial turnover of at least PKR 70 million, and the other members of the Consortium collectively must demonstrate an average annual financial turnover of at least PKR 30 million during the last three (3) financial years;
- Experience: The Bidder (or, in the case of a Consortium, the Technical Member) must have successfully completed at least three (03) assignments during the last fifteen (15) years in the TVET or education sector. These assignments must have involved conducting feasibility studies, transaction advisory services, technical assessments, and/or modernization planning of education or TVET institutions. At least one (1) assignment multi-site must have involved conducting institutional assessments across a minimum of twenty-five (25) facilities, covering aspects such as equipment upgradation, infrastructure modernization, curriculum alignment with industry standards, and/or operational improvement of TVET institutes or other educational institutes;
- Key Professional Staff: Bidder (in case of Consortium, any member, as applicable) must possess and shall propose all eligible Key Professional Staff as listed under Technical Evaluation Criteria. Each Consortium member firm must assign at least one (1) Key Professional Staff, and the Lead Member firm

- shall assign at least two (2) Key Professional Staff members to be Assignment;
- Government Owned Organization: If a Bidder (in case of Consortium, any member) is a government-owned organization, it must demonstrate that it is: (i) legally and financially autonomous; and (ii) operates under commercial law;
- Conflict of Interest: Bidder (in case of Consortium, each member) must not have any Conflict of Interest arising from prior or existing contracts or relationships, which could materially affect its potential involvement or its ability to comply with the obligations set out herein with respect to this Assignment;
- Non-performing Contracts and Litigation History: Bidder (in case of Consortium, each member) must provide details of: (i) non-performing contracts, along with cogent reasons for such non-performance; and (ii) any disputes, litigation, or arbitration cases currently in progress or pending adjudication (if any);
- Non-blacklisting/ Non-debarment: Bidder (in case of Consortium, each member) must not be: (i) blacklisted by any public sector organization and IFIs; (ii) debarred by the Procuring Agency as of the Bid Submission Deadline; (iii) currently subject to bankruptcy or liquidation proceeding; and (iv) convicted of fraud, corruption, collusion, or money laundering.

Key Professional Staff Eligibility: Refer to pages # 47to 49 of RFP **Technical Evaluation Criteria:** Refer to pages # 44 to 49 of RFP.

Bidders must carefully read and note the following conditions, which form an integral part of the evaluation criteria:

- Foreign entities participating in the Bidding Process as Consortium members (excluding the Lead Member) shall provide relevant registration documents and other applicable evidence from their respective regulatory and/or registration bodies in their home country;
- ii. The credentials and experience of sub-consultants are not eligible for scoring. Furthermore, the global experience of a parent company or associated firms abroad is not eligible for scoring unless the foreign company itself is a formal member of the Bidding Consortium;
- iii. The Procuring Agency shall consider the Bidder's experience to the extent of contracts directly awarded in Bidder's name (not that of their staff, or any parent or subsidiary company). Secondly, claimed experience or contracts (including respective milestones) must have been satisfactorily completed, as evidenced by supporting documents submitted with the Proposal;
- iv. Any Conditional Bid submitted by a Bidder shall be treated as non-responsive during the evaluation of Technical or Financial Proposal, as the case may be;
- v. If a Consultant is notified as qualified and awarded the Contract based on the experience of a Foreign Company within its

Consortium, then requisite Professional Staff from that Foreign Company must be available (physically or virtually, as required by the Procuring Agency) during contract negotiations, if any are held, and must be fielded along with other Consortium members during the execution of targeted milestones.

ITC 18.1 ITC 13.1 ITC 6.1 ITC 2.2 **Eligibility Criteria (Mandatory Documents):** Bidder (in the case of a Consortium, <u>each member</u> as applicable) shall enclose with the Technical Proposal copies of the following documents, including but not limited to (refer to the Eligibility and Technical Evaluation Criteria for further details):

- Documents checklist, properly filled and duly signed and stamped by the Bidder's authorized representative (Appendix – D);
- Registration details, including Memorandum & Articles of Incorporation (or equivalent documents of constitution/ association) and documents of registration of the legal entity (including NTN, SRB, and PEC registration, as applicable);
- Company profile, describing the nature of business and field of experience;
- iv. Consortium Agreement in consonance with ITC Clause 13.1(a) of this Bid Data Sheet (in case of a Consortium only);
- v. Power of Attorney (Appendix C);
- vi. Integrity Pact (Appendix A);
- vii. Audit reports, including balance sheets, income statements, and cash flow statements for the last three (3) years, duly issued and verified by a certified chartered accounting firm;
- viii. Income tax returns filed for the last three (3) years;
- ix. Confirmation of submission of the Bid security financial instrument (without disclosing the amount thereof in the Technical Proposal);
- x. Qualification record indicating contracts scope and references proving completion of the requisite number of contract(s) within the last fifteen (15) years;
- xi. Work orders, contract agreements with a clear scope of work, and completion certificates (or any other substantial evidence sufficient to prove the completion of claimed experience);
- xii. CVs along with the latest educational degree or certificate of the Key Professional Staff dedicated to this Assignment;
- xiii. Details of historical contracts non-performance, if any, with reasons leading to such non-performance;
- xiv. Litigation history, including details of pending cases and the nature of such litigations;
- xv. An affidavit confirming that the Bidder (in case of Consortium, each member) is not blacklisted by any public or private sector organization (Appendix-B);
- xvi. Any other document, including Bid Forms and referred to in the ITC, associated with qualifying the eligibility criteria, technical evaluation criteria, and other terms and conditions.

The prospective Bidders must carefully read and note the following conditions, which form an integral part of the evaluation criteria:

 Any Foreign Company participating in the Bidding Process as a Consortium member (other than the Lead Member) shall submit

- relevant documents issued by respective authorities/jurisdiction of its home country;
- ii. In case a Bidder proposes a Key Professional Staff member currently employed by a public sector organization, a 'No Objection Certificate (NOC)', confirming the competent authority's approval of extraordinary leave for that individual in the event a Contract award be submitted with the individual's CV to attain allocated points under the technical evaluation;
- iii. Bidder (whether an individual firm or Consortium) must provide valid documents against each criterion/sub-criterion as required for qualifying under the eligibility and technical evaluation criteria. Proposal received with incomplete document(s) or without concrete evidence(s) as required under the RFP Document, including those specifically mentioned under the RFP Documents Checklist, shall be marked as disqualified or assigned zero marks, as applicable;
- iv. The Procuring Agency reserves the right to cross-verify information or request additional information/documents if deemed necessary during the Bidding Process to ensure the reliability of information and capability of the Bidder. Non-submission by the Bidder of required document(s) or information within the specified timeframe may result in disqualification or non-scoring of a particular credential, as applicable;
- v. The Procuring Agency shall not consider any revised document or any unsolicited information relating to eligibility and technical evaluation criteria provided by a Bidder against its submitted Proposal during the Proposal evaluation stage for the purposes of its qualification and the assignment of marks. In other words, only those projects, staff, etc., that are part of, or proposed along with, the originally submitted Proposal at the time of the Bid Submission Deadline will be considered.

ITC 19.4 The lowest evaluated Financial Proposal (Fm) is given the maximum financial score (Sf) of 100 points.

The formula for determining the financial scores (Sf) of all other Proposals is calculated as follows:

Sf = 100 x Fm/ F, in which "Sf" is the financial score of the Proposal under consideration, "Fm" is the price of the lowest evaluated Financial Proposal, and "F" is price of Financial Proposal under consideration.

Weights given to the Technical (St) and Financial (Sf) Proposals are: T (Technical) = 80 and P (Financial) = 20, (Where T + P = 100)

Proposals are ranked according to their combined technical score (St) and financial score (Sf) using these weights, as follows:

Combined Score S = (St x T%) + (Sf x P%)

- ITC 20.1 The expected date and address for contract negotiation is January 09, 2026, or immediately after the issuance of the Letter of Award to the Bidder whose bid shall be determined to be the Most Advantageous Bid. Negotiations will be held at the Committee Room of the Sindh Technical Education and Vocational Training Authority, Sindh TEVTA HQ, ST-19, Block-6, Gulshan-e-Iqbal, Karachi.
- The Procuring Agency shall award the procurement Contract to the Bidder that qualifies the eligibility or preliminary evaluation criteria and attains the highest combined technical and financial score, determined using the Quality & Cost Based Selection (QCBS) method Most Advantageous Bid.
- The successful Bidder, whose Bid shall be determined and declared by the Procuring Agency as the Most Advantageous Bid, shall, upon receiving the Letter of Award, be required to furnish **performance security** equivalent to seven point five (7.5%) of the Contract or Bid Price. This security shall be in the form of a Bank Guarantee, valid for a period of twenty-eight (28) days beyond the specified Contract duration, issued by a scheduled bank in Pakistan in favor of 'Managing Director, Sindh Technical Education and Vocational Training Authority'.
- The expected date for commencement of services is January 30th, 2025, or immediately after the execution of the Contract by both parties.

		Technical Evaluation Criteria (ITC 18.1)	Мах					
·		Sub-Criteria and Points						
	Firm's experience (Max. Points =	1.1 General Experience (Maximum Points = 09)						
	Note: i. Points for a specific project or milestone completed by Consortium members will be assigned only once. Furthermore, if a milestone is completed or achieved through a specific Consortium member firm (e.g., a legal or financial firm), points will be allocated to that Consortium member firm exclusively, contingent upon said	1.1.1 The Bidder (in case of a Consortium, the technical member) shall have completed assignments relating to feasibility study and/or technical assessment of technical and vocational education and training institutes (TVET), or similar educational institutions, undertaken with public sector organizations, private sector entities, or international development partners within the last fifteen (15) years [1 point for each project]	03					
	firm's participation as a Consortium member in this procurement process; ii. Individual milestones within a single project, whether of a similar or varied nature, will be assessed separately for the purpose of awarding points; iii. Bidder's experience will be evaluated based on completed milestones for projects undertaken for public or private sector organizations, unless	1.1.2 Bidder's (in case of a Consortium, legal member) experience in preparing bidding package (bid document and draft agreement) for an infrastructure or social development or EPC or turnkey projects, with each project's minimum estimated value of PKR 1,000 million completed within the last ten (10) years [1 point for each project]	0:					
	expressly specified otherwise; iv. For projects listed under sub-criteria 1.1.1, 1.2.3, and 1.2.4, only the Bidder's experience with public sector clients will be considered. The client or counterparty for the completed milestone must be a verifiable public sector organization, as evidenced by contract documents; v. Scores will be awarded to a Bidder based on	1.1.3 Bidder's (in case of a Consortium, financial member) experience in developing financial model and/ or project structuring for infrastructure or social development or EPC or turnkey projects, with each project's minimum estimated value of PKR 1,000 million, completed within the last ten (10) years [1 point for each project]	0:					
	verifiable milestones achieved for a project.	1.2 Relevant Experience (Maximum Points = 50)						
	Acceptable verification includes submitted work orders, contract agreements (clearly defining the scope of work), completion certificates, or other substantial evidence acceptable in lieu of completion certificates; vi. For projects or assignments completed in currencies other than PKR, the historical exchange rate prevailing on the completion date of the respective milestone, as notified by the	1.2.1 The Bidder (in case of a Consortium, the technical member) shall demonstrate its specific experience in assignments involving the multi-site assessment, modernization, and upgradation of Technical and Vocational Education and Training (TVET) institutes, conducted for public sector organizations, private sector entities, or international development partners within the last fifteen (15) years. Such	20					
	State Bank of Pakistan, will be utilized for conversion to PKR;	assignments must have involved on-site technical surveys, gap analysis of training facilities, equipment specification, and alignment with modern industry standards [5 points for each project]						

vii. Points for completed projects or assignments will be awarded only once under the relevant category (i.e., either general or relevant experience), provided the project or assignment meets the stipulated criteria for that category; and Viii. Bidders must provide all supporting documents and evidence of experience and clearly reference these documents within the Checklist submitted as part of the Technical Proposal.	1.2.2	2.2.2 The Bidder (in case of a Consortium, the legal member) shall demonstrate its specific experience in preparing bidding packages (including RFP and draft PPP concession agreement, incorporating key performance indicators and risk-sharing mechanisms) relating to the outsourcing, management, or operation of technical and vocational training institutes (TVET) or other public educational facilities, within a Public–Private Partnership (PPP) framework, undertaken within the last fifteen (15) years. [5 points for each project]		
	1.2.3	Bidder's (in case of a Consortium, Financial Member) experience feasibility study, preparing financial model, preparing transaction Public–Private Partnership (PPP) projects, with each project's minin value of PKR 3,000 million completed within the last fifteen (15) year each project]	structuring for num estimated	15
tal Points (General and Relevant Expe	erienc	ee)		59
Key Professional Staff (Max	2.1	Financial Team:		06
Points = 27)		i. Financial Team Leader	4.0 points	
Note: The proposed staff (Financial, Technical, and		ii. Project Finance Specialist	2.0 points	
Legal) must qualify the following requirements to be eligible for attaining the points as detailed in this				
section (refer to the subsequent table illustrating the points weightage allocated to each staff member based	2.2	Technical Team:		
on qualification and relevant experience):		i. Technical Team Leader	4.0 points	
i. The individual must not exceed sixty (60) years of		ii. Senior TVET Specialist / Curriculum & Pedagogy Expert	3.0 points	
age as of the Bid Submission Deadline; ii. The individual must possess valid registration with		iii. Infrastructure & Facilities Engineer	2.0 points	
relevant professional bodies (PEC, ICAP,		iv. Equipment & Technology Specialist	2.0 points	
PCATP), as applicable under the laws or by-laws of their respective country. The proposed staff's		v. Industry Liaison & Labor Market Specialist	2.0 points	
registration number with the pertinent regulatory bodies, where applicable, must be stated in the		vi. Environmental Expert	1.0 points	
CV;		vii. Social Safeguard Specialist	1.0 points	
iii. Where applicable, NOC issued in respect of Key Professional Staff working with public sector				
organization strictly in terms of the RFP;	2.3	Legal Team:		06
iv. Points will be awarded based on the individual meeting the minimum qualification and		i. Legal Team Leader	4.0 points	
experience criteria specified in the scoring table herein.		ii. Legal Expert	2.0 points	
HOIGIII.				
al Points (Key Professional Staff)				2

3.	Financial Capability (Max. Marks		Average annual turnover of last three (3) years		04
= 4)			i. ≥ PKR 300 million	4.0 points	
	Note: The Bidder (in case of a Consortium, all members) shall submit audited financial statements		ii. ≥ PKR 200 million and < PKR 300 million	3.0 points	
for the last three (3) years. However, in the case of a Consortium, the financial capability of the Consortium Members combined shall be considered to meet the specified criteria.			iii. ≥ PKR 100 million and < PKR 200 million	2.0 points	
 4. Understanding of the Assignment and Proposed Methodology with Work Plance Assignment and Proposed Methodology (Max. Marks = 10) 4.1 Understanding of the Assignment and Proposed Methodology with Work Plance Assignmen					1(
			i. Appreciation and clarity of the Project with evidence of site visits	2.0 points	
			ii. Understanding of the Assignment's objectives	1.0 points	
			iii. Proposed quality methodology (concise, clear, and complete) for undertaking the Assignment	2.5 points	
			iv. Innovativeness or suggested changes with valid value additions for improvements in the Assignment's TORs	1.5 points	
		v. Clear stakeholders' management plan for the Assignment;		1.0 point	
			vi. Work plan and staffing schedule	1.0 point	
			vii. Existing commitments, engagements, and available strength with justification to complete the existing Assignment on time	0.5 point	
	viii. Assignment proposal submission with relevant information provided in a quality manner in terms of the RFP Document		0.5 point		
ron	d Total Points (Tachnical Evaluation	n Cri	torial		4
	d Total Points (Technical Evaluation if ying Points (Minimum 50% Points)		,		1

Note: Bidder (individual firm or Consortium) must attain at least 75 points St and 50% points under each category, as listed at Sr. # 1 to 4 tabulated above, to qualify for the opening of its Financial Proposal.

	Key Profession	al Staff (Points Weightage Assigned to	Each	Individual based on Qualification and Experience)		
Sr.	Key Professional Staff	Maximum Weightage (Qualification 25% and Relevant Experience 75%)				
1.	Financial Team	Qualification	Weight	Relevant Experience	Weight	
1.1	Financial Team Leader	CA/ CFA/ ICMA/ ACCA/ MBA (Finance) or equivalent	25%	≥ 10 years' experience in infrastructure related transaction advisory services	75%	
		Bachelor in Finance/ Accounting/ BA (Finance) or equivalent	15%	≥ 7 years and < 10 years ≥ 5 years and < 7 years ≥ 3 years and < 5 years	60% 40% 20%	
1.2	Project Finance Specialist	CA/ CFA/ ICMA/ ACCA/ MBA (Finance) or equivalent	25%	≥ 10 years' experience in developing financial models/ financial structuring for infrastructure related projects, with a financial close of minimum three (3) projects	75%	
		Bachelor in Finance/ Accounting/ BA (Finance) or equivalent	15%	≥ 7 years and < 10 years ≥ 5 years and < 7 years ≥ 3 years and < 5 years	60% 40% 20%	
2.	Technical Team				L	
2.1	Technical Team Leader	PHD in Engineering, or Technical Education or related field	25%	≥ 12 years of professional experience; proven leadership in at least two large-scale TVET feasibility/ modernization projects	75%	
		Bachelor's degree in TVET, Human Resource/ Science/ Engineering/ Information Technology or equivalent	15%	≥ 8 years of professional experience; proven leadership in at least two large-scale TVET feasibility/ modernization projects	60%	
2.2	Senior TVET Specialist/	Postgraduate Education/ TVET or relevant field	25%	≥ 10 years of experience in curriculum development, instructional design, and competency-based training;	75%	
	Curriculum & Pedagogy Expert	Bachelor's degree in Education/ TVET or relevant field	15%	≥ 7 years of experience in academic education, with expertise in curriculum development, teaching, and assessment or related projects	60%	
2.3	Infrastructure & Facilities Engineer	Postgraduate in Civil/ structural engineering or relevant field	25%	≥ 8 years of experience educational/training facility design and assessment	75%	

		Bachelor in Civil/ structural engineering or relevant field	15%	≥ 5 years' experience educational/training facility design and assessment	60%
2.4	Equipment & Technology Specialist	Master degree in Mechanical/ Electrical/ ICT Engineering or equivalent	25%	≥ 8 years' experience with TVET equipment specifications and procurement	75%
		Bachelor's degree in Mechanical/ Electrical/ ICT Engineering or equivalent	15%	≥ 5 years and < 8 years	60%
2.5	Industry Liaison & Labor Market Specialist	workforce development	25%	≥ 8 years of experience in employer engagement and skills mapping	75%
2.6	Environment Specialist	Master in Environmental Engineering or allied Environmental Sciences/ or equivalent	25%	≥ 15 years of experience in conducting environment- related assessment studies for infrastructure projects	75%
		Bachelor in Environmental Engineering	15%	≥ 10 years and < 15 years	60%
		or allied Environmental Sciences/ or		≥ 7 years and < 10 years	40%
		equivalent		≥ 5 years and < 7 years	20%
2.7	Social Safeguards Expert	Master in Social Sciences/ or equivalent	25%	≥ 15 years' experience in conducting studies pertaining to social aspects such as baseline/demographic studies, involuntary resettlement studies and plans, as per national/ provincial guidelines or IFIs standards.	75%
		Bachelor in Social Sciences/ or	15%	≥ 10 years and < 15 years	60%
		equivalent		≥ 7 years and < 10 years	40%
				≥ 5 years and < 7 years	20%
3.	Legal Team				
3.1	Legal Team Leader	LLM/ Bar at Law/ JD/ LPC/ or equivalent	25%	≥ 10 years' experience of legal advisory on social sector development projects	75%
		LLB/ or equivalent	15%	≥ 7 years and < 10 years	60%
				≥ 5 years and < 7 years	40%
0.0		LIM/B (I / IB/I BO	050/	≥ 3 years and < 5 years	20%
3.2	Legal Expert	LLM/ Bar at Law/ JD/ LPC or equivalent	25%	≥ 10 years' experience of drafting procurement documents e.g., EOIs, RFQ, RFP, Concession/ PPP agreements/ EPC contracts/ agreement negotiations	75%

LLB/ or equivalent	15%	≥ 7 years and < 10 years	60%
		≥ 5 years and < 7 years	40%
		≥ 3 years and < 5 years	20%

Section III - Technical Proposal

Table of Contents

[Comments in brackets [] provide guidance to the Consultants for the preparation of their Technical Proposals; they should be deleted from the Technical Proposals to be submitted.]

Refer to Reference Paragraph 13.2 of the Data Sheet for format of Technical Proposal to be submitted, and/ or paragraph 13.2 of Section 2 of the RFP for Standard Forms required and number of pages recommended.

Form TECH-1.	Technical Proposal Submission Form	.48
A.	Consultant's Organization and Experience Consultant's Organization Consultant Experience	.49 50
A.	Comments and Suggestions on the Terms of Reference an on Counterpart Staff and Facilities to be Provied by the PA On the Terms of Reference	
Form TECH-4.	Description of Approach, Methodology, and Work Plan for Perform the Assignment	_
Form TECH-5.	Team Composition and Task Assignments	.54
Form TECH-6.	Curriculum Vitae (CV) for Proposed Professional Staff	.55
Form TECH-7.	Staffing Schedule	.56
Form TECH 9	Work Schodula	57

Form Tech-1. Technical Proposal Submission Form

[Location, Date]

To: [Name and address of the Procuring Agency]

Dear Sirs:

We, the undersigned, offer to provide the consulting services for [Insert title of Assignment] in accordance with your Request for Proposal dated [Insert Date] and our Proposal. We are hereby submitting our Proposal, which includes this Technical Proposal and a Financial Proposal, each as a separate PDF file, via the SPPRA EPADS in accordance with the Submission Guidelines.

We hereby declare that all the information and statements made in this Proposal are true and accept that any misinterpretation contained in it may lead to our disqualification.

If negotiations are held during the period of validity of the Proposal, i.e., before the date indicated in the Data Sheet, we undertake to negotiate on the basis of the proposed staff. Our Proposal is binding upon us and subject to the modifications resulting from Contract negotiations.

We undertake, if our Proposal is accepted, to initiate the consulting services related to the Assignment not later than the date indicated in the Data Sheet.

We understand you are not bound to accept any Proposal you receive.

We remain,

Authorized Signature [In full and initials]:
Name and Title of Signatory:
Name of Firm:
Address:

Form Tech-2. Consultant's Organization and Experience

A. Consultant's Organization

[Provide here a brief (preferably not more than five pages) description of the background and organization of your firm/ entity and each associate for this Assignment.]

B. Consultant's Experience

[Using the format below, provide information on each assignment for which your firm, and each associate for this Assignment, was legally contracted either individually or as a corporate entity or as one of the major companies within an association, for carrying out consulting services similar to the ones requested under this Assignment. Use 50 pages.]

Assignment name:	Approximate value of contract (PKR):
Country: Location within country:	Duration of Assignment (months):
Name of procuring agency or purchaser:	Total No of staff-months of the Assignment:
Address:	Approx. value of the services provided by your firm under the contract (PKR):
Start date (month/ year): Completion date (month/ year):	No of professional staff-months provided by associated Consultants:
Name of associated Consultants, if any:	Name of senior professional staff of your firm involved and functions performed (indicate most significant profiles such as Project Director/Coordinator, Team Leader):
Narrative description of Project:	
Description of actual services provided by	your staff within the assignment:
Firm's Name:	

Form Tech-3. Comments and Suggestions on the Terms of Reference and on Counterpart Staff and Facilities to be provided by the Procuring Agency

A. On the Terms of Reference

[Present and justify here any modifications or improvement to the Terms of Reference you are proposing to improve performance in carrying out the Assignment (such as deleting some activity you consider unnecessary, or adding another, or proposing a different phasing of the activities). Such suggestions should be concise and to the point, and incorporated in your Proposal. Suggested changes for the improvement of the Assignment's Terms of Reference as part of the Form Tech-4 may also be reflected under this section.]

B. On Counterpart Staff and Facilities

[Comment here on the counterpart staff and/ or facilities to be provided by the Procuring Agency according to Paragraph Reference 2.5 of the Data Sheet including: administrative support, office space, local transportation, equipment, data, etc.]

Form Tech-4. Description of Approach, Methodology and Work Plan for Performing the Assignment

[Technical approach, methodology and work plan are key components of the Technical Proposal. Bidders are suggested to present their Technical Proposal (20 pages, preferably not exceeding 2,000 words per component – inclusive of charts and diagrams) divided into the following three chapters:]

- a. Technical Approach and Methodology,
- b. Work Plan, and
- c. Organization and Staffing;
- a) Technical Approach and Methodology. In this chapter, the Bidder should explain the understanding of the Assignment, approach to the services, methodology for carrying out the activities and obtaining the expected output, and the degree of detail of such output. The Bidder should highlight the problems being addressed and their importance and explain the technical approach the Bidder would adopt to address them. The Bidder should also explain the methodologies proposed to adopt and highlight the compatibility of those methodologies with the proposed approach. In addition, the Bidder shall suggest and address the following components separately using the bullet points (mention 'None' against the respective heading if no explanation or comments are required to be proposed by a Bidder):
 - Appreciation and clarity of the Project;
 - Understanding of the Assignment's objectives;
 - Proposed quality methodology (concise, clear, and complete);
 - Innovativeness or suggested changes with valid value additions for improvements in the Assignment's TORs;
 - Stakeholders management plan during undertaking the Assignment;
 - Existing commitments, engagements, and available strength with justification to complete the existing Assignment on time.
 - Suggested changes with valid value additions for improvements in the Assignment's Terms of Reference (the proposed suggestions and changes may include offering additional key tasks or resources reasonably required for bringing value additions or innovations for undertaking the Assignment);
 - Existing commitments, engagements, and available strength with justification.
- b) Work Plan. In this chapter, the Bidder should propose the main activities of the Assignment, their content and duration, phasing and interrelations, milestones (including interim approvals by the Procuring Agency), and delivery dates of the reports. The proposed work plan should be consistent with the technical approach and methodology, showing an understanding of the TOR and the ability to translate them into a feasible working plan. A list of the final documents, including reports, drawings, and tables to be delivered as final output, should be included here. The work plan should be consistent with the Work Schedule of Form TECH-8.
- c) Organization and Staffing. In this chapter, the Bidder should propose the structure and composition of the team. The Bidder should list the main disciplines of the Assignment, the key expert responsible, and proposed technical and support staff.]

Form Tech-5. Team Composition and Task Assignments

Professional Staff					
Name of Staff	Firm	Area of Expertise	Position Assigned	Task Assigned	
			3.00.3		

Form Tech-6. Curriculum Vitae (CV) for Proposed Professional Staff

1.	Proposed Position (only one candidate shall be	e nominated for each position):
2.	Name of Firm (insert name of firm proposing th	e staff):
3.	Name of Staff [Insert full name]:	
4.	Date of Birth:	Nationality:
5.	Education [Indicate college/university and spec giving names of institutions, degrees obtained,	
6.	Membership of Professional Associations (w	vith Registeration Number):
7.	Other Training [Indicate significant training si	
8.	Countries of Work Experience [List countries ten years]:	
9.	Languages [For each language indicate pr speaking, reading, and writing]:	
10	O.Employment Record [Starting with present p employment held by staff member since gradu (see format here below): dates of employment positions held]: To [Year]: Employer:	ation, giving for each employment, name of employing organization,
11	1.Detailed Tasks Assigned [List all tasks to be p	
12	2.Work Undertaken that Best Illustrates Canasigned [Among the Assignments in which the following information for those Assignments that tasks listed under point 11.]: Name of Assignment or project: Location: Main project features: Activities performed:	re staff has been involved, indicate t illustrate staff capability to handle Year: PA: Positions held:
13	3. Certificate	
de mi	the undersigned, certify that to the best of my knownscribes me, my qualifications, and my experient isstatement described herein may lead to myngaged.	ice. I understand that any wilful disqualification or dismissal, if
 [Si	Signature of staff member or authorized represent	Date: fative of the staff] Day/Month/ Year
-	ull name of authorized representative:	- •

Form Tech-7. Staffing Schedule¹

		Staff Input (in the form of bar chart) ²											Total Staff-Month Input			
	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	N	Home	Field ³	Total
gn			•	•	•	•		•	•	•		•	•	•	•	
	[Home] [Field]															
			l	I	ı	I		Subto	tal	l		I.	I.	_		
								•						•	•	
	[Home] [Field]															
]		1		1				tal	1		I	<u> </u>			
		[Field]	[Field] [Home] [Field]	[Home] [Field]	[Field] [Home] [Field]	[Field] [Field] [Home] [Field]	[Home] [Field]	[Home] [Field]	[Home] [Field] Subto	[Home] [Field] Subtotal [Home] [Field] Subtotal Subtotal Subtotal Subtotal	[Field]	[Field]	[Field]	[Field]	[Field] Subtotal [Home] [Field] Subtotal Subtotal Subtotal Subtotal Subtotal	Field

Full time input Part time input

For Professional Staff the input should be indicated individually; for Support Staff it should be indicated by category (e.g.: draftsmen, clerical staff, etc.).
 For Months are counted from the start of the Assignment. For each staff indicate separately staff input for home and field work.
 Field work means work carried out at a place other than the Consultant's hom/e office.

Form Tech-8. Work Schedule

No	Activity ⁴	Months ⁵												
		1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	N
1														
2														<u> </u>
3														
4														
5														
														<u> </u>
														<u> </u>
														<u> </u>
-														<u> </u>
														<u> </u>
-														
-														
n														

Indicate all main activities of the Assignment, including delivery of reports (e.g.: inception, interim, and final reports), and other benchmarks such as Procuring Agency approvals. For phased Assignments indicate activities, delivery of reports, and benchmarks separately for each phase.
 Duration of activities shall be indicated in the form of a bar chart.

Section IV – Financial Proposal

Standard Forms

[Comments in brackets [] provide guidance to the Consultants for the preparation of their Financial Proposals; they should be deleted from the Financial Proposals to be submitted.]

[Financial Proposal standard forms shall be used for the preparation of the Financial Proposal in accordance with ITC Clauses 13.2 & 24.1 of Section 2 of the RFP Document.]

Form FIN-1. Financial Proposal Submission Form	59
Form FIN-2. Summary of Costs	60
Form FIN-3. Breakdown of Costs by Activity	61
Form FIN-4. Breakdown of Remuneration	62
Form FIN-5. Breakdown of Reimburseable Expenses	64
Appendix. Financial Negotiations - Breakdown of Remuneration Rates	66

Form FIN-1. Financial Proposal Submission Form

[Location, Date]

To: [Name and address of PA]

Dear Sirs:

We, the undersigned, offer to provide the consulting services for [Insert title of Assignment] in accordance with your Request for Proposal dated [Insert Date] and our Technical Proposal. Our attached Financial Proposal is for the sum of [Insert amount(s) in words and figures⁶].

Our Financial Proposal shall be binding upon us subject to the modifications resulting from Contract negotiations, up to expiration of the validity period of the Proposal, i.e. before the date indicated in Paragraph Reference 9.1 of the Data Sheet.

Commissions and gratuities paid or to be paid by us to agents relating to this Proposal and Contract execution, if we are awarded the Contract, are listed below⁷:

Name and Address of Agents	Amount and Currency	Purpose of Commission or Gratuity
We understand you are not b	oound to accept any Propos	al you receive.
We remain,		
Yours sincerely,		
Authorized Signature [In full		
Name and Title of Signatory: Name of Firm:	· 	
Address:		

⁶ Amounts must coincide with the ones indicated under Total Cost of Financial proposal in Form FIN-2

If applicable, replace this paragraph with: "No commissions or gratuities have been or are to paid by us to agents relating to this Proposal and Contract execution."

Form FIN-2. Summary of Costs⁸

Item No.	Description of Services	Costs (in PKR)
1.	Phase I – Transaction Preparation	
	Inception Report	
	Technical Due Diligence / Feasibility	
	Environmental Social Impact Assessment	
	Legal and Regulatory Assessment	
	Financial Viability Assessment	
	PPP Option Analysis	
	 Market Assessment and Transaction Preparation Report 	
	As mentioned in the RFP	
2.	Phase II: Transaction Implementation	
	Bidding Package	
	Submission of Bid Evaluation Report	
	Issuance of Letter of Award/ Acceptance	
3.	Phase III: Transaction Negotiation & Financial Close	
	Transaction negotiation and signing of Concession	
	Financial Close	
Total C	ost of Financial Proposal (inclusive of all the taxes)9	

The Bidder may update this form considering its own requirement; however, the payment shall be made as per the milestones satisfactory completed and defined under the Conditions of Contract of RFP Document.

Total cost must be inclusive of all applicable taxes as payble by the Consultant according to law of the land. This cost shall cover all the costs associated with performing the Assignment as detailed under the TOR. The Contract Price payments shall be made in accordance with the Conditions of Contract available with the RFP.

Form FIN-3. Breakdown of Costs by Activity¹⁰

Group of Activities: 11	Description: 12			
Cost Component		Cos	sts ¹³	
	[Indicate Foreign Currency # 1]	[Indicate Foreign Currency # 2]	[Indicate Foreign Currency # 3]	[Indicate Local Currency]
Remuneration ¹⁴			•	
Reimbursable Expenses				
Subtotals				

NOT APPLICABLE

¹⁰ Form FIN-3, if applicable, shall be filled at least for the whole Assignment. In case some of the activities require different modes of billing and payment (e.g.: the Assignment is phased, and each phase has a different payment schedule), the Consultant shall fill a separate Form FIN-3 for each group of activities. For each currency, the sum of the relevant Subtotals of all Forms FIN-3 provided must coincide with the Total Costs of Financial Proposal indicated in Form FIN-2.

¹¹ Names of activities (phase) should be the same as, or correspond to the ones indicated in the second column of Form TECH-8

¹² Short description of the activities whose cost breakdown is provided in this Form.

¹³ Indicate between brackets the name of the foreign currency, use the same columns and currencies of Form FIN-2.

¹⁴ For each currency, Remuneration and Reimbursable Expenses must respectively coincide with relevant total costs indicated in Forms FIN-4, and FIN-5.

Form FIN-4. Breakdown of Remuneration¹⁵

[This Form FIN-4 shall only be used when it is indicated in Reference Paragraph 14.1 of the Data Sheet that remuneration shall be Time Based]

Group of Activit	Position ¹⁷	Staff-month	Input19	Indicate	Indicate	Indicate	[Indicate cast
name.	Position		Input ¹⁹	[Indicate	[Indicate	[Indicate	[Indicate Local
		Rate ¹⁸	(Staff-months)	Foreign	Foreign	Foreign	Currency]
				Currency # 1]	Currency # 2]	Currency # 1]	
Foreign Staff							
		[Home]					
		[Field]					
Lasal							
Local		<u> </u>					
		[Home]					
		[Field]					
			Total Costs				

NOT APPLICABLE

¹⁵ Form FIN-4 shall be filled for each of the Forms FIN-3 provided.

¹⁶ Professional Staff should be indicated individually; Support Staff should be indicated per category (e.g.: draftsmen, clerical staff).

¹⁷ Positions of Professional Staff shall coincide with the ones indicated in Form TECH-5.

¹⁸ Indicate separately staff-month rate and currency for home and field work.

¹⁹ Indicate, separately for home and field work, the total expected input of staff for carrying out the group of activities or phase indicated in the Form.

²⁰ Indicate between brackets the name of the foreign currency. Use the same columns and currencies of Form FIN-2. For each staff indicate the remuneration in the column of the relevant currency, separately for home and field work. Remuneration = Staff-month Rate x Input.

Form FIN-4. Breakdown of Remuneration²¹

[This Form FIN-4 shall only be used when it is indicated in Reference Paragraph 14.1 of the Data Sheet that remuneration shall be Lump-Sum. Information to be provided in this Form shall only be used to establish payments to the Consultant for possible additional services requested by the PA].

Name ²²	Position ²³	Staff-month Rate ²⁴
Foreign Staff		·
		[Home]
		[Field]
Local Staff	. I	I
Local Otali		[Hama]
		[Home] [Field]
		[Field]

²¹ Form FIN-4 shall be filled in for the same Professional and Support Staff listed in Form TECH-7.

²² Professional Staff should be indicated individually; support staff should be indicated per category (e.g. draftsmen, clerical staff).

²³ Positions of the Professional Staff shall coincide with the ones indicated in Form TECH-5.

²⁴ Indicate separately staff-month rate and currency for home and field work.

Form FIN-5. Breakdown of Reimbursable Expenses²⁵

[This Form FIN-5 shall only be used when it is indicated in Reference Paragraph 5.6 of the Data Sheet that remuneration shall be Time Based]

No	Description ²⁶	Unit	Unit Cost ²⁷	Quantity	[Indicate Foreign Currency # 1] ²⁸	[Indicate Foreign Currency # 2]	[Indicate Foreign Currency # 1]	[Indicate Local Currency]
	Per diem allowances	Day						
	International flights ²⁹	Trip						
	Miscellaneous travel expenses	Trip						
	Communication costs between [Insert place]							
	Drafting, reproduction of reports							
	Equipment, instruments, materials, supplies, etc.							
	Shipment of personal effects	Trip						
	Use of computers, software	•						
	Laboratory tests							
	Subcontracts							
	Local transportation costs							
	Office rent, clerical assistance							
	Training of the PA's personnel ³⁰							

NOT APPLICABLE

²⁵ Form FIN-5 should be filled for each of the Forms FIN-3 provided, if needed.

²⁶ Delete items that are not applicable or add other items according to Paragraph Reference 3.6 of the Data Sheet.

²⁷ Indicate unit cost and currency.

²⁸ Indicate between brackets the name of the foreign currency. Use the same columns and currencies of Form FIN2. Indicate the cost of each reimbursable item in the column of the relevant currency. Cost = Unit Cost x Quantity.

²⁹ Indicate route of each flight, and if the trip is one- or two-ways.

³⁰ Only if the training is a major component of the Assignment, defined as such in the Data Sheet or TOR.

Form FIN-5. Breakdown of Expenses

[This Form FIN-5 shall only be used when it is indicated in Reference Paragraph 14.1 of the Data Sheet that remuneration shall be Lump Sum. Information to be provided in this Form shall only be used to establish payments to Consultant for possible additional services requested by the PA]

No	Description ³¹	Unit	Unit Cost ³²
	Per diem allowances	Day	
	International flights ³³	Trip	
	Miscellaneous travel expenses	Trip	
	Communication costs between [Insert place] and [Insert place]		
	Drafting, reproduction of reports		
	Equipment, instruments, materials supplies, etc.		
	Shipment of personal effects	Trip	
	Use of computers, software		
	Laboratory tests		
	Subcontracts		
	Local transportation costs		
	Office rent, clerical assistance		
	Training of the PA's personnel ³⁴		

NOT APPLICABLE

³¹ Delete items that are not applicable or add items according to Paragraph Reference 3.6 of the Data Sheet.

³² Indicate unit cost and currency.³³ Indicate route of each flight, and if the trip is one- or two-ways.

³⁴ Only if the training is a major component of the Assignment, defined as such in the Data Sheet or TOR.

Appendix. Financial Negotiations – Breakdown of Remuneration Rates

(Not to be used when cost is a factor in the evaluation of Proposals)

1. Review of Remuneration Rates

- 1.1 The remuneration rates for staff are made up of salary, social costs, overheads, fee that is profit, and any premium or allowance paid for Assignments away from headquarters. To assist the firm in preparing financial negotiations, a Sample Form giving a breakdown of rates is attached (no financial information should be included in the Technical Proposal). Agreed breakdown sheets shall form part of the negotiated contract.
- 1.2 The Procuring Agency is charged with the custody of funds from Government of Sindh and is expected to exercise prudence in the expenditure of these funds. The Procuring Agency is, therefore, concerned with the reasonableness of the firm's Financial Proposal, and, during negotiations, it expects to be able to review audited financial statements backing up the firm's remuneration rates, certified by an independent auditor. The firm shall be prepared to disclose such audited financial statements for the last three years, to substantiate its rates, and accept that its proposed rates and other financial matters are subject to scrutiny. Rate details are discussed below.
 - i. Salary: This is the gross regular cash salary paid to the individual in the firm's home office. It shall not contain any premium for work away from headquarters or bonus.
 - ii. Social Costs: Social costs are the costs to the firm of staff's non-monetary benefits. These items include, inter alia, social security including pension, medical and life insurance costs, and the cost of a staff member being sick or on vacation. In this regard, the cost of leave for public holidays is not an acceptable social cost nor is the cost of leave taken during an Assignment if no additional staff replacement has been provided. Additional leave taken at the end of an Assignment in accordance with the firm's leave policy is acceptable as a social cost.
 - **iii. Cost of Leave:** The principles of calculating the cost of total days leave per annum as a percentage of basic salary shall normally be as follows:

Leave cost as per percentage of salary³⁵ =
$$\frac{Total \ days \ leave \ x \ 100}{[365 - w - ph - v - s]}$$

It is important to note that leave can be considered a social cost only if the Procuring Agency is not charged for the leave taken.

iv. Overheads: Overhead expenses are the firm's business costs that are not directly related to the execution of the Assignment and shall not be

 $^{^{35}}$ Where w = weekends, ph = public holidays, v = vacation, and s = sick leave.

reimbursed as separate items under the contract. Typical items are home office costs (partner's time, nonbillable time, time of senior staff monitoring the project, rent, support staff, research, staff training, marketing, etc.), the cost of staff not currently employed on revenue-earning projects, taxes on business activities and business promotion costs. During negotiations, audited financial statements, certified as correct by an independent auditor and supporting the last three years' overheads, shall be available for discussion, together with detailed lists of items making up the overheads and the percentage by which each relates to basic salary. The Procuring Agency does not accept an add-on margin for social charges, overhead expenses, etc., for staff who are not permanent employees of the firm. In such case, the firm shall be entitled only to administrative costs and fee on the monthly payments charged for subcontracted staff.

- v. Fee or Profit: The fee or profit shall be based on the sum of the salary, social costs, and overhead. If any bonuses paid on a regular basis are listed, a corresponding reduction in the profit element shall be expected. Fee or profit shall not be allowed on travel or other reimbursable expenses, unless in the latter case an unusually large amount of procurement of equipment is required. The firm shall note that payments shall be made against an agreed estimated payment schedule as described in the draft form of the contract.
- vi. Away from Headquarters Allowance or Premium: Some Consultants pay allowances to staff working away from headquarters. Such allowances are calculated as a percentage of salary and shall not draw overheads or profit.
- vii. Subsistence Allowances: Subsistence allowances are not included in rates, but are paid separately and in local currency. No additional subsistence is payable for dependents-subsistence rate shall be same for married and single team members.
- **viii.** Standard rates for the particular country may be used as reference to determine subsistence allowances.

2. Reimbursable Expenses

2.1 Financial negotiations shall further focus on such items as out-of-pocket expenses and other reimbursable expenses. These costs may include, but are not restricted to, cost of surveys, equipment, office rent, supplies, international and local travel, computer rental, mobilization and demobilization, insurance, and printing. These costs may be either unit rates or reimbursable on the presentation of invoices, in foreign or local currency.

3. Procuring Agency Guarantee

3.1 The Payments to the firm, including payment of any advance based on cash flow projections covered by a Procuring Agency guarantee, shall be made according to an agreed estimated schedule ensuring the Consultant regular payments in local and foreign currency, as long as the services proceed as planned.

Sample Form

	nsulting Firm: signment:	Country: Date:	
	Consultant's Representa	tion Regarding Costs and Charges	
We	hereby confirm that:		
a.	records and reflect the current sal	ttached table are taken from the firm's payroll aries of the staff members listed which have the normal annual salary increase policy as	
b. attached are true copies of the latest sa		st salary slips of the staff members listed;	
C.	•	vances indicated below are those that the this Assignment to the staff members listed;	
d.	 the factors listed in the attached table for social charges and overhead are bas on the firm's average cost experiences for the latest three years as represent by the firm's financial statements; and 		
e.	said factors for overhead and socia means of profit-sharing	charges do not include any bonuses or other	
<u> FN I a</u>	one of Octoor time Time I		
ĮNa	ame of Consulting Firm]		
Sig	nature of Authorized Representative		
Nar	me:		
Title	e:		

Consultant's Representation Regarding Costs and Charges

(Expressed in [insert name of currency])

Perso	sonnel 1 2 3	4 5	6	7	8				
Name	Position	Basic Salary per Working Month/ Day/ Year	Social Charges ³⁶	Overhead	Subtotal	Fee ³⁷	Away from Headquarter Allowance	Proposed Fixed Rate per Working Month/ Day/ Hour	Proposed Fixed Rate per Working Month/ Day/ Hour
Head (Office								
Fie	ld								

³⁶ Expressed as percentage of 1³⁷ Expressed as percentage of 4

Section V - Terms of Reference

SUN	IMARY/ OVERVIEW OF THE ASSIGNMENT
Procuring Agency	Sindh Technical Education and Vocational Training Authority (STEVTA), Government of Sindh
Assignment Title	Feasibility study and transaction advisory services for outsourcing the operations and management of Sindh technical and vocational education and training institutes under public-private partnership mode
Assignment Description	Under this Assignment, the Consultant shall be required to undertake the activities in three dependent and sequential phases, i.e., Transaction Preparation, Bid Management, and Transaction Negotiation & Achievement of Financing Close, subject to the approval of Competent Authority i.e. PPP Policy Board, after each phase. The initial phase will require the Consultant to review the institutional & regulatory framework, undertake technical financial & legal viability assessments, and conceptualize plans relating to the Assignment. Subsequently, upon satisfactory completion of the first phase, the Consultant will be required to develop a marketing strategy to sensitize potential investors' participation under the bidding process for the Project, assist the Procuring Agency while undertaking the procurement, including bidding, transaction negotiation, and achieving financial closure at the end of the Assignment, as further detailed in the TOR's Assignment Scope.
Contract Duration	18 months/ Milestones Based
Contract Type	Lump-sum or Fixed
Procurement Framework	Sindh Public Procurement Act, 2009, including the SPP Rules, Regulations, Orders or Instructions framed thereunder.
Market Approach	National competitive bidding
Selection Method	Quality cost-based selection
Commencement Date (Expected)	January 30, 2026, or immediately after signing the Contract.

1. PROJECT BACKGROUND

Technical education and vocational trainings are fundamental drivers of economic growth and social development. In Sindh, the Sindh Technical Education and Vocational Training Authority (STEVTA), Government of Sindh (GoS), is responsible for providing technical education hands-on, industry-relevant training in diverse trades and emerging sectors. Its strategic vision is aligned with key national and global development frameworks, including the UN Sustainable Development Goals (such as SDG-1 'No Poverty', SDG-4 'Quality Education', SDG-9 'Industry, Innovation &

Infrastructure'), the Pakistan National Skills Strategy 2018, the Sindh Education Sector Plan 2025-30, and URAAN Pakistan 2024-29. These frameworks collectively emphasize inclusive, equitable access to quality education and workforce readiness.

Currently, STEVTA operates a network of 259 facilities that impart vocational trainings to students across Sindh. Additionally, 540 private institutes provide technical and vocational training, bringing the total number of institutions in the province to 800, offering programs in fields such as engineering, IT, healthcare, and traditional trades.

Despite having a wide institutional network, STEVTA faces persistent structural challenges, including outdated infrastructure, insufficient and obsolete equipment, weak industry linkages, high operational costs, and low graduate employability. These constraints limit its ability to deliver demand-driven, market-responsive, and efficient technical and vocational education, thereby contributing to a growing skills mismatch in the province.

To address these challenges, the STEVTA Act, 2009 (Section 4, Clause VIII) empowers the Authority to facilitate public-private partnerships for enhancing technical education and vocational training delivery. In line with this mandate, STEVTA intends to engage Transaction Advisors to conduct a detailed feasibility and provide transaction advisory services to provide quality technical education in one-third (1/3) amounting to 83 institutes by outsourcing under PPP mode.

2. PROJECT CONCEPTUALIZATION

The Project had been conceived by the Sindh Technical Education and Vocational Training Authority (STEVTA), Government of Sindh (the 'Procuring Agency'), in line with its strategic objectives to enhance the quality and accessibility of technical and vocational education and training (TVET) in Sindh, to improve youth employability and contribution to the province's socio-economic development.

Initially, the Procuring Agency, through the PPP Unit of the Finance Department, submitted the Project proposal before the PPP Policy Board, which unanimously accorded approval to access the project development facility (PDF) funding for engaging transaction advisors as provided under Section 5 of the Sindh PPP Act, 2010.

In this regard, the Procuring Agency now invites the sealed proposals from the Eligible Bidders or Consultants (individual firms or Consortia) to conduct the feasibility study and to provide the transaction advisory services for outsourcing the operations and management of the Sindh technical and vocational education and training institutes ('Project') under public-private partnership mode ('Assignment') in accordance with the Sindh Public Procurement Rules, 2010 (the 'SPP Rules').

3. PROJECT RATIONALE AND OBJECTIVES

To provide access to quality technical education and vocational training in Sindh, the Project aims to maximize private sector engagement and develop an outcome-based, cost-effective skills development ecosystem, thereby improving youth employability and fostering inclusive economic growth in the province.

The Project objectives are to:

- i. Infrastructure Modernization and Technology Integration: Upgrade and modernize existing classrooms, laboratories, and workshops with state-of-the-art equipment, digital tools, and learning technologies to align with international best practices.
- ii. Industry Linkages and Market-Oriented Training: Collaborate with industries and employers to ensure training programs reflect current and emerging market demands, thereby improving employability in both national and international labor markets.
- iii. Sustainable and Cost-Efficient Operations: Introduce energy-efficient solutions, renewable energy (e.g., solar power), and optimized resource management systems to reduce operational costs and carbon footprints.
- iv. Enhanced Learning Environment and Student Retention: Improve physical and academic facilities to create a conducive learning atmosphere that attracts more students, reduces dropout rates, and enhances overall educational outcomes.
- v. Location-Based Industry Human Resource (HR) Development: Linking TVET institutes with industries operating within their geographic proximity to foster a demand-driven skills development ecosystem.
- vi. Design of the Shelf handing over of facility options: Development of a structured framework through which pre-assessed, technically sound, and investment-ready TVET facilities or project concepts can be seamlessly transferred to potential private sector partners, development agencies, or investors for implementation.
- vii. Digital and E-Learning Integration: Introduce blended learning models, online training modules, and smart classrooms to complement traditional training.
- viii. Capacity Building of Faculty and Staff: Provide training-of-trainers (ToT) and continuous professional development programs for instructors and administrators.
- ix. Entrepreneurship and Start-Up Incubation: Establish incubation centers within institutes to encourage innovation, start-ups, and self-employment among graduates.
- x. International Accreditation and Standards Alignment: Align curricula and training modules with international standards (e.g., NVQF, ISO, or sector-specific certifications) to improve global mobility of graduates.

- xi. Monitoring, Evaluation, and Continuous Improvement: Develop a performance monitoring system with KPIs for institutes to track progress and maintain accountability.
- xii. Technical Advisory/ Evaluation for Un-Solicited Proposals (USP): During the tenure the assignment the Consultants, shall conduct evaluation of the USP submitted to the Agency in accordance with the Act, Rules, Procedures and Policy of the PPP Act, and SPPRA 2010 and shall also provide transaction advisory subject to the approval from the PPP Policy Board.
- xiii. Propose Cluster based/ single facility/ Outsourcing Models: Developing flexible partnership frameworks to improve the efficiency and sustainability of TVET service delivery. Cluster-based models group multiple institutes to share resources and standardize training; single facility models enable targeted upgrades and specialized programs; and outsourcing models engage private partners to manage facilities or functions for better performance and market alignment.

4. ASSIGNMENT SCOPE

The Consultant shall be required to conduct the Assignment in three (3) dependent and sequential phases. However, the Government reserves the right to terminate the Contract at the end of any phase if it is satisfied that proceeding further will not help achieve its objectives or other conditions stipulated in the Contract.

The Assignment shall include all the parts and parcels of Project Rationale & Objectives in the Assignment Scope for successful completion of the assignment.

Phase 1: Transaction Preparation: Specific objective of this phase is to conduct indepth technical, financial, legal, institutional, environmental & social safeguard due diligence to undertake baseline surveys, prepare conceptual plans and conduct feasibility assessment, develop and evaluate/ prioritize various options to achieve the Project objectives.

The Consultant shall undertake a comprehensive baseline assessment and institutional diagnostic review, by collecting and synthesizing relevant data from all concerned departments and stakeholders, and mapping the previous reports, studies and analysis. The Consultant shall review the student enrollment, pass-out, and job placement trends, assess infrastructure availability and utilization, evaluate the human resource adequacy, and analyze the relevance of training programs in relation to current and projected labor market needs.

An efficiency assessment shall also be conducted by identifying operational bottlenecks, fiscal inefficiencies and service delivery gaps. The analysis will benchmark performance against comparable institutions and relevant national and international standards to highlight areas for improvement.

Based on the findings, the Consultant shall evaluate and rank multiple options for service delivery and operations, considering financial viability, service quality, accountability, and scalability, and propose the most suitable modality in accordance

with the institutional, legal and financial and transactional framework, supported by value-for-money and cost-benefit analysis, risk management, KPIs, and monitoring mechanism for effective implementation.

The feasibility shall include but not limited to the following:

- Inception report: methodology, work plan, data framework, preliminary site visits, risk assessment.
- Baseline assessments: institutional diagnostic, infrastructure mapping, asset valuation, HR and governance review.
- Academic and program evaluation: curriculum relevance, pedagogy, student/graduate outcomes, industry linkages.
- Market and labour demand analysis: employment trends, wage analysis, sector absorption, international opportunities.
- Stakeholder engagement: consultations with industries, associations, financiers, students, and donors.
- Financial/economic analysis: budget trends, efficiency metrics, financial model (covering IRR, DSCR, LLCR, scenarios, sensitivity), fiscal risks, economic justification.
- Legal/regulatory assessment: review of TVET, PPP, labour, environment laws; land rights; dispute resolution; regulatory gaps.
- Environmental and Social Impact Assessment (ESIA): screening, mitigation plans, gender inclusion, grievance redress.
- Options analysis: compare PPP vs. non-PPP models using VfM and Public Sector Comparator; recommend modality.
- Transaction structuring: draft PPP structures, risk allocation, KPIs, performance frameworks.
- Market sounding: at least one investor conference/roadshow in Karachi; gather feedback from private operators and financiers.

Details:

4.1.1 Inception Report: The Consultant under this stage would be required to outline the overall approach, methodology, work breakdown structure, schedules with timelines along with critical milestones, team deployment, requirements from the Procuring Agency, logistical arrangements, and anticipated issues for initiating work for the project. The report should demonstrate a clear understanding of the Project's objectives, including baseline mapping of every proposed district/ facility, institutional review, demand and capacity analysis, and system efficiency evaluation. It shall also outline the framework for exploring service delivery options, PPP structuring, and key legal, financial, and risk considerations, based on initial data collection and site visits conducted with the Procuring Agency. The report shall be prepared after conducting a detailed visit of the Project sites/existing working environment by the successful Bidder's key Professional Staff. However, the Consultant shall prepare a detailed analysis and plan for the Project existing and proposed facilities during the technical feasibility.

The inception report shall also contain the monthly working plan/ timesheet prepared using the Procuring Agency's standardized reporting template, highlighting detailed description of tasks planned, completed, challenges, recommendations, etc., for the performance check and record purposes. After signing the Contract, the Bidder shall submit such a report at the start of each month during the Contract as condition for payments release by the Procuring Agency.

Note: Based on the inception report, the Procuring Agency may require/ advise the Consultant to undertake and complete the remaining tasks, detailed below from section 4.1.2 onwards, for the Project. It may be noted that this report shall be prepared after conducting the Project detailed site visit to ascertain the preliminary issues and reviewing the Procuring Agency's human resources capabilities and needs to ensure the Project strategic and operational sustainability; the results drawn with clear way forwards shall form part of the report.

4.1.2 Feasibility Study: This shall require the Consultant to conduct:

A. Technical Due Diligence/ Feasibility

- i. Baseline Mapping and Institutional Review: Conduct comprehensive evidence-based mapping of select TVET Institutes across Sindh (location, infrastructure, enrolment and graduation trends, job placement, staffing, programs offered, and availability and adequacy of training equipment etc.). Review the institutional and legal framework for governing TVET Institutes (Sindh TEVTA, NAVTTC, and others). Identify strengths, gaps, overlaps, and areas requiring reforms in institutional and legal framework. Evaluate current financial flow and budgetary allocation and utilization. Analyze the economic growth trends, industrialization patterns, job market dynamics, and the financial capacity of local populations to gauge the socioeconomic context of technical education.
- ii. Scaled Demand and Capacity Analysis: Examine the labor market demand for technical and vocational skills at national and international levels. Map current and projected enrolment and demographic trends. Evaluate degree of utilization of the institute's capacity (student-teacher ratio, space, equipment, etc.). Identify mismatches between skills supplied with the labour market needs. Determine the current employability rate of TVET graduates at national and international levels and analyze the trends over the past 5–10 years. Identify the key sectors absorbing TVET graduates and assess the alignment between TVET programs and labor market demands. Highlight barriers to employment for TVET graduates.
- **iii. Existing System Efficiency Evaluation:** Evaluate the operational efficiency of the public system presently (cost / student, dropout rates, employment outcomes). Identify systemic inefficiencies in HR, governance, and accountability. Benchmark performance to the

national and international best practices. Analyze the academic strategy of STEVTA institutes, including teaching methodologies, academic standards, admission policies, and the overall discipline mix.

iv. Recommendations:

- Development of comprehensive KPIs based and outcome-based project objectives and desired targets/ results. Suggest a reliable monitoring mechanism based on best industry practices. Identify the mechanism and formula for deduction linked to performance and achievement of KPIs and outcomes.
- Draft a suitable operating and administrative policy/ model to overcome issues that hinder quality education in select Sindh TVET institutes.
- Devise strategy to adopt modern pedagogy. Submit innovative ideas to ensure maximum utilization of project facilities.
- Summarize technical study findings and prepare a business model/ plan for the Project;
- Prepare an improved business model, which shall include, but not limited to, the implementation methodology, scope of the overall project including scope of work of private partner, roles and responsibilities of the GoS and KPIs for private partner.
- Develop a technical and vocational education model that includes specifications for standardized infrastructure, a strategy for qualified human resources, a framework for market-aligned certifications and programs, and strategies for optimal resource use to enhance enrolment capacity.
- Review the similar projects undertaken under the PPP mode in other geographical areas or developed countries;
- Develop preliminary designs and cost estimates based on best practices, covering all technical aspects of recommended technologies and facilities;
- Produce Project's comprehensive video leveraging drone technology and 3D visualization, complete with embedded voiceovers, to significantly improve stakeholder understanding of current and planned.
- Develop videos for Project using drone technology with embedded voiceover and 3D technology to enhance project existing and intended understanding for potential stakeholders;

B. Environmental and Social Impact Assessment (ESIA)

Note: Before commencing the ESIA study, the Consultant shall conduct the screening and categorization of the Project (by using ADB's standard Rapid Environment Assessment (REA), Indigenous People (IP), and Involuntary Resettlement (IR) checklists) to ascertain the environmental category and subsequent environmental study that needs to be conducted to fulfil ADB and/or other applicable International Financial Institutions (IFI) standards. The

ESIA study needs to be carried out by the Consultant with the scope of activities not limited to the following:

- Conduct the ESIA study of the Project while considering all environmental and social aspects of the Project, as per national/ provincial laws/ guidelines and requirements of IFIs;
- Identify and assess the positive socio-economic impacts of the Project in terms of satisfying basic needs, alleviating poverty, generating employment, and reaching large population segments;
- Identify and assess adverse socio-economic impacts such as physical displacement, changes in access to resources, disruption to livelihoods, changes in social or economic standing, inequitable distribution of benefits and costs among stakeholders, and changes to patterns of behavior that would not be consistent with prevailing gender perceptions, social norms, and religious or cultural values;
- Determine whether the Project have negative impacts on particular categories of stakeholders such as women and ethnic minorities;
- Highlight factors impacting the Project during the procurement, development and operations phases;
- Recommend mitigation measures such as special institutional arrangements, arrangement of alternative residences for affected societies and modifications in Project design;
- Estimate cost of the recommend mitigations measures;
- Through stakeholders consultations, identify key stakeholders of Project;
- o Conduct stakeholder consultation for awareness and feedback;
- Recommend mechanisms for the continued involvement of key stakeholders in the monitoring and evaluation of Project impacts during implementation and operation.

C. Legal and Regulatory Assessment

- The Consultant shall review laws, policies, rules and regulations related to technical and vocational education, labor and employment, environment, climate change, alternative energy and ascertain what laws, rules, regulations will be involved in the Project implementation;
- What kind of district, provincial, and federal approvals will be required in the Project implementation;
- Prepare draft bills, rules and regulations or any amendments in existing laws, rules and regulations, if required for the implementation of the Project;
- Identify sector institutions and government entities relating to the Project.

D. Financial Viability Assessment

- i. Viable Transaction Structure:
 - o Prepare viable transaction structures for implementation of the Project;
 - Identify possible Government support may be required by the developer, both financial and other;

- Explain the rationale and form of viability gap funding (if any);
- Based on the financial modelling, the consultants should determine the appropriate tariff levels and structure for the Project in the feasibility study. The tariff design should balance the following objectives and factors against each other:
 - Stipulated service standards and associated costs;
 - Customers' willingness and ability to pay;
 - Need for and availability of subsidies.

ii. Financial Model:

- Develop financial models of the Project covering projected revenues, and costs estimates of construction/development (EPC), Non-EPC, interest during construction and operations & maintenance cost estimates over the life of the Project;
- Must cover the entire term of the proposed concession agreement;
- Financial model must be properly constructed in a standard spreadsheet program such as MS Excel;
- o Inputs and assumptions may include:
 - Inflation, discount rate, and tax rates;
 - Construction data such as initial capital expenditures over period;
 - Future capital expenditures, both maintenance and growth-related;
 - Residual value of capital assets at the end of the concession period, constituting a revenue of the Project;
 - Funding levels and types such as equity, loans, bonds and subsidies or types of Islamic financing, if applicable;
 - Financial data such as the terms of the various financing instruments;
 - Recurrent operating and maintenance costs;
 - Recurring administrative costs;
 - Operating revenues with the underlying data such as demand forecasts and user charges;
- Sheets with cash flow statement, profit and loss account and balance sheet of the Project company;
- Results and summary sheets demonstrating the impact of different assumptions on the Project cash flow. The results should be presented in the form of the following financial indicators (at least):
 - Project internal rate of return (IRR)
 - Equity IRR
 - Debt service cover ratio, which shows the project company's ability to repay debt
 - from its annual cash flow;
 - Loan life cover ratio, which shows the project company's ability to accommodate
 - an occasional shortfall of cash;
 - Other applicable/ relevant ratios or indicators
- The Consultant should prepare a manual so that the model can be used throughout the PPP process to continually assess the impact of different pricing, financing, and service scenarios, update or confirm decisions about project structure;
- The financial model should allow sensitivities and scenario analysis based on various parameters;

E. Options Analysis

PPP Options Analysis

- List all reasonable options available;
- Evaluate the advantages and disadvantages of each option, together with its risks, benefits and potential impacts for each option;
- Assess which options are likely to attract private sector investment;
- Recommend the preferred option with its impact on the financial and commercial viability, financial model and transaction structuring;

Project Risks

- Identify the project risks;
- Make assessment of each risk;
- o Allocation of each risk to the party that can best able to manage it;
- Develop risk matrix;
- Comment on project viability under PPP modality;

Economic Analysis

- Thorough analysis of the viability of the proposed Project including a complete economic analysis, identifying economic risks associated with the Project and undertaking sensitivity and risk analysis;
- Value for Money analysis based on public sector comparator model;
- o Comprehensive economic cost benefit analysis,
- o Identify contingent costs and risks;
- Economic IRR;
- Sensitivity and scenario analysis with impact on payback and IRR.

Demand-Supply Analysis

Conduct demand and affordability analysis

Note: Under Phase I, the successful Bidder shall be responsible to undertake all related surveys needed for preparation of feasibility study reports. In addition, the Consultant shall be responsible to prepare and deliver presentations before the PPP Policy Board or Technical & Financial Evaluation Committee (TFEC) or any other forum for seeking approvals or inputs as required during the course of the Assignment.

F. Transaction Structure and Market Assessment Report

The Consultant shall prepare the transaction structure report for the Procuring Agency, outlining possible transaction structures and specific risk allocations for the envisaged PPP modality Project. Before finalizing the transaction structure and during the feasibility stage, the Consultant shall arrange investor conferences/ road shows and visits to market the Project (the Consultant at its level shall organize and execute at least one investor conference or roadshow to promote the Project and share details with potential participants. The conference shall accommodate a minimum of one hundred (100) participants and be held in Karachi (4/5-star hotel), within a five-kilometre radius of Saddar, or as mutually agreed by the parties. The Consultant shall be fully responsible for all arrangements, including venue selection, event logistics, refreshments, presentation materials, printing, branding, and other associated costs.

This event shall serve as a platform for presenting the Project proposed structure, soliciting investor feedback, and fostering early engagement with key stakeholders).

Deliverables: (Phase I):

Including but not limited to and as listed in the Deliverables

- Inception Report
- Baseline Assessment Report
- Market Analysis Report
- Financial & Economic Analysis
- Legal & Environmental Assessment
- Comprehensive Feasibility Study Report

4.2. Phase II – Bid Management: If the Procuring Agency decides to proceed with Phase II, the Consultant shall be required to perform functions including, but not limited to, the following:

4.2.1 Marketing and Bidding Document: The Consultant shall be required to:

- i. Develop a marketing and communication strategy for the Project to sensitize potential investors and other stakeholders;
- ii. Sensitize potential investors, operators and financiers for the Project and seek their feedback for incorporation in the Project structures;
- iii. Seek investor interest/ feedback on the Project prior to the launch of official solicitation;
- iv. Establish a data room, including all the relevant documents and information on the Project for investors' due diligence;
- v. Develop marketing documents and conduct marketing efforts;
- vi. Devise quantitative and qualitative KPIs along with deduction mechanism;
- vii. Prepare bidding documents, including RFQ (if applicable or found suitable) and RFP, concession agreement, Provincial Support Agreement and direct agreement and any other agreements required for the Project in compliance with the procurement laws, regulations, policy and international best practice;
- viii. Develop and finalize evaluation criteria and the terms of the bid documents;
 - ix. Assist the Procuring Agency in preparing, population, hosting, and managing an online data room to the preparation, population, hosting, and management of an online data room to facilitate bidders' due diligence, including drafting procedures governing the use of the data room.

4.2.2 Bidding Process: The Consultant shall be required assisting the Procuring Agency:

- i. Prepare annual procurement plan;
- ii. Prepare responses to the prospective bidders' queries;
- iii. Conduct shall conduct pre-bid meetings at the times designated by the Procuring Agency. The Consultant role will deliver presentation on the

- Project procurement documents, offering clear, actionable instructions to potential bidders for the submission of their respective bids;
- iv. Amend the bidding documents to reflect material issues raised by bidders and accepted by the Procuring Agency and other stakeholders prior to the deadline for bids submission under applicable laws, rules and regulations;
- v. Seek clarifications required from bidders during the bids evaluation;
- vi. Conduct detailed evaluation of technical and financial proposals and submit technical and financial reports with clear recommendations for the TFEC's next course of action;
- vii. Update cost estimates concerning the Project, taking into account the impact of inflation and other factors (based on the rates prevailing 28 days prior to the bids submission date) during the bid evaluation stage;
- viii. Prepare and deliver presentations on bid evaluation outcomes to the TFEC and other authorities (if needed) for necessary approvals;
 - ix. Assist the Procuring Agency in the issuance of a letter of award/ acceptance to the preferred bidder against the Proposed Concessions;
 - x. Advice on bid-related correspondence with bidders during the entire bidding process relating to the Project.

4.3. Phase III – Transactions Negotiations & Financial Closure: This phase shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

4.3.1 Transaction Negotiation & Financial Closure

- i. Support in negotiations and finalization of the Project agreements between the Procuring Agency, other stakeholders and the winning bidders/ SPVs;
- ii. Assist the Procuring Agency in the execution of Project agreements with the winning bidders and ensure that all pre-conditions and requirements set forth in bidding documents and applicable legislation are compiled by the winning bidders/ SPV;
- iii. Coordinate with Procuring Agency in correspondence with various stakeholders and managing various processes with other members throughout the transaction and facilitate the post-bid process in the award of the Project;
- iv. Draft and negotiate further project agreements, including but not limited to independent engineer agreements, independent auditor agreements, project site license agreements, annuity agreements, shareholding agreements, equity funding & utilization agreements, price escalation agreements, concession direct agreement and escrow agreements;
- v. Provide legal opinion to the Procuring Agency on any matter relating to the Project during the Assignment's entire course of the Contract;
- vi. Advise the Procuring Agency on an ongoing basis to ensure compliance with applicable procurement and other laws, rules and regulations throughout the bidding process and on any legal issues which may arise.

4.3.2 Financial Closure

i. Review and provide feedback on the draft financing term sheet and assess compliance with the Concession Agreement and other procurement parameters of the Project in the financing term sheet;

- ii. Review and finalize concession direct agreement;
- iii. Review and provide feedback on the fulfilment of CPs of the concession agreement and those related to financial close;
- iv. Assist the Government in achieving financial close;

Note: The Bidder shall provide the Services to the Procuring Agency for the Proposed Concessions for the Project. At any stage or during any phase, upon the Procuring Agency's request, the legal, technical, and financial consultants (as members of the Consortium) shall furnish opinions or assistance on any matter (including litigation with desk assistance), document, or agreement related to the Project. The Consortium's internal coordination shall be the sole responsibility of the Lead Member.

The Bidder is hereby expressly notified that following the submission of each deliverable report, the Procuring Agency will hold a review meeting of Oversight Committee. The Bidder is responsible for the overall coordination to convene these meetings before each deliverable. Attendance at these meetings, including pre-bid and TFEC meetings, by all proposed Key Professional Staff is a mandatory part of this Assignment. For each instance of non-attendance by a Key Professional Staff, the Procuring Agency shall deduct an amount equivalent to three percent (3%) of the respective deliverable or sub-milestone payment. For each instance of nonattendance by the Lead Staff (Financial/ Technical/ Legal), the Procuring Agency shall deduct an amount equivalent to five percent (5%) of the respective deliverable or sub-milestone payment. Please note if multiple Key Professional Staff from a Consortium Member found absent during any meeting, the deduction amount (calculated as above) will be multiplied by the specified percentage by the Procuring Agency to determine the eligible payment releases to the Consortium Members.

5. ASSIGNMENT DELIVERABLES & PAYMENT SCHEDULE

The Consultant shall achieve the Assignment's milestones and deliverables in three phases within a cumulative duration of eighteen (18) months, effective from the Contract signing expected in the first week of January 2026. The first phase will begin as soon as possible and will be completed within six (6) months following the Agreement's signing. The Assignment's proposed implementation schedule with indicative deliverables under all the phases is tabulated below:

Sr. #	Deliverable	Timelines	Payment ³⁸
5.1	Phase I - Transaction Preparation (T1 = Eff	ective from the Contra	ct Signing Date)
5.1.1	Inception Report (detailing methodology,	T1 + 1/2 Month	10%
	sampling plans, tools and work plan)		
5.1.2	Feasibility Report	T1 + 5 Months	32%
	 Baseline and Assessment Reports 		(4% at each
	Market Analysis Report		milestone)
	 Technical Due Diligence / Feasibility 		·
	 Environmental Social Impact Assessment 		

³⁸ Payment schedule is mentioned as a percentage (%) of the total Contract Price.

	 Legal and Regulatory Assessment Financial Viability Assessment PPP Option Analysis Market Assessment and Transaction Preparation Report 			
5.1.3	Transaction Structure & Approval, including preparation and submission of draft bidding documents	T1 + 6 Months	18%	
5.2	2 Phase II – Bid Management (T2 = Effective from Transaction Structure & Approval)			
5.2.1	Marketing of Bidding Package	T2 + 1 Month	5%	
5.2.2	Submission of Bid Evaluation Reports	T2 + 5 Months	10%	
5.2.3	Issuance of Letters for Award of Contracts	T2 + 6 Months	15%	
5.3	Phase III – Transaction Negotiation(s) Effective from the Issuance of Letters for Award of Co		sure(s) (T3 =	
5.3.1	Transaction negotiation and signing of Concession(s)	T3 + 1 Month	5%	
5.3.2	Financial Closure(s)	T3 + 5 Months	5%	
Total	Contract Duration	18 Months (tentative)	100%	

NOTE: The Procuring Agency shall not offer any mobilization advance to the Consultant. The Procuring Agency shall ensure to release the payments within thirty (30) calendar days following the payment schedule mentioned above subject to the satisfactory completion of the respective milestones for the project as verified and recommended by the Procuring Agency's authorized representative(s).

The Bidder is hereby expressly notified that following the submission of each deliverable report, the Procuring Agency will hold a review meeting of Oversight Committee. The Bidder is responsible for the overall coordination to convene these meetings before each deliverable. Attendance at these meetings, including pre-bid and TFEC meetings, by all proposed Key Professional Staff is a mandatory part of this Assignment. For each instance of non-attendance by a Key Professional Staff, the Procuring Agency shall deduct an amount equivalent to three percent (3%) of the respective deliverable or sub-milestone payment. For each instance of non-attendance by the Lead Staff (Financial/ Technical/ Legal), the Procuring Agency shall deduct an amount equivalent to five percent (5%) of the respective deliverable or sub-milestone payment. Please note if multiple Key Professional Staff from a Consortium Member found absent during any meeting, the deduction amount (calculated as above) will be multiplied by the specified percentage by the Procuring Agency to determine the eligible payment releases to the Consortium Members.

6. ASSIGNMENT RFP INQUIRIES/ CLARIFICATION

Requests for clarification shall always be made in writing at least five (5) calendar days prior to the date of opening of bids and must be addressed or sent via mail or fascimile and e-mail (**both**) mentioned below:

Attention: Director (IL/PPP), Sindh Technical Education and Vocational Training

Authority

Address: Sindh TEVTA HQ, ST-19 Block-6 Gulshan-e-Iqbal, Karachi.

Phone: +92 21 99244112-7 **Email:** ppp.fsta@gmail.com;

dr.lubnashah@gmail.com

7. RELEVANT INFROMATION

For more information relating to the Bidding Process, **please keep visiting the websites:** https://stevta.gos.pk/ and https://stevta.gos.pk/ and https://stevta.gos.pk/ and https://stevta.gov.pk/.

Section VI – Conditions of Contract and Standard Forms

General Conditions of Contract

Table of Contents

1. General Provisions	. 85
1.1. Definitions	. 85
1.2. Law Governing Contract	.86
1.3. Language	. 86
1.4. Notices	.86
1.5. Location	.87
1.6. Authority of Member in Charge	87
1.7. Authorized Representatives	
1.8. Taxes and Duties	. 87
1.9. Fraud and Corruption	.87
2. Commencement, Completion, Modification and Termination of Contract…	.88
2.1. Effectiveness of Contract	.88
2.2. Commencement of Services	. 88
2.3. Expiration of Contract	. 88
2.4. Modifications or Variations	. 88
2.5. Force Majeure	.89
2.6. Termination	. 89
3. Obligations of the Consultant	91
3.1. Standard of Performance	
3.2. Conflict of Interests	91
3.3. Confidentiality	
3.4. Insurance to be Taken Out by the Consultant	. 92
3.5. Consultant's Action Requiring PAs Prior Approval	92
3.6. Reporting Obligations	. 92
3.7. Documents Prepared by the Consultant to be the Property of the PA	.93
3.8. Accounting, Inspection and Auditing	
4. Consultant's Personnel	. 93
4.1. Description of Personnel	. 93
4.2. Removal and/ or Replacement of Personnel	. 94
5. Obligations of the Procuring Agency	. 94
5.1. Assistance and Exemptions	
5.2. Change in the Applicable Law Related to Taxes and Duties	
5.3. Services and Facilities	
6. Payments to the Consultant	. 95
6.1. Performance Security	
6.2. Lump-Sum Payment	
6.3. Contract Price	

Caatian	\ /I	Canditiana	of Contract	and Ctan	dard Farma
Section	VI-	Conditions	of Contract	and Stan	uard Forms

6.4. Payment for Additional Services	95 95
7. Good Faith	
8.1. Amicable Settlement	95

General Conditions of Contract

1. General Provisions

1.1. Definitions

- 1.1.1. Unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms whenever used in this Contract have the following meanings:
 - (a) **'Applicable Law'** means the Sindh Public Procurement Act, thereunder Rules 2010;
 - (b) **'Procuring Agency'** means the implementing department which signs the Contract;
 - 'Consultant' means a professional who can (c) study, design, organize, evaluate and manage projects or assess, evaluate and provide specialist advice or give technical assistance for making or drafting policies, institutional reforms and includes private entities, consulting firms, legal advisors, engineering firms, construction managers, management firms, procurement agents, inspection agents, auditors, international and multinational organizations, investment and merchant banks. universities, research government agencies, institutions. nongovernmental organizations, and individuals;
 - (d) 'Consortium' means Consultants comprised of a group of two or more enterprises formed to submit a Proposal;
 - (e) 'Contract' means the contract signed by the Parties and all the attached documents listed in its Clause 1, i.e., General Conditions (GC), the Special Conditions (SC), and the Appendices;
 - (f) 'Contract Price' means the price to be paid for the performance of Services, in accordance with Clause 6;
 - (g) **'Effective Date'** means the date on which this Contract comes into force and effect pursuant to Clause GC 2.1:
 - (h) **'Foreign Currency'** means any currency other than the currency of the PA's country;
 - (i) **'GC'** means these General Conditions of Contract:

- (j) **'Government'** means the Government of Sindh;
- (k) 'Local Currency' means Pak Rupees;
- (I) **'Member'** means any of the entities that make up the joint venture/ Consortium/ association, and "Members" means all these entities;
- (m) **'Party'** means the Procuring Agency or the Consultant, as the case may be, and "Parties" means both of them;
- (n) 'Personnel' means persons hired by the Consultant or by any Sub-Consultants and assigned to the performance of the Services or any part thereof;
- (o) **'SC'** means the Special Conditions of Contract by which the GC may be amended or supplemented;
- (p) 'Services' means the consulting services to be performed by the Consultant pursuant to this Contract, as described in the Terms of References;
- (q) 'Sub-Consultants' means any person or entity to whom/ which the Consultant subcontracts any part of the Services;
- (r) **'In writing'** means communicated in written form with proof of receipt.

1.2. Law Governing Contract

1.2.1. This Contract, its meaning and interpretation, and the relation between the Parties shall be governed by the applicable law.

1.3. Language

1.3.1. This Contract is executed in the language specified in the SC, which shall be the binding and controlling language for all matters relating to meaning or interpretation of this Contract.

1.4. Notices

1.4.1. Any notice, request or consent required or permitted to be given or made pursuant to this Contract shall be in writing. Any such notice, request or consent shall be deemed to have been given or made when delivered in person to an authorized representative of the Party to whom the communication is addressed, or when sent to such Party at the address specified in the SC.

- 1.4.2. A Party may change its address for notice hereunder by giving the other Party notice in writing of such change to the address specified in the SC.
- 1.5. Location
- 1.5.1. The Services shall be performed at such locations as are specified in special condition of contract and, where the location of a particular task is not so specified, at such locations, whether in the Government's country or elsewhere, as the Procuring Agency may approve.
- 1.6. Authority of Member in Charge
- 1.6.1. In case the Consultant consists of a joint venture/ Consortium/ association of more than one individual firms, the Members hereby authorize the individual firms or specified in the SC to act on their behalf in exercising all the Consultant's rights and obligations towards the Procuring Agency under this Contract, including without limitation the receiving of instructions and payments from the PA.
- 1.7. Authorized Representatives
- 1.7.1. Any action required or permitted to be taken, and any document required or permitted to be executed under this Contract by the Procuring Agency or the Consultant may be taken or executed by the officials specified in the SC.
- 1.8. Taxes and Duties
- 1.8.1. The Consultant, Sub-Consultants, and their Personnel shall pay such direct or indirect taxes, duties, fees, and other impositions levied under the Applicable Law as specified in the SC, the amount of which is deemed to have been included in the Contract Price.
- 1.9. Fraud and Corruption
- 1.9.1. If the Procuring Agency determines that the Consultant and/or its Personnel, sub-contractors, sub-Consultants, services providers and suppliers has engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive, or obstructive practices, in competing for or in executing the Contract, then the Procuring Agency may, after giving 14 days' notice to the Consultant, terminate the Consultant's employment under the Contract, and may resort to other remedies including blacklisting/ disgualification as provided in the SPP Rules.

Any personnel of the Consultant, who engages in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive, or obstructive practice during the execution of the Contract, shall be removed in accordance with Sub-Clause 4.2.

1.9.2. **Integrity Pact** – If the Consultant or any of his Sub-Consultants, agents or servants is found to have violated or involved in violation of the Integrity Pact

signed by the Consultant as Appendix-A to this Form of Contract, then the Client shall be entitled to:

- (a) recover from the Consultant an amount equivalent to ten times the sum of any commission, gratification, bribe, finder's fee or kickback given by the Consultant or any of his Sub-Consultant, agents or servants;
- (b) terminate the Contract; and
- (c) recover from the Consultant any loss or damage to the Client as a result of such termination or of any other corrupt business practices of the Consultant or any of his Sub-Consultant, agents or servants.

On termination of the Contract under Sub-Para (b) of this Sub-Clause, the Consultant shall proceed in accordance with Sub-Clause 1.9 A. Payment upon such termination shall be made under Sub-Clause 1.9 A after having deducted the amounts due to the Client under 19 B Sub-Para (a) and (c).

2. Commencement, Completion, Modification and Termination of Contract

1.1. Effectiveness of Contract

2.1.1. This Contract shall come into effect on the date the Contract is signed by either Parties or such other later date as may be stated in the SC. The date the Contract comes into effect is defined as the Effective Date.

2.2. Commencement of Services

2.2.1. The Consultant shall begin carrying out the Services not later than number of days after the Effective Date specified in the SC.

2.3. Expiration of Contract

2.3.1. Unless terminated earlier pursuant to Clause GC 2.6 hereof, this Contract shall expire at the end of such time period after the Effective Date as specified in the SC.

2.4. Modifications or Variations

2.4.1. Any modification or variation of the terms and conditions of this Contract, including any modification or variation of the scope of the Services, may only be made by written agreement between Parties. However, each Party shall give due consideration to any proposals for modification or variation made by the other Party.

2.5. Force Majeure

- 2.5.1. The failure on the part of the parties to perform their obligation under the contract will not be considered a default if such failure is the result of natural calamities, disasters and circumstances beyond the control of the parties.
- 2.5.2. No Breach of Contract: The failure of a Party to fulfill any of its obligations under the contract shall not be considered to be a breach of, or default under, this Contract insofar as such inability arises from an event of Force Majeure, provided that the Party affected by such an event (a) has taken all reasonable precautions, due care and reasonable alternative measures in order to carry out the terms and conditions of this Contract, and (b) has informed the other Party as soon as possible about the occurrence of such an event.
- 2.5.3. Extension of Time: Any period within which a Party shall, pursuant to this Contract, complete any action or task, shall be extended for a period equal to the time during which such Party was unable to perform such action as a result of Force Majeure.
- 2.5.4. **Payments:** During the period of their inability to perform the Services as a result of an event of Force Majeure, the Consultant shall be entitled to continue to be paid under the terms of this Contract, as well as to be reimbursed for additional costs reasonably and necessarily incurred by them during such period for the purposes of the Services and in reactivating the Service after the end of such period.

2.6. Termination

- 2.6.1. By the Procuring Agency: The Procuring Agency may terminate this Contract in case of the occurrence of any of the events specified in paragraphs (a) through (f) of this Clause GC 2.6.1. In such an occurrence the Procuring Agency shall give a not less than thirty (30) days' written notice of termination to the Consultant, and sixty (60) days' in the case of the event referred to in (e).
 - (a) If the Consultant does not remedy the failure in the performance of their obligations under the Contract, within thirty (30) days after being notified or within any further period as the Procuring Agency may have subsequently approved in writing;

- (b) If the Consultant becomes insolvent or bankrupt;
- (c) If the Consultant, in the judgment of the Procuring Agency has engaged in corrupt or fraudulent practices in competing for or in executing the Contract;
- (d) If, as the result of Force Majeure, the Consultant(s) are unable to perform a material portion of the Services for a period of not less than sixty (60) days;
- (e) If the PA, in its sole discretion and for any reason whatsoever, decides to terminate this Contract;
- (f) If the Consultant fails to comply with any final decision reached as a result of arbitration proceedings pursuant to Clause GC 8 hereof.
- 2.6.2. **By the Consultant:** The Consultants may terminate this Contract, by not less than thirty (30) days' written notice to PA, such notice to be given after occurrence of any of the events specified in paragraphs (a) through (c) of this Clause GC 2.6.2:
 - (a) If the Procuring Agency fails to pay any money due to the Consultant pursuant to this Contract without Consultants fault:
 - (b) Pursuant to Clause GC 7 hereof within forty-five
 (45) days after receiving written notice from the
 Consultant that such payment is overdue;
 - (c) If, as the result of Force Majeure, the Consultant is unable to perform a material portion of the Services for a period of not less than sixty (60) days;
 - (d) If the Procuring Agency fails to comply with any final decision reached as result of arbitration pursuant to Clause GC 8 hereof.
- 2.6.3. **Payment Upon Termination:** Upon termination of this Contract pursuant to Clauses GC 2.6.1 or GC 2.6.2, the Procuring Agency shall make the following payments to the Consultant:

- (a) payment pursuant to Clause GC 6 for Services satisfactorily performed prior to the effective date of termination;
- (b) except in the case of termination pursuant to paragraphs (a) through (c), and (f) of Clause GC 2.6.1, reimbursement of any reasonable cost incident to the prompt and orderly termination of the Contract, including the cost of the return travel of the Personnel and their eligible dependents.

3. Obligations of the Consultant

3.1. General

3.1.1. Standard of Performance: The Consultant shall perform the Services and carry out their obligations hereunder with all due diligence, efficiency and economy, in accordance with generally accepted professional standards and practices, and shall observe sound management practices, and employ appropriate technology and safe and effective equipment, machinery, materials and methods. The Consultant shall always act, in respect of any matter relating to this Contract or to the Services, as faithful advisers to the PA, and shall at all times support and safeguard the PA's legitimate interests in any dealings with Sub-Consultants or third Parties.

3.2. Conflict of Interests

- 3.2.1. The Consultant shall hold the PA's interests paramount without any consideration for future work and strictly avoid conflict with other Assignments or their own corporate interests.
- 3.2.2. Consultants not to Benefit from Commissions, Discounts, etc.: The payment of the Consultant pursuant to Clause GC 6 shall constitute the Consultant's only payment in connection with this Contract or the Services, and the Consultant shall not accept for their own benefit any trade commission, discount, or similar payment in connection with activities pursuant to this Contract or to the Services or in the discharge of their obligations under the Contract, and the Consultant shall use their best efforts to ensure that the Personnel, any Sub-Consultants, and agents of either of them similarly shall not receive any such additional payment.
- 3.2.3. Consultant and Affiliates not to be Otherwise Interested in Project: The Consultant agrees that, during the term of this Contract and after its

termination, the Consultant and any entity affiliated with the Consultant, as well as any Sub-Consultants and any entity affiliated with such Sub-Consultants, shall be disqualified from providing goods, works or services (other than consulting services) resulting from or directly related to the Consultant's Services for the preparation or implementation of the project.

- 3.2.4. **Prohibition of Conflicting Activities:** The Consultant shall not engage, and shall cause their Personnel as well as their Sub-Consultants and their Personnel not to engage, either directly or indirectly, in any business or professional activities which would conflict with activities assigned to them under Contract.
- 3.3. Confidentiality
- 3.3.1. Except with the prior written consent of the PA, the Consultant and the Personnel shall not at any time communicate to any person or entity any confidential information acquired in the course of the Services, nor shall the Consultant and the Personnel make public the recommendations formulated in the course of, or as a result of, the Services.
- 3.4. Insurance to be Taken Out by the Consultant
- 3.4.1. The Consultant (a) shall take out and maintain, and shall cause any Sub-Consultants to take out and maintain, at their (or the Sub-Consultants', as the case may be) own cost but on terms and conditions approved by the PA, insurance against the risks, and for the coverage, as shall be specified in the SC; and (b) at the PA's request, shall provide evidence to the Procuring Agency showing that such insurance has been taken out and maintained and that the current premiums have been paid.
- 3.5. Consultant's
 Actions Requiring
 PA's Prior
 Approval
- 3.5.1. The Consultant shall obtain the Procuring Agency's prior approval in writing before taking any of the following actions:
 - (a) entering into a subcontract for the performance of any part of the Services;
 - (b) appointing such members of the Personnel not listed by name in Appendix C; and
 - (c) any other action that may be specified in the SC.
- 3.6. Reporting Obligations
- 3.6.1. The Consultant shall submit to the Procuring Agency the reports and documents specified in (Procuring Agency may insert appendix) hereto, in the form, in

- the numbers and within the time periods set forth in the said Appendix.
- 3.6.2. Final reports shall be delivered in CD ROM in addition to the hard copies specified in said Appendix.
- 3.7. Documents
 Prepared by the
 Consultant to be
 the Property of
 the Procuring
 Agency
- 3.7.1. All plans, drawings, specifications, designs, reports, other documents and software submitted by the Consultant under this Contract shall become and remain the property of the PA, and the Consultant shall, not later than upon termination or expiration of this Contract, deliver all such documents to the PA, together with a detailed inventory thereof.
- 3.7.2. The Consultant may retain a copy of such documents and software. Restrictions about the future use of these documents, if any, shall be specified in the SC.
- 3.8. Accounting, Inspection and Auditing
- 3.8.1. The Consultant shall keep, and shall cause its Sub-Consultants to keep, accurate and systematic accounts and records in respect of the Contract, in accordance with internationally accepted accounting principles and in such form and detail as will clearly identify relevant time changes and costs.
- 3.8.2. The Consultant shall permit, and shall cause its Sub-Consultants to permit, the Procuring Agency and/or persons appointed by the Procuring Agency to inspect its accounts and records relating to the performance of the Contract and the submission of the Proposal to provide the Services, and to have such accounts and records audited by auditors appointed by the Procuring Agency if requested by the PA. The Consultant's attention is drawn to Clause 1.9.1 which provides, inter alia, that acts intended to materially impede the exercise of the PA's inspection and audit rights provided for under Clause 3.8 constitute a prohibited practice subject to contract termination (as well as to a determination of ineligibility pursuant to the PA's prevailing sanctions procedures).

4. Consultant Personnel

4.1. Description of Personnel

4.1.1. The Consultant shall employ and provide such qualified and experienced Personnel and Sub-Consultants as are required to carry out the Services. The titles, agreed job descriptions, minimum qualifications, and estimated periods of engagement in the carrying out of the Services of the Consultant's Key Personnel are described in Appendix C. The Key

Personnel and Sub-Consultants listed by title as well as by name in Appendix C are hereby approved by the PA.

4.2. Removal and/or Replacement of Personnel

- 4.2.1. Except as the Procuring Agency may otherwise agree, no changes shall be made in the Key Personnel. If, for any reason beyond the reasonable control of the Consultant, such as retirement, death, medical incapacity, among others, it becomes necessary to replace any of the Key Personnel, the Consultant shall provide as a replacement a person of equivalent or better qualifications.
- 4.2.2. If the Procuring Agency finds that any of the Personnel have (i) committed serious misconduct or have been charged with having committed a criminal action, or (ii) have reasonable cause to be dissatisfied with the performance of any of the Personnel, then Consultant shall, at the PA's written request specifying the grounds thereof, provide as a replacement a person with qualifications and experience acceptable to the PA.
- 4.2.3. The Consultant shall have no claim for additional costs arising out of or incidental to any removal and/or replacement of Personnel.

5. Obligations of the PA

5.1. Assistance and Exemptions

- 5.1.1. The Procuring Agency shall use its best efforts to ensure that the Government shall provide the Consultant such assistance and exemptions as specified in the SC.
- 5.2. Change in the Applicable Law Related to Taxes and Duties
- 5.2.1. If, after the date of this Contract, there is any change in the Applicable Law with respect to taxes and duties which increases or decreases the cost incurred by the Consultant in performing the Services, then the remuneration and reimbursable expenses otherwise payable to the Consultant under this Contract shall be increased or decreased accordingly by agreement between the Parties, and corresponding adjustments shall be made to the amounts referred to in Clauses GC 6.2 (a) or (b), as the case may be.

5.3. Services and Facilities

5.3.1. The Procuring Agency shall make available free of charge to the Consultant the Services and Facilities listed under the Bid Data Sheet

6. Payments to the Consultant

6.1. Security

6.1.1. The Consultant has to submit the performance security at the rate mention in SC.

6.2. Lump-Sum Contract

- 6.2.1. The total payment due to the Consultant shall not exceed the Contract Price which is an all-inclusive fixed lump-sum covering all costs required to carry out the Services described in Appendix A. Except as provided in Clause 5.2, the Contract Price may only be increased above the amounts stated in Clause 6.2 if the Parties have agreed to additional payments in accordance with Clause 2.4.
- 6.3. Contract Price
- 6.3.1. The price payable in Pak Rupees/ foreign currency is set forth in the SC.
- 6.4. Payment for Additional Services
- 6.4.1. For purpose of determining remuneration due for additional services as may be agreed under Clause 2.4, a breakdown of the lump sum price is provided in Appendices D and E.
- 6.5. Terms and Conditions of Payment
- 6.5.1. Payments will be made to the account of the Consultant and according to the payment schedule stated in the SC. Unless otherwise stated in the SC, the first payment shall be made against the provision by the Consultant of an advance payment guarantee for the same amount, and shall be valid for the period stated in the SC. Such guarantee shall be in the form set forth in Appendix G hereto, or in such other form, as the Procuring Agency shall have approved in writing. Any other payment shall be made after the conditions listed in the SC for such payment have been met, and the Consultant has submitted an invoice to the Procuring Agency specifying the amount due.

7. Good Faith

7.1. Good Faith

7.1.1. The Parties undertake to act in good faith with respect to each other's rights under this Contract and to adopt all reasonable measures to ensure realization of objectives of this Contract.

8. Settlement of Disputes

8.1. Amicable Settlement

8.1.1. The Parties agree that the avoidance or early resolution of disputes is crucial for a smooth execution of the Contract and the success of the Assignment.

The Parties shall use their best efforts to settle

amicably all disputes arising out of or in connection with this Contract or its interpretation.

8.2. Dispute Resolution

8.2.1. Any dispute between the Parties as to matters arising pursuant to this Contract that cannot be settled amicably within thirty (30) days after receipt by one Party of the other Party's request for such amicable settlement may be submitted by either Party for settlement in accordance with provisions specified in SC.

Special Conditions of Contract

The following Special Conditions of Contract (SCC) shall **supplement and/or amend the General Conditions of Contract (GCC)**. Whenever there is a conflict, the provisions herein shall prevail over those in the GCC.

GCC Clause	Amendments of, and Supplements to, Clauses in the General Conditions of Contract
GCC 1.1.1(a)	The Applicable Procurement Law is: Sindh Public Procurement Act and Sindh Public Procurement Rules (as prevails at the RFP advertisement time)
GCC 1.1.1(b)	The Procuring Agency's Name is: Sindh Technical Education and Vocational Training Authority, Government of Sindh
GCC 1.2.1.	The Contract shall be construed in accordance with the law of: Islamic Republic of Pakistan.
GCC 1.3.1.	The Language is: English
GCC 1.4.1.	The addresses are:
	Procuring Agency:
	Attention:
	Address:
	City:
	Phone No:
	E-mail:
	Consultant:
	Attention:
	Address:
	City:
	Phone No:
	E-mail:
GCC 1.5.1.	The services shall be performed at: Karachi and the Project's locations as further specified in the TOR.
GCC 1.6.1.	{The Member in Charge is [insert name of member]}
	Note: If the Consultant consists of a joint venture/ Consortium/ association of more than one entity, the name of the entity whose address is specified in Clause SC 1.6 should be inserted here. If the Consultant consists only of one entity, this Clause SC 1.6 should be deleted from the SC.

GCC 1.7.1.	The Authorized Representatives are:
	For the PA:
	For the Consultant:
GCC 1.8.1.	All the taxes and duties including income, service, stamp duty, and those as applicable on the offered services under this Contract shall be borne by the Consultant. The applicable taxes shall be deemed as part of the Consultant's total quoted bid.
GCC 2.1.1.	The date for effectiveness of contract shall start with effect from the date of agreement signing by both the Parties.
GCC 2.1.2.	The Consultant shall commence contractual services immediately after signing of agreement. Confirmation of the Professional Staff/Key Experts' availability to start the Assignment shall be submitted to the Procuring Agency in writing (also along with the Proposal) as a written statement signed by each Expert.
GCC 2.3.1.	The Contract shall remain effective for thirty (30) months; however, this stipulated period may be extended at no-cost or without any change in the Contract Price in case of a reasonable delay, acceptable to the Procuring Agency, in the Project execution subject to the terms and conditions laid down in the RFP Document.
GCC 2.4.1.	Any modification or variation of terms and conditions of this Contract, including any modification or variation of the scope of Services (except the Proposed Concessions), if required, will be made through an addendum to agreement with mutual consent of both the parties.
GCC 3.6.1.	Reporting obligations include but is not limited to the following (refer to the TOR's and GCC 6.5.1. for further details): Inception Report Technical Feasibility Report Economic Financial Viability Assessment PPP Option Analysis with Risk Matrix Market Viability Assessment Institutional & Regulatory Assessment Report PPP Options, Risk Matrix & Value for Money Analysis Report Project Preparation & Approval Bid documents package, including concession agreements; and Any other report as part or falling within the Assignment's scope.

GCC 8.2.1.

GCC 6.1.1.	Successful Consultant, upon fourteen (14) days of issuance of the Letter of Award, shall require submitting performance security equivalent to 7.5% of the Contract Price in shape of Bank Guarantee issued by a scheduled bank in Pakistan in favor of 'Managing Director, Sindh Technical Education and Vocational Training Authority'. Discharge of the security shall take place within twenty-eight (28) days following satisfactory completion of the Procuring Agency's performance obligations.
GCC 6.3.1.	The Procuring Agency shall release the payments to the successful Bidder (in case of a Consortium, respective members including a National Company or a foreign firm) in Pak Rupees only.
GCC 6.5.1.	The payments shall be made according to deliverables and schedule as specified under Section V – Terms of Reference of RFP Document.

Disputes shall be settled in accordance with the Arbitration Act, 1940.

Contract

THIS CONTRACT ("Contract") is entered into this [insert starting date of Assignment], by and between [insert PA"s name] ("PA") having its principal place of business at [insert PA's address], and [insert Consultant's name] ("Consultant") having its principal office located at [insert Consultant's address].

WHEREAS, the Procuring Agency wishes to have the Consultant performing the services hereinafter referred to, and

WHEREAS, the Consultant is willing to perform these services,

NOW THEREFORE THE PARTIES hereby agree as follows:

- 1. Services
- 1.1 The Consultant shall perform the services specified in Section V Terms of Reference and Scope of Services," which is made an integral part of this Contract (the 'Services').
- 1.2 The Consultant shall provide the reports listed in Annex B, 'Consultant's Reporting Obligations," within the time periods listed in such Annex, and the personnel listed in Annex C, "Cost Estimate of Services, List of Personnel and Schedule of Rates" to perform the Services.

2. Term

- 2.1 The Consultant shall perform the Services during the period commencing [insert start date] and continuing through [insert completion date] or any other period as may be subsequently agreed by the parties in writing.
- 3. Payment
- 3.1 **Ceiling:** For Services rendered pursuant to Section V, the Procuring Agency shall pay the Consultant an amount not to exceed [insert amount]. This amount has been established based on the understanding that it includes all of the Consultant's costs and profits as well as any tax obligation that may be imposed on the Consultant.
- 3.2 **Payment Conditions:** Payment shall be made in Pak Rupees (PKR), no later than thirty (30) days following submission by the Consultant of invoices in duplicate to the Coordinator designated in paragraph 5.
- 4. Economic Price Adjustment
- 4.1 Not applicable
- 5. Project Administration
- 5.1 **Coordinator:** The Procuring Agency designates Mr./Ms. *[insert name]* as PA's Coordinator; the Coordinator shall be responsible for the coordination of activities under the Contract, for receiving and approving invoices for

payment, and for acceptance of the deliverables by the PA.

- 5.2 **Timesheets:** During the course of their work under this Contract the Consultant's employees providing services under this Contract may be required to complete timesheets or any other document used to identify time spent, as instructed by the Coordinator.
- 5.3 **Records and Accounts:** The Consultant shall keep accurate and systematic records and accounts in respect of the Services, which will clearly identify all charges and expenses. The Procuring Agency reserves the right to audit, or to nominate a reputable accounting firm to audit, the Consultant's records relating to amounts claimed under this Contract during its term and any extension, and for a period of three months thereafter.

6. Performance Standards

6.1 The Consultant undertakes to perform the Services with the highest standards of professional and ethical competence and integrity. The Consultant shall promptly replace any employees assigned under this Contract that the Procuring Agency considers unsatisfactory.

7. Confidentiality

7.1 The Consultants shall not, during the term of this Contract and within two years after its expiration, disclose any proprietary or confidential information relating to the Services, this Contract or the Procuring Agency's business or operations without the prior written consent of the PA.

8. Ownership of Material

8.1 Any studies, reports or other material, graphic, software or otherwise, prepared by the Consultant for the Procuring Agency under the Contract shall belong to and remain the property of the PA. The Consultant may retain a copy of such documents and software.

9. Consultant Not to be Engaged in Certain Activities

9.1 The Consultant agrees that, during the term of this Contract and after its termination, the Consultants and any entity affiliated with the Consultant, shall be disqualified from providing goods, works or services (other than the Services or any continuation thereof) for any project resulting from or closely related to the Services.

10.Insurance

10.1 The Consultant will be responsible for taking out any appropriate insurance coverage for their personnel and equipment.

11.1 The Consultant shall not assign this Contract or 11. Assignment Subcontract any portion thereof it without the PA's prior written consent. 12. Law Governing 12.1 The Contract shall be governed by the laws of Islamic **Contract and** Republic of Pakistan, or the Provincial Government and the language of the Contract shall be English. Language 13. Dispute 13.1 Any dispute arising out of this Contract, which cannot be Resolution amicably settled between the parties, shall be referred to adjudication/arbitration in accordance with

Arbitration Act of 1940.

FOR THE PROCURING AGENCY	FOR THE CONSULTANT
Signed by	Signed by
Title	Title

Appendices

Standard Forms

[Note: Standard Forms provided in this RFP Document for securities are to be issued by an eligible bank mentioned in the Data Sheet. In case, a Bidder chooses to submit bid or performance security using Bank Guarantee, the relevant format shall be tailored accordingly without changing the spirit of the Forms of securities].

Form of Bid Security

(Bank Guarantee)

	Guarantee No Executed on
(Letter by the Guarantor to the	Procuring Agency)
Name of Guarantor (Scheduled Name of Principal (Bidder) with Sum of Security (express in wo	d Bank in Pakistan) with address: n address: ords and figures):
RFP/ Bid Reference No.: RFP/ Bid Date:	
Bid and at the request of the s and firmly bound unto the _ called the 'Procuring Agency sum well and truly to be made,	PRESENTS, that in pursuance of the terms of the RFP/said Principal, we the Guarantor above-named are held , (hereinafter , (hereinafter w') in the sum stated above, for the payment of which we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators verally, firmly by these presents.
submitted the accompanying	BLIGATION IS SUCH, that whereas the Principal has g RFP/ Bid numbered and dated as above for (Particulars of Bid) to the said
Procuring Agency; and	
,	ency has required as a condition for considering the said is a bid security in the above said sum to the Procuring
(1) that the bid security sha beyond the period of valid	Il remain valid for a period of twenty eight (28) days dity of the bid;

- (2) that in the event of;
 - (a) the Principal withdraws his Bid during the period of validity of Bid, or
 - (b) the Principal does not accept the correction of his Bid Price, or
 - (c) failure of the successful bidder to
 - (i) furnish the required performance security, in accordance with Sub-Clause ITC-24.2 of Instructions to Consultants, or
 - (ii) sign the proposed Contract Agreement, in accordance with Sub-Clauses ITC-9.1 & 9.2 of Instructions to Consultants,

the entire sum be paid immediately to the said Procuring Agency for delayed completion and not as penalty for the successful Bidder's failure to perform.

NOW THEREFORE, if the successful bidder shall, within the period specified therefore, on the prescribed form presented to him for signature enter into a formal Contract Agreement with the said Procuring Agency in accordance with his Bid as

accepted and furnish within fourteen (14) days of receipt of Letter of Acceptance, a performance security with good and sufficient surety, as may be required, upon the form prescribed by the said Procuring Agency for the faithful performance and proper fulfillment of the said Contract or in the event of non-withdrawal of the said Bid within the time specified then this obligation shall be void and of no effect, but otherwise to remain in full force and effect.

PROVIDED THAT the Guarantor shall forthwith pay to the Procuring Agency the said sum stated above upon first written demand of the Procuring Agency without cavil or argument and without requiring the Procuring Agency to prove or to show grounds or reasons for such demand, notice of which shall be sent by the Procuring Agency by registered post duly addressed to the Guarantor at its address given above.

PROVIDED ALSO THAT the Procuring Agency shall be the sole and final judge for deciding whether the Principal has duly performed his obligations to sign the Contract Agreement and to furnish the requisite performance security within the time stated above, or has defaulted in fulfilling said requirements and the Guarantor shall pay without objection the sum stated above upon first written demand from the Procuring Agency forthwith and without any reference to the Principal or any other person.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the above bounded Guarantor has executed the instrument under its seal on the date indicated above, the name and seal of the Guarantor being hereto affixed and these presents duly signed by its undersigned representative pursuant to authority of its governing body.

	Guarantor (Bank)	
Witness:	1. Signature	
1	2. Name	
Corporate Secretary (Seal)	3. Title	
2		
(Name, Title & Address)	Corporate Guarantor (Sea	al)

Form of Performance Security

(Bank Guarantee)

Guarantee No
Expiry Date
(Letter by the Guarantor to the Procuring Agency)
Name of Guarantor (Scheduled Bank in Pakistan) with address:
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that in pursuance of the terms of the RFP Document and above said Letter of Acceptance (hereinafter called the Documents) and at the request of the said Principal we, the Guarantor above named, are held and firmly bound unto the
(hereinafter called the Procuring Agency) in the penal sum of the amount stated above, for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made to the said Procuring Agency, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators and successors, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.
THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH, that whereas the Principal has accepted the Procuring Agency's above said Letter of Acceptance for (Name of Contract) for the (Name of Assignment).
NOW THEREFORE, if the Principal (Consultant) shall well and truly perform and fulfill all the undertakings, covenants, terms and conditions of the said Documents during the original terms of the said Documents and any extensions thereof that may be granted by the Procuring Agency, with or without notice to the Guarantor, which notice is, hereby, waived and shall also well and truly perform and fulfill all the undertakings, covenants terms and conditions of the Contract and of any and all modifications of the said Documents that may hereafter be made, notice of which modifications to the Guarantor being hereby waived, then, this obligation to be void; otherwise to remain in full force and virtue till all requirements and Conditions of Contract are fulfilled.
Our total liability under this Guarantee is limited to the sum stated above and it is a condition of any liability attaching to us under this Guarantee that the claim for payment in writing shall be received by us within the validity period of this Guarantee, failing which we shall be discharged of our liability, if any, under this Guarantee.
We, (the Guarantor), waiving all objections and defenses under the Contract, do hereby irrevocably and independently guarantee to pay to the Procuring Agency without delay upon the Procuring Agency's first written demand without cavil or arguments and without requiring the Procuring Agency to prove or to show grounds or reasons for such demand any sum or sums up

to the amount stated above, against the Procuring Agency's written declaration that the Principal has refused or failed to perform the obligations under the Contract, for which payment will be effected by the Guarantor to Procuring Agency's designated Bank & Account Number.

PROVIDED ALSO THAT the Procuring Agency shall be the sole and final judge for deciding whether the Principal (Consultant) has duly performed his obligations under the Contract or has defaulted in fulfilling said obligations and the Guarantor shall pay without objection any sum or sums up to the amount stated above upon first written demand from the Procuring Agency forthwith and without any reference to the Principal or any other person.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the above bounded Guarantor has executed this Instrument under its seal on the date indicated above, the name and corporate seal of the Guarantor being hereto affixed and these presents duly signed by its undersigned representative, pursuant to authority of its governing body.

		Guarantor (Bank)
Witness:	1. Signature	
1	2. Name	
Corporate Secretary (Seal)	3. Title	
2		
(Name, Title & Address)		Corporate Guarantor (Seal)

Appendix A – Integrity Pact

Declaration of Fees, Commission and Brokerage etc. Payable by the Consultant

Contract No. Contract Value: Contract Title:	Dated
obtained or induced the procurement of obligation or benefit from Governme	f Consultant] hereby declares that it has not fany contract, right, interest, privilege or other ent of Sindh (GoS) or any administrative her entity owned or controlled by GoS through
warrants that it has fully declared the bro to anyone and not given or agreed to giv within or outside Pakistan either direct person, including its affiliate, agent, ass shareholder, sponsor or subsidiary, an or kickback, whether described as co obtaining or inducing procurement o	regoing, [name of Consultant] represents and okerage, commission, fees etc. paid or payable we and shall not give or agree to give to anyone by or indirectly through any natural or juridical sociate, broker, Consultant, director, promoter, y commission, gratification, bribe, finder's fee onsultation fee or otherwise, with object of contract, right, interest, privilege or other orm from GoS, except that which has been
agreements and arrangements with	nas made and will make full disclosure of all all persons in respect of or related to the sen any action or will not take any action to ntation or warranty.
declaration, not making full disclosure, r to defeat the purpose of this declaratio any contract, right, interest, privilege	nsibility and strict liability for making any false nisrepresenting facts or taking any action likely n, representation and warranty. It agrees that or other obligation or benefit obtained as y other rights and remedies available to GoS nent, be voidable at option of GoS.
Supplier] agrees to indemnify GoS for a its corrupt business practices and furt equivalent to ten time sum of any cokickback given by [name of Supplier] as	es exercised by GoS in this regard, [name of iny loss or damage incurred by it on account of her pay compensation to GoS in an amount immission, gratification, bribe, finder's fee or aforesaid for purpose of obtaining or inducing interest, privilege or other obligation or benefit
Name of the Procuring Agency: Signature:	Name of the Consultant: Signature:
Signature: [Seal]	[Seal]

Appendix B - Affidavit (non-blacklisting)

[On stamp paper of PKR 500]

[Location, Date]

To: [Name and address of PA]

Re: Feasibility Study and Transaction Advisory Services for Providing Quality Education in Sindh Technical and Vocational Education and Training Institutes under Public Private Partnership Mode.

Dear Sir:

Address:

Pursuant to the Request for Proposal Document dated [insert the date] in respect of the Project, [Insert Name of the Attorney] hereby represents and warrants that, as of the date of this letter, [Insert Name of Bidder/ Member of Consortium]:

- (a) is not in bankruptcy or liquidation proceedings;
- (b) has not been convicted of, fraud, corruption, collusion, or money laundering during the last five (5) years;
- (c) is not aware of any Conflict of Interest or potential Conflict of Interest arising from prior or existing contracts or relationships which could materially affect its capability to comply with the obligations under the Consultancy Contract; and
- (d) is not blacklisted by any Federal or Provincial governmental or nongovernmental department/ agency in Pakistan, or any other provincial government/ governments of any foreign countries or their governmental bodies and /or International Organizations, as at the submission deadline; and
- (e) does not fall within any of the circumstances for ineligibility listed in Instructions to Consultants Clauses 18.1, 13.1, 6.1, and 2.2 (Eligibility Criteria Bid Data Sheet) of the RFP Document;

Yours sincerely,	
Authorized Signature [In full and initials]: _ Name and Title of Signatory:	
Name of Firm:	

Appendix C - Power of Attorney³⁹

[On stamp paper of PKR 500]

[Location, Date]

Know all men by these presents, we,	[insert name
and address of the registered office of the fire	
authorize Mr./ Ms[ins	ert name and father name] who is
presently employed with [us or the Lead Mem	
the position of as our A	ttorney, to do in our name and on our
behalf, all or any of the acts, deeds or things r	
providing consultancy services in relation to the	
Advisory Services for Providing Quality Education	
Education and Training Institutes under	,
('Assignment'), including signing, authentical	
Proposals (Technical and Financial) and afficient	
responding to queries, submission of inform	
represent us in all its dealings with the Agricultu	
other Government entity or any person, in conne	
of the process of bidding and thereafter till documents.	the execution of relevant Project
documents.	
We hereby agree to ratify all acts, deeds and thin	ngs lawfully done by our said attorney
pursuant to this Power of Attorney and that all	
aforesaid attorney shall and shall always be dee	
and one and analysis of a second	miled to mave been demo by de.
For and on behalf of	
Authorized Signature [In full and initials]:	
Name and Title of Signatory:	
Name of Firm:	
Address:	
Witnesses:	
Signature:	Signature:
Signature:	Signature: Name:
Name: CNIC No.:	Name: CNIC No.:

³⁹ In case of a Consortium, a separate power of attorney (on this format) to be provided/ executed by each member of the Consortium (including the Lead Member) in favor of a representative and attorney of the Lead Member of the Consortium. The mode of execution of the Power of Attorney should be in accordance with the procedure, if any, laid down by the applicable law and the charter documents of the executant(s) and when it is so required the same should be under common seal affixed in accordance with the required procedure. For a power of attorney executed and issued overseas, the same will also have to be legalized by the Pakistan Embassy and notarized in the jurisdiction where the power of attorney is being issued.

Appendix D – Documents Checklist

The prospective Bidder (individual firm or consortium) shall provide the **checklist**, **attached with Form Tech-1** (**TECHNICAL PROPOSAL SUBMISSION FORM**), containing information of the required documents accompanied with the Technical proposal that must be appropriately filled, signed, and stamped by the Bidder's authorized representative. **While submitting the bid**, **the Technical proposals need to follow the instructions as recommended below:**

- the Bidder (in case of a Consortium, <u>each member</u>) must consult the RFP Document for checking the documents' requirement against each criterion and sub-criterion:
- the documents are placed in order as listed below (and those as deemed necessary for qualifying the eligibility and technical evaluation criteria);
- the documents contain substantial evidence (work orders, contracts with a clear scope, and completion certificates or any other substantial evidence if the completion certificates are not available) against the claimed projects' experience and its milestones achieved;
- the documents are printed using paper's double sides, where possible;

Bidder's Name:

- the documents are indexed with page numbers repeat with page numbers as mentioned below;
- the documents (Technical Proposal) do not disclose any information relating to the Financial Bid;
- the documents are submitted, preferably using two-holes file folders/ pockets.
- the Bidder must note that the Procuring Agency's Committee, during the evaluation process, shall rely on the following information provided by the Bidder. It is the sole responsibility of the Bidder to provide the information in a proper manner as required under the Checklist.

Procur Assign Submis	ef. No.: ing Ager ment Tit ssion Da cal Prop	le:/ 2025	Time::				
Sr.			Document Title with De	escription		Check	Page No.
Gener	ral Requi	rements					
1.	Technic	al and Financial proposals are in	a separate and sealed enve	lope			N/A
2.	Alternat	ive bids or proposals are not subn	nitted				N/A
3.		es of original Proposal initialed by					N/A
4.							N/A
Techn	nical Pro	posal Requirements					
5.	Form Te	ech 1: Technical Proposal Submis	sion Form				
6.	Form Tech 2: Consultant's Organization and Experience						
	6.1 General Experience						
	6.1.1 Feasibility study and/or technical assessment of TVET, or similar education institutes Projects						
	Sr. #	Project Title	Work Order	Contract Agreement	Completion Certificate		
	I.	Insert project title here	Insert page number	Insert page number	Insert page number		
	II.	Insert project title here	Insert page number	Insert page number	Insert page number	_	
	III.	Insert project title here	Insert page number	Insert page number	Insert page number		
						1	

	6.1.2 Bidding Package for Infrastructure/Social Development/ EPC/ Turnkey Projects						
	Sr. #	Project Title	Work Order	Contract Agreement	Completion Certificate		
	I.	Insert project title here	Insert page number	Insert page number	Insert page number		
	II.	Insert project title here	Insert page number	Insert page number	Insert page number		
	II.	Insert project title here	Insert page number	Insert page number	Insert page number		
	6.1.3 Financial Model and/ or Project Structuring for Infrastructure/Social Development/ EPC/ Turnkey Projects						
	Sr. #	Project Title	Work Order	Contract Agreement	Completion Certificate		
	I.	Insert project title here	Insert page number	Insert page number	Insert page number		
	II.	Insert project title here	Insert page number	Insert page number	Insert page number		
	III.	Insert project title here	Insert page number	Insert page number	Insert page number		
	6.2 Rel	evant Experience					
		easibility Study for Technical and \	ocational Education and T	raining Institutes (Moderniz	ation/Upgradation) Projects		
	Sr. #	Project Title	Work Order	Contract Agreement	Completion Certificate		
	l.	Insert project title here	Insert page number	Insert page number	Insert page number		
	II.	Insert project title here	Insert page number	Insert page number	Insert page number		
	III.	Insert project title here	Insert page number	Insert page number	Insert page number		
	6 2 2 D	ropero Pidding Dockago for DDD F	Projects				
	Sr. #	epare Bidding Package for PPP F Project Title	Work Order	Contract Agreement	Completion Certificate		
	J. #	Insert project title here	Insert page number	Insert page number	Insert page number		
	II.	Insert project title here	Insert page number	Insert page number	Insert page number		
	III.	Insert project title here	Insert page number	Insert page number	Insert page number		
			meert page manneer	meent page mameer	moore page married		
		evelop PPP Project					
	Sr. #	Project Title	Work Order	Contract Agreement	Completion Certificate		
	l.	Insert project title here	Insert page number	Insert page number	Insert page number		
	II.	Insert project title here	Insert page number	Insert page number	Insert page number		
	III.	Insert project title here	Insert page number	Insert page number	Insert page number		
7.	Form To	ech 3: Comments and suggestions	s on the TOR and resource	2			
8.					Project_understanding of the		
0.	Form Tech 4: Description of approach, methodology and work plan, appreciation and clarity of Project, understanding of the Assignment objectives; innovativeness or suggested changes with value additions, stakeholders' management						
		plan, existing commitments					
9.							
10.							
	10.1 Financial Team						
	10.1.1 Financial Team Leader						
	10.1.3 Project Finance Specialist						
		chnical Team					.
		Technical Team Leader					
	10.2.2 Senior TVET Specialist/ Curriculum & Pedagogy Expert						

	10.2.3 Infrastructure & Facilities Engineer		
	10.2.4 Equipment & Technology Specialist		
	10.2.5 Industry liaison & Labor Market Specialist		
	10.2.6 Environmental Expert		
	10.2.7 Social Safeguard Specialist		
	10.3 Legal Team		
	10.3.1 Legal Team Leader		
	10.3.2 Legal Expert		
11.	Form Tech 7: Staffing Schedule		
12.	Form Tech 8: Work Schedule		
13.	Appendix C- Power of Attorney – on stamp paper of required value		
14.	Appendix B – Affidavit (non-blacklisting) – on stamp paper of required value		
15.	Appendix A - Integrity Pact		
16.	Consortium Agreement (in case of a Consortium only)		
17.	Constituent Documents (Memorandum & Articles of Association or equivalent)		
18.	Registration Documents (NTN, SRB, PEC, PCTAP, as applicable)		
19.	Company Profile(s)		
20.	Audit Reports (Balance Sheets, Income and Cash Flow Statements)		
21.	Income Tax Returns		
22.	Qualification Track Record (Contracts with Completion Certificates or any other substantial evidence)		
23.	Bid Security Financial Instrument		
24.	Historical Contracts Non-Performing Details		
25.	Litigation History		
Financial Proposal			
26.	Form FIN 1: Financial Proposal Submission Form		N/A
27.	Form FIN 2: Summary of Costs inclusive of all the applicable taxes		N/A
28.	Bid Security Amount Mentioned in RFP		N/A
29.	Bid Security covers minimum time, i.e., valid up to 28 days beyond bid validity period		N/A
30.	Manner of payment of Bid Security is as per the terms and conditions of the RFP Document		N/A

Authorized Signature [In full and initials]:	
Name and Title of Signatory:	
Stamp:	

Appendix E – List of Institutes

(List of Institutes is included as separate attachment)